
      

City Council  

Agenda
City Hall

225 Fifth Street
Springfield, Oregon 97477

541-726-3700
Online at www.springfield-or.gov

 
Mayor
Sean VanGordon  

City Council
Michelle Webber, Ward 1
Steve Moe, Ward 2
Kori Rodley, Ward 3
Beth Blackwell, Ward 4
Vacant, Ward 5
Alan Stout, Ward 6

City Manager:
Nancy Newton 

City Recorder:
Allyson Pulido
541-726-3700

These meetings will be available via phone, internet using Zoom and in person. Members of the public wishing to attend these
meetings electronically can call in or attend virtually by following the directions below. This information can also be found on the
City's website.

 
The meeting location is wheelchair-accessible. For the hearing-impaired, an interpreter can be provided with 48 hours' notice prior
to the meeting. For meetings in the Council Meeting Room, a "Personal PA Receiver" for the hearing impaired is available, as well

as an Induction Loop for the benefit of hearing aid users.
To arrange for these services, call 541-726-3700.

Meetings will end prior to 10:00 p.m. unless extended by a vote of the Council.

All proceedings before the City Council are recorded. 

October 6, 2025
Monday 

_______________________________ 
6:00 p.m. Work Session
Council Meeting Room

or
Virtual Attendance

Registration Required:
Attend from your computer, tablet or smartphone:

Zoom
Meeting ID: 895 7802 3271 

Copy the address below into your browser to register 
https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_uQGZqhTjSNCIqvxXAkAQww

To dial in using your phone in Listen Only Mode:
Dial 1 (971) 247-1195

Toll Free 1 (877) 853-5247
Oregon Relay/TTY: 711 or 800-735-1232 

 
(Council work sessions are reserved for discussion between Council, staff and consultants; therefore, Council will not receive public input
during work sessions. Opportunities for public input are given during all regular Council meetings)
 
      
CALL TO ORDER
 

ROLL CALL -- Mayor VanGordon___, Councilors Webber___, Moe___, Rodley____, Blackwell___, and Stout ___.
 

1. Eugene Springfield Fire Updates
[Chief Mike Caven] (30 minutes)

 

2. Housing + Design Initiative Code and Plan Update
[Haley Campbell] (30 Minutes)

 

ADJOURNMENT
 

_________________________________ 
7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 



Council Meeting Room 
or 

Virtual Attendance 
Registration Required: 

Attend from your computer, tablet or smartphone: 
Zoom 

Meeting ID: 895 7802 3271 
Copy the address below into your browser to register 

https://us06web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_uQGZqhTjSNCIqvxXAkAQww 
To dial in using your phone in Listen Only Mode: 

Dial 1 (971) 247-1195 
Toll Free 1 (877) 853-5247 

Oregon Relay/TTY: 711 or 800-735-1232 
__________________________________

 

CALL TO ORDER
 

ROLL CALL -- Mayor VanGordon___, Councilors Webber ___, Moe___, Rodley____, Blackwell ____, and Stout ___.
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 

SPRINGFIELD UPBEAT
 

CONSENT CALENDAR
 

1. Claims
 

2. Minutes
 

a. April 7, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Minutes
 

b. April 7, 2025 Draft City Council Regular Session Minutes
 

c. April 14, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Minutes
 

d. April 21, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Minutes
 

e. April 21, 2025 Draft Joint Elected Officials Meeting Minutes
 

f. April 21, 2025 Draft City Council Regular Session Meeting Minutes
 

g. April 28, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Meeting Minutes
 

3. Resolutions
 

4. Ordinances
 

5. Other Routine Matters

 

a. Award Contract To Morganic Roots Ego Firm for the Franklin Phase 1 Maintenance, P51073
 

b. Liquor license application for a new license for Richard E. Wildish Community Theater, DBA: Richard E. Wildish
Community Theater.

 

c. Liquor license application for a new license for TNT Pizza LLC, DBA: Track Town Pizza.
 

d. Liquor license application for a new license for Bartolotti Management LLC, DBA: Sophia's.



 

e. August 2025 Disbursements for Approval.
 

f. Armored Rescue Vehicle Purchase.
 

MOTION: APPROVE/REJECT THE CONSENT CALENDAR
 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS - Please limit comments to 3 minutes. Request to speak cards are available at the entrance.
Please present cards to City Recorder. Speakers may not yield their time to others.

 

1. FY26 Supplemental Budget #1
[Jessica Mumme] (5 Minutes)

MOTION: Adopt/ Not Adopt a Resolution Adjusting Resources and Requirements in the Following Funds: General,
Street, Special Revenue, Transient Lodging Tax, Community Development, Building Code, Fire Local Option Levy,
Police Local Option Levy, Bond Sinking, Development Assessment Capital, Development Projects, Regional
Wastewater Capital, Street Capital, Sanitary Sewer Operations, Regional Wastewater, Ambulance, Storm Drainage
Operations, Booth-kelly, Regional Fiber Consortium, Insurance, Vehicle & Equipment, And Sdc Administration.
 

 

2. Springfield Municipal Code Update - Public Contracts
[Jessica Mumme] (10 Minutes)

MOTION: Adopt/ not adopt an Ordinance Adopting its Own Code for Public Contracting and Purchasing by
Repealing and Replacing Springfield Municipal Code Sections 2.700-2.722 With New Sections 2.700-2.713.

 

3. City-initiated Street Annexation - Segments of Aspen Street and Menlo Loop Public Right-of-Way (ROW) Only.
[Tom Sievers] (10 Minutes)

FIRST READING ONLY, NO ACTION REQUESTED
 

4. City-initiated Street Annexation - Segment of Laura Street Public Right-of-Way (ROW) Only.
[Tom Sievers] (10 Minutes)

FIRST READING ONLY, NO ACTION REQUESTED
 

BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE - Limited to 20 minutes. Please limit comments to 3 minutes. Request to
speak cards are available at the entrance. Please present cards to City
Recorder. Speakers may not yield their time to others.

 

COUNCIL RESPONSE
 

CORRESPONDENCE AND PETITIONS
 

BIDS
 

ORDINANCES
 

1. An Ordinance Annexing Certain Territory Addressed As 1035 Kintzley Avenue And Identified As Assessor's Map 18-
02-06-24, Tax Lot 2500 And Concurrently Annexing An Approximately 65-foot Long By 22.5-foot Wide Segment Of
Kintzley Avenue to The City of Springfield and Willamalane Park & Recreation District; Withdrawing Said Territory
from the Willakenzie Rural Fire Protection District; Adopting a Severability Clause; and Providing an Effective Date.
[Andy Limbird] (5 Minutes)

MOTION: adopt/ not adopt an Ordinance Annexing Certain Territory Addressed as 1035 Kintzley Avenue and
Identified as Assessor's Map 18-02-06-24, Tax Lot 2500 And Concurrently Annexing an Approximately 65-foot Long



By 22.5-foot Wide Segment Of Kintzley Avenue to the City of Springfield and Willamalane Park & Recreation District;
Withdrawing Said Territory from the Willakenzie Rural Fire Protection District; Adopting a Severability Clause; and
Providing an Effective Date.

 

RESOLUTIONS
 

1. Approving City Council Operating Policies and Procedures
[Mary Bridget Smith] (10 minutes)

MOTION: Adopt/Not adopt a Resolution Approving the City Council Operating Policies and Procedures
 

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL
 

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER
 

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY
 

ADJOURNMENT
 



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
 Meeting Type:       Work Session
 Staff Contact/Dept:  Allyson Pulido/City Manager's Office

S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No: 541-726-3700
Estimated Time:  30 Minutes
Council Goals:  Enhance Public Safety

ITEM TITLE:
Eugene Springfield Fire Updates

ACTION REQUESTED:
No action requested

ISSUE STATEMENT:
Eugene Springfield Fire (ESF) staff will provide updates on the following topics: Review of department structure
and service area, 2025 wildfire season, service demand, ambulance service stability, staffing and recruitment. 

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
There are no financial impacts at this time and the information provide is to update the Council and answer any
questions they may have.



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
 Meeting Type:       Work Session
 Staff Contact/Dept:  Haley Campbell/Community Development

S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No: 541-726-3647
Estimated Time:  30 Minutes
Council Goals:  Promote and Enhance our Hometown Feel while

Focusing on Livability and Environmental Quality

ITEM TITLE:
Housing + Design Initiative Code and Plan Update

ACTION REQUESTED:
Review and provide guidance to the project team on the Draft Code and Plan Concepts to inform next steps for
outreach and recommendation of code and plan amendments.

ISSUE STATEMENT:
The Housing + Design Initiative Code and Plan Update is continuing the ongoing work of Springfield's Housing
Strategy by helping the City come into compliance with State housing-related statutes and rules. This project aligns
with the City's goals for facilitating housing production, affordability, and choice by reducing regulatory barriers.
Particular attention is focused on amending the City's Development Code to include clear and objective standards for
Mixed-Use Districts as expressed in Springfield City Council Resolution No. 2023-28. The Consultant, Cascadia
Partners, prepared a Code and Plan Concepts Report for Council's review (included as Attachment 2 in the
September 22, 2025 Council meeting packet).

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
Background
On September 22, 2025, the Council reviewed Recommendations 2 and 3 from the code and plan concepts report.
At the meeting, Council requested more information on the following concepts:

What transportation access requirements are for pedestrians and vehicles (concept 2.1 and 2.2);
Utility infrastructure needs down Main Street (concept 2.1);
If developers would choose to build the ground floor of a building as a commercial-ready space or if they
would prefer to develop a building with a reduced ground floor commercial space or as a horizontal mixed-use
(concept 3.1);
If we should adjust the maximum height step-down adjacent to residential (concept 3.3); and
If we should increase the maximum height in the Neighborhood Commercial district to 3-4 stories instead of
matching the height of the abutting residential district which is generally a maximum of 35 feet when abutting
low-density residential (concept 3.4).

These concerns are addressed in the Briefing Memo and Presentation Slides. 

This next phase, the code and plan concepts, articulates conceptual proposals for updating the development code to
address the barriers and issues identified in the code audit. The recommendations outlined in the report include:

Recommendation 1: Reduce Barriers to Housing in Mixed-Use Districts
Recommendation 2: Expand Opportunities for Housing in Commercial Districts
Recommendation 3: Recalibrate Development Standards to Align with Housing Goals
Recommendation 4: Streamline and Simplify the Code

Specific concepts are proposed to implement each recommendation and are discussed in more detail in the Briefing
Memo and Code and Plan Concepts Report. 

Discussion
To promote and enhance meaningful discussion and feedback, staff will continue to provide an overview of the code
and plan concepts, highlight the findings, and be available for questions. Some questions for discussion can be
found in the Briefing Memo. 

https://springfield-or.gov/wp-content/uploads/2025/03/Housing-Strategy-Handout-Spring-25-Update.pdf
https://laserfiche.springfield-or.gov/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=4232054&dbid=0&repo=City-of-Springfield-Laserfiche
https://public.destinyhosted.com/agenda_publish.cfm?id=77733&mt=ALL&get_month=9&get_year=2025&dsp=agm&seq=360&rev=0&ag=78&ln=2321&nseq=&nrev=&pseq=359&prev=0


Attachments
1. Council Briefing Memo
2. Presentation Slides



 

 M E M O R A N D U M                                                                    City of Springfield 

Date: 10/6/2025  

To: Nancy Newton COUNCIL 

From: Haley Campbell, Senior Planner 

Jeff Paschall, Community Development Director 

BRIEFING 

MEMORANDUM 

Subject: Housing + Design Initiative Code and Plan 

Concepts 

 

ISSUE: The Housing + Design Initiative Code and Plan Update is continuing the ongoing work 

of Springfield’s Housing Strategy by helping the City come into compliance with State housing-

related statutes and rules. This project aligns with the City’s goals for facilitating housing 

production, affordability, and choice by reducing regulatory barriers. Particular attention is 

focused on amending the City’s Development Code to include clear and objective standards for 

Mixed-Use Districts as expressed in Springfield City Council Resolution No. 2023-28. The 

Consultant, Cascadia Partners, prepared a Code and Plan Concepts Report for Council’s review.  

 
 

COUNCIL GOALS/ 

MANDATE: 

Promote and Enhance our Hometown Feel While Focusing on Livability and Environmental 

Quality 

 

CODE AND PLAN CONCEPT RECOMMENDATIONS 

This memo summarizes the concepts presented in the Code and Plan Concepts Report to help 

focus the Commission’s discussion. Where Council provided direction at the Sept. 22 meeting, 

staff has summarized Council’s direction (shown in italics). In some cases, Council asked for 

additional information, also noted below.  This work session will provide time to address some 

of those questions and for Council to provide direction on the remaining design concepts.  

 

Recommendation 1: Reduce Barriers to Housing in Mixed-Use Districts 

These recommendations apply to Climate-Friendly Areas and which Council previously 

addressed outside the Housing + Design Initiative. 

 

Recommendation 2: Expand Opportunities for Housing in Commercial Districts 

 

Concept 2.1: Expand opportunities for housing on the Main Street Corridor 

This concept proposes to create new allowances for housing development in commercial 

districts on the properties currently zoned CC on the Main Street Corridor.  

• Alternative A: Allow Housing on Sites that Meet Certain Criteria (Most Flexible). 

Alternative A would expand opportunities for standalone housing, commercial, and mixed-

use to properties under one acre throughout the Main Street Corridor. The criteria could 

allow for standalone housing on these smaller sites, while requiring that sites over one acre 

continue to include a commercial use. This approach balances the desire for more flexibility 

for housing while protecting the employment land supply. For example, there is currently a 

surplus of employment sites that are under one acre.  

• Alternative B: Allow Housing in Mixed-Use Areas on Main Street (Moderately 

Flexible). Under this concept, the City would expand the approach used in the East Main 

Refinement Plan to allow housing on certain segments of the Main Street Corridor, or 

“Mixed Use Areas”. The existing Mixed-Use Area on Main Street between 43rd and 54th, 

defined in the East Main Refinement Plan, would be one of these Mixed-Use Areas. A 

second area on Main Street and South A Street between 14th and 23rd was identified in the 

Attachment 1
Page 1 of 8

https://springfield-or.gov/wp-content/uploads/2025/03/Housing-Strategy-Handout-Spring-25-Update.pdf
https://laserfiche.springfield-or.gov/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=4232054&dbid=0&repo=City-of-Springfield-Laserfiche
https://public.destinyhosted.com/agenda_publish.cfm?id=77733&mt=ALL&get_month=9&get_year=2025&dsp=agm&seq=360&rev=0&ag=78&ln=2321&nseq=&nrev=&pseq=359&prev=0


  

 

Main Street Corridor Vision Plan as a conceptual Mixed-Use Area. Within these areas, 

standalone housing, commercial, and mixed-use development would be allowed in the CC 

district. Outside of these areas, housing would continue to be prohibited.  

• Alternative C: Allow Housing in Mixed-Use Centers on Main Street (Least Flexible). 

Alternative C is similar to Alternative B, but limits housing opportunities to a narrower, 

more targeted set of areas, or “Mixed-Use Centers”. These centers would primarily be 

focused on intersections and are based on the currently adopted ND Overlay and Mixed-Use 

Comprehensive Plan designations as well as previous suggested locations for activity nodes 

from the Main Street Corridor Vision Plan. Within these centers, standalone housing, 

commercial, and mixed-use development would be allowed in the CC district. Outside of 

these centers, housing would continue to be prohibited. 

 

Concept 2.2: Allow mixed-use housing in the Neighborhood Commercial (NC) district 

The purpose of the NC district is to provide opportunities for neighborhood-serving commercial 

uses within close proximity (ideally walking distance) of residential areas, such as convenience 

stores, small groceries, coffee shops, restaurants, or other small businesses. This concept would 

modify the NC district to allow for housing only as part of a mixed-use development. This 

approach would provide the flexibility for housing to be developed on NC properties, while 

retaining the essential purpose of the district. Some type of commercial use would still be 

required to be included on the site, preserving the opportunity for neighborhood-serving 

commercial services and amenities within close distance of residential areas. Additionally, 

standalone commercial uses would continue to be permitted. 

 

DISCUSSION:  

➢ Main Street. Which (if any) alternatives do you support for allowing housing on Main 

Street? Do you think the Development Code should be more flexible than today with regards 

to housing on Main Street? 

➢ Neighborhood Commercial District. Do you support the proposed change to allow mixed-

use buildings in the Neighborhood Commercial district? Do you have any concerns about 

that change? 

 

Council discussed concepts 2.1 and 2.2 at the September 22, 2025 Council meeting and were in 

favor of Alternative A to allow housing on arterial streets (including Main Street and 42nd 

Street) for properties under 1 acre. Council asked for more information regarding 

transportation access and infrastructure needs which are discussed in the Council Feedback 

section below.  

 

Recommendation 3: Recalibrate Development Standards to Align with Housing Goals 

 

Concept 3.1: Apply flexible and achievable standards for the minimum amount of non-

residential space in mixed-use developments. 

Where housing is required to be part of a mixed-use development in either mixed-use districts or 

commercial districts, the amount of commercial space that must be provided can have a 

significant impact on the economic feasibility of mixed-use development. Some ways that we 

could make mixed-use more feasible to build include: 

• Reduce the Ground Floor Commercial Requirement. This could be accomplished in one 

of two ways: a minimum amount of commercial space as a portion of the total ground floor 

area of each building/development (with a minimum recommended range of 25-50%) or a 

minimum length of the street frontage of the property that must be occupied by a commercial 

space (a minimum 30-50% of the length of the street frontage is recommended).   

• Allowing Horizontal Mixed-Use. Often, when we think of mixed-use development we 

imagine a vertical mixed-use building where the ground floor is commercial and housing is 

located on the upper floors of the same building. Horizontal mixed-use on the other hand, 

Attachment 1
Page 2 of 8



  

 

would allow commercial and residential to be spread across multiple buildings on the same 

site.  

• Require Commercial-Ready Space on the Ground Floor. If there is a concern about the 

impact on the employment land supply by allowing standalone and mixed-use housing on 

the Main Street Corridor, we could require that standalone housing development be designed 

with ground floor spaces that are “commercial-ready”. This means that the space meets 

commercial building code requirements. Even if the space is used as a dwelling in the short-

term, it could be converted to a commercial use in the future.  

 

DISCUSSION:  

➢ Mixed-Use Feasibility. Would these allowances make mixed-use development more 

feasible? 

➢ Considerations. What should we keep in mind as we incorporate these approaches into the 

code? 

 

Council discussed concept 3.1 at the September 22, 2025 Council meeting and were in favor of 

both reducing the ground floor commercial requirement and allowing horizontal mixed-use 

development. Council was uncertain about requiring commercial-ready space on the ground 

floor of a mixed-use development—Councilors wondered if it was just another way to restrict 

development and what the cost would be to build the ground floor to commercial-ready 

requirements. If clarification is needed on the cost to build to a commercial-ready space, staff 

can address it in the presentation. 

 

Concept 3.2: Establish consistent minimum density standards 

A minimum density standard requires that developments that include housing provide a 

minimum number of dwelling units per acre. The commercial districts generally do not allow for 

housing and therefore do not have a minimum density standard; however, if Recommendation 2 

is implemented then housing will be allowed on some sites in certain commercial districts.  It is 

therefore recommended that the City establish a minimum density standard in all districts where 

housing is a permitted use. In most districts, a minimum density of 15-20 units per gross acre 

would be appropriate (15 units/acre for mixed use development and 20 units/acre for standalone 

housing). This density level is achievable for a range of housing types. Nearly all low or mid-

rise apartments/condos (3-5 stories) will exceed this density level.  

 

Concept 3.3: Adjust maximum height step-down adjacent to residential 

The CC, MUR, MUC, MUE, and Booth Kelly districts all require that the maximum height of 

buildings “step-down” to no more than 35-50 feet on the portion of a property that is within 50 

feet of an adjacent R-1 or R-2 district. The current standard may present a significant barrier to 

high density housing development on lots that abut the R-1 or R-2 districts.. To reduce the 

negative impact of the current height step-down standard on housing development, a lower 

maximum height on any portion of a site within 25 feet (reduced from 50 feet) of an adjacent R-

1 or R-2 district is recommended.  

 

Concept 3.4: Increase maximum height in NC district 

The NC district has a maximum building height standard of 20 feet. This effectively requires 

buildings in the NC district to be 1-2 stories. To address this barrier, increase the maximum 

height of the NC district to 45-50 feet. This height limit would allow for 3-4 story buildings.  

 

Concept 3.5: Increase maximum lot coverage in NC and MUR districts 

The NC and MUR districts apply maximum lot coverage standards of 35% and 45%, 

respectively. These lot coverages are more typical of low-intensity commercial uses (such as a 

convenience store with a large surface parking lot) or a lower density residential development. 

These standards would present barriers to high density mixed-use and standalone housing 

developments because it would require buildings with a relatively small floorplate, especially on 

Attachment 1
Page 3 of 8



  

 

smaller lots. To address this barrier, increase the maximum lot coverage in the NC and MUR 

districts to 50-75%. This standard is more consistent with the intent to allow for high density, 

mixed-use development in these districts.  

 

DISCUSSION:  

➢ Minimum Density. Do you agree that a minimum density standard is important in these 

districts?  

➢ Height. Do you agree with the proposed changes to maximum height regulations intended to 

reduce barriers to higher density housing? 

➢ Design Standards. What design issues are most important to you when you think about 

development in the mixed-use districts?  

 

Council discussed concepts 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, and 3.5 at the September 22, 2025 Council meeting and 

were in favor of establishing a maximum density standard and increasing the maximum lot 

coverage in the NC and MUR districts. Council was uncertain about adjusting the maximum 

height step-down adjacent to residential (concept 3.3) and increasing the maximum height in the 

NC district (concept 3.4). Council asked for more information regarding the step-down 

requirements, especially as it relates to solar access, and the market feasibility of taller 

buildings in the NC district. which are discussed in the Council Feedback section below. 

 

Recommendation 4: Streamline and Simplify the Code 

 

Concept 4.1: Simplify design standards in mixed-use districts 

The mixed- use districts (MUC, MUR, and MUE) include a special set of design standards in 

SDC 3.2.625. These design standards are generally intended to promote pedestrian-oriented, 

appropriately scaled development with attention to design details. However, these standards may 

also present barriers and unnecessary complexity for housing and mixed use development. 

Specifically, the standards present the following issues: 

• Some standards are not clear and objective. To meet ORS 197A.400, the City must 

provide a clear and objective approval pathway for all housing developments. This 

requirement extends to mixed-use developments that include housing. 

• The applicability of the standards is unclear and may need to be revised if standalone 

housing is permitted in more districts. The applicability of the design standards in section 

3.2.625 is often unclear and complex to determine. For instance, Standalone multiple unit 

housing and middle housing is not permitted in the MUC district today but may be allowed 

in some cases if Recommendation 1 is implemented. 

• Some standards are redundant with other standards in the code. The Architectural 

Design Standards in SDC 4.7.375, and additional standards for Multiple Unit Housing in 

SDC 4.7.380 and SDC 4.7.385, are very similar to many of the design standards in the 

mixed-use districts. If these standards are largely similar, it would make the code easier to 

use and administer if the mixed-use districts were to reference these standards rather than 

apply a similar, but not quite identical, standard. 

• There are limited options for requesting an exemption or alternative to the standards. 

Section 3.2.620(B) states that applicants may “propose an alternative that fulfills the intent 

of the standard to the Director’s satisfaction”. This is a useful provision that allows for 

flexibility in design approaches. However, it is unclear what procedure type would apply to 

this request and offers substantial discretion to the Director’s decision. This uncertainty may 

deter applicants from using the exemption process. 

 

In summary, the standards in SDC 3.2.625 may deter developers because they are unnecessarily 

complex, which raises uncertainty and the risk of misinterpretation, delays, or added costs due to 

extra rounds of design modifications. The standards can be simplified and clarified in order to 

reduce uncertainty in the following ways: 

• Provide both a clear and objective and discretionary tract option. 

Attachment 1
Page 4 of 8



  

 

• Apply the middle housing design standards of SDC 3.2.200 (Residential Districts) to 

standalone middle housing in the mixed-use districts.  

• Reference existing standards rather than duplicating.  

 

Concept 4.2: Address compliance with CFEC Walkable Design standards in Commercial 

Districts 

OAR 660-012-0330 (“CFEC Walkable Design Standards”) requires that the city establish land 

use regulations that promote mixed-use, compact, and pedestrian-friendly development patterns. 

The City must comply with this requirement before or concurrent with the adoption of our next 

Transportation System Plan (TSP) by 2029. The mixed-use districts largely comply with these 

requirements, but some regulations in the commercial districts are not consistent with the CFEC 

Walkable Design Standards.  

• Prohibit parking between the building and the street. This standard is explicitly required 

by the state rules. The purpose of the standard is to create a more comfortable pedestrian 

experience and more convenient access to buildings from the public sidewalk.  

• Establish main entry orientation standards. Require that buildings have a main entry that 

faces the street and is connected to the street by an accessible walkway. This is explicitly 

required by the rules. 

The city could also choose to further encourage walkable design in the NC and CC districts by 

establishing a maximum building setback and a minimum window area and weather protection. 

The two additional standards place more limits on site and building design but do more to ensure 

a comfortable attractive environment for pedestrians. They are not explicitly required by the 

rules.  

 

DISCUSSION:  

➢ Maximum building setback. Should we consider requiring that buildings be built close to 

the street? 

➢ Windows and weather protection. Should we require a certain percentage of window area 

and/or weather protection in certain situations? 

 

Concept 4.3: Simplify the list of permitted use in mixed-use districts 

The Schedule of Use Categories in the mixed-use districts (SDC 3.2.610) includes a very long 

list of specific uses. To align with the system of use categories that has been established for the 

residential, commercial, and industrial districts, the permitted uses would employ broader use 

categories. The intent of this change would be to maintain the same use regulations that apply 

today, but to make the code more well-organized, clear, and easier to use.  

 

Concept 4.4: Replace Booth Kelly and Mixed-Use Light Medium Industrial/Community 

Commercial (MU LMI/CC) Districts with Mixed-Use Employment (MUE) District 

There are three land use districts that generally allow for a mix of industrial and commercial 

uses in Springfield: the Booth Kelly Mixed Use Plan District (BKMU), the Mixed-Use Light-

Medium Industrial/Community Commercial District (MU LMI/CC), and the Mixed-Use 

Employment District (MUE). 

• Booth Kelly Mixed-Use District: Was established by the Downtown Refinement Plan 

(2005) and allows industrial and commercial uses with no limitation. Residential uses are 

allowed but limited to 35% of the district area. The Downtown District Urban Design Plan 

and Implementation Strategy (Design Plan, 2010) was another strategy to address land use, 

building types, and general circulation. The plan envisioned downtown as a destination 

rather than a thoroughfare. Both the Refinement Plan and Design Plan emphasized the need 

to identify catalyst projects or improved public and open spaces within and nearby 

downtown for further development activity – including the Booth Kelly Center. Today the 

17-acre property and 200,000 square foot Booth Kelly Center building is owned and 

managed by the City of Springfield and houses large industrial and commercial warehouses, 

Attachment 1
Page 5 of 8



  

 

storage, manufacturing, and office spaces, nonprofit operations, and small-scale commercial. 

The Booth Kelly Mixed-Use District on the other hand, is roughly 117 acres and the 

Refinement Plan/Springfield Development Code generally allows all permitted uses in the 

light-medium industrial district, office uses, tourist commercial uses (including restaurants, 

hotels, gift shops, and entertainment centers), service and retail commercial uses, medium 

density residential uses, park and recreational uses, educational facilities, and regional 

destination uses.  

• MU LMI/CC District: Was established by the Gateway Refinement Plan but is not defined 

in the development code. Industrial and commercial uses are permitted, but there are limits 

on commercial uses. Residential is a prohibited use.  

• Mixed-Use Employment (not mapped): Allows industrial, commercial, and residential; 

however, some types of commercial uses are prohibited, and industrial uses must make up 

no less than 60% of the floor area.  

 

There may be an opportunity to streamline and simplify the City’s land use districts and code 

regulations by rezoning properties currently zoned BKMU and MU LMI/CC to the MUE 

district. The BKMU district could be removed from the code and would simplify the number of 

land use/plan districts. It would also resolve issues with the enforceability and legal status of the 

MU LMI/CC district due to the regulations being located in a refinement plan and not in the 

development code. This would make the MU LMI/CC regulations easier to access and 

understand for applicants/users of the code. Currently, users of the code must refer to the LMI 

district, CC district, and Gateway Refinement Plan in order to retrieve information about the 

regulations that apply to MU LMI/CC properties. 

 

There are some key implications for rezoning BKMU and MU LMI/CC to MUE. They are: 

• Residential would be newly permitted in MU LMI/CC and would continue to be permitted in 

BKMU.  

• Commercial uses would be more restrictive in both districts. Retail, certain office uses, and 

hotels would be prohibited.  

• Industrial uses would continue to be permitted. However, there would be a new maximum 

height limit of 60 feet, where no maximum height currently applies and the design standards 

of SDC 3.2.625 would apply.  

 

To mitigate the impact of rezoning BKMU and MU LMI/CC to MUE, it is recommended that 

the MUE district be modified prior to/concurrent with any rezoning. The following are 

recommended: 

• Reconsider requirement for industrial uses to be the primary use (a minimum of 60% 

of the district). If not removed, do not apply this requirement to Booth Kelly. 

• Allow for the full range of retail, office, and institutional uses so as not to prohibit any 

uses that are currently allowed today. 

• Ensure that allowing for residential (as part of a mixed-use development) is 

appropriate in the MU LMI/CC properties.  

 

DISCUSSION:  

➢ Move forward with addressing Booth Kelly now? Depending on Council’s priorities, the 

Housing + Design project can broadly address changes to the BKMU district now or amend 

the district at a later date. Considerations include: 

• The City is the primary landowner within the BKMU district – a 100+ acre property in 

City ownership with rail and downtown access which is an economic development 

opportunity. 

• The Council adopted Resolution No. 2022-14 for management of the Booth Kelly 

facility space as leased commercial space until July 1, 2027. This Resolution identifies 

that the areas not needed for public use within the next five years can be contracted for 

lease on a month-to-month basis. The end date of Resolution 2022-14 is less than two 

Attachment 1
Page 6 of 8

https://laserfiche.springfield-or.gov/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=4143735&dbid=0&repo=City-of-Springfield-Laserfiche&cr=1


  

 

years away. Campbell Commercial Real Estate indicates that tenants will typically start 

to inquire about leasing futures within this time frame. Council has not discussed plans 

for the property beyond July 1, 2027. 

➢ Rezoning LMI/CC and Booth Kelly: If we do proceed with addressing BKMU as part of 

the Housing + Design project, do you anticipate any major concerns or issues with 

replacing/consolidating these districts with MUE? 

 

Council discussed concept 4.1 at the September 22, 2025 Council meeting and were in favor of 

rezoning the BKMU and MU LMI/CC district to MUE if neighborhood compatibility was 

considered when revising the use and design standards in the MUE district (business operation 

needs, noise buffering, truck route locations, etc.). 

COUNCIL FEEDBACK: Staff took the results of the Code and Plan Concepts report to the 

City Council on September 22, 2025. The Council had a number of questions regarding 

infrastructure availability (utilities and transportation), the public and landowner willingness to 

build, and the market economics of building mixed-use and standalone housing in the 

community commercial and neighborhood commercial districts along Main Street and 

throughout the City. To address these concerns staff will address the following in the 

presentation slides 38-42: 

➢ Infrastructure Availability: Since the September 22, 2025 work session, Staff met with 

SUB Water and Electric and the Springfield Transportation staff to determine the status of 

various infrastructure needs along Main Street and in the Neighborhood Commercial 

properties throughout the City. The takeaways from those meetings will be summarized by 

staff in the work session presentation.  

➢ Community and Land Owner Willingness: In August 2025, staff began the first round of 

community engagement by asking the public and the Housing + Design Initiative Technical 

Advisory Committee what their key priorities were when it came to making housing easier 

to build in the mixed-use and commercial districts. The options included: 

• Economic Development – Preserve land for job and business growth 

• Context Sensitive Design – Allow housing, but consider how it fits in with 

surroundings 

• Strategic Growth – Focus new dense housing near transit and walkable areas 

• Build Homes Faster – More housing is the priority, no matter where it goes  

 

The Housing + Design Initiative survey was live from August 26-September 30, 2025. The 

results of the survey demonstrated that 45% of respondents said that Economic 

Development/Employment Space was important versus 43% said Strategic Growth was very 

important. Overall, 35% of participants were strongly in favor of providing as much 

flexibility to the design standards as possible along Main Street, 20% were in favor of 

allowing housing under one acre on Main Street, 17% were in favor of “mixed-use 

areas”/segments, and 7% were in favor of allowing more housing at key intersections/ 

“mixed-use centers”.  Fifty-nine percent of respondents supported allowing the 

Neighborhood Commercial district to be a mixed-use district. The Technical Advisory 

Committee noted that their key priorities were a combination of Strategic Growth and Build 

Homes Faster with an emphasis on affordable housing in the commercial districts and near 

transit; they also were in favor of providing as much flexibility as possible along Main Street 

for more housing development 

 

Staff have a number of meetings scheduled with local developers and the impacted 

businesses and property owners along Main Street in the coming months. Feedback received 

at these meetings will be brought to the City Council for its consideration in December 2025.  

➢ Market Economics: Cascadia Partners completed a market analysis in August 2024 to help 

the City of Springfield determine realistic, market-constrained housing capacity within 

Attachment 1
Page 7 of 8



  

 

potential Climate-Friendly Areas (CFAs). This work was required to support compliance 

with OAR 660-012-0315, which mandates that Springfield’s designated CFAs accommodate 

at least 30% of the city’s projected 20-year housing needs, which is approximately 9,923 

housing units. The analysis went beyond the state’s prescribed methodology, which assumes 

full redevelopment at maximum allowed densities, and incorporated a utility infrastructure 

capacity study and outreach to major landowners. Together, these efforts provide a more 

accurate picture of where housing development is most likely to occur and what challenges 

could limit housing development capacity.  

• Cascadia’s market analysis found that the highest density building types (5-7 story 

apartments) are unlikely in the near term. Construction costs are at least 20-25% higher 

for a 5-7 story building than a 3-4 story building due to building code requirements. 

Market rents/prices in Springfield are not high enough to support these construction 

costs today. Lower cost construction types, such as 3-4 story apartment buildings and 

townhomes, are more financially feasible to build under current market conditions. 

Public investments could enhance market conditions, making higher-density 

developments more feasible in the future.  

• The code changes proposed as part of the Housing + Design Project are intended to 

remove potential regulatory barriers to both the 3-4 story buildings that are potentially 

feasible today and to 5-7 story buildings that could be feasible if market conditions 

change over time. The proposed increase in maximum height in the Neighborhood 

Commercial (NC) district would allow for 3-4 story buildings. The current max height 

limit of 20 feet would prohibit any buildings over 2 stories. The proposed adjustments to 

the height step-down requirement would remove a potential barrier to 4-story buildings 

in commercial and mixed-use districts. Note that the Development Code Update Project 

in 2022 removed the Base Solar Development Standards in SDC 3.2.225 due to its 

potential to limit infill and density in the R-1 and R-2 districts. SDC 5.18.100 Solar 

Access Protection provides protection from shade cast be new vegetation and from new 

structures in all districts if an applicant chooses to install a solar energy system. The 

current height step-down would require a 4-story building to step-down to a 3-story 

building within 50 feet of an adjacent residential zone on some sites, or to leave that area 

of the site for parking or landscaping, which limits revenue-generating units/floor area. 

This same code change would also improve the feasibility of 5-7 story buildings (where 

permitted by the height limit of the district), though buildings of that height are unlikely 

in the near term. In other words, these changes are beneficial for 4-story buildings today 

but would be beneficial for taller buildings if market conditions change and those 

buildings are viable in the future. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: This meeting is an opportunity for the City Council to provide 

input and direction on the code and plan concepts. Of the code and plan concepts, is the City 

Council in favor of staff proceeding with any amendments to implement the code and plan 

concepts? 

 

NEXT STEPS 

The next work session to review these Code and Plan Amendments with Council is scheduled for 

December 1, 2025. Staff is also scheduled for a work session with the Planning Commission on 

December 2, 2025, to present the draft Code and Plan Amendments.  

Attachment 1
Page 8 of 8



Attachment 2
Page 1 of 42



2
Attachment 2
Page 2 of 42



Attachment 2
Page 3 of 42



●

●

IF HOUSING IS THE TOP PRIORITY, 
OTHER GOALS NEED TO BE 

CAREFULLY BALANCED Attachment 2
Page 4 of 42



5

•

•

•

•

Attachment 2
Page 5 of 42



66
Attachment 2
Page 6 of 42



Attachment 2
Page 7 of 42



8
Attachment 2
Page 8 of 42



9
Attachment 2
Page 9 of 42



LEAST TO MOST RESTRICTIVE
10

Attachment 2
Page 10 of 42



LEAST TO MOST RESTRICTIVE 11
Attachment 2
Page 11 of 42



12
Attachment 2
Page 12 of 42



13
Attachment 2
Page 13 of 42



14

•

•

•

Attachment 2
Page 14 of 42



●

●

●

●

●

15
Attachment 2
Page 15 of 42



•

•

16
Attachment 2
Page 16 of 42



17

•

•Attachment 2
Page 17 of 42



18

•

•

Attachment 2
Page 18 of 42



•

•

19
Attachment 2
Page 19 of 42



➔

➔

Attachment 2
Page 20 of 42



21
Attachment 2
Page 21 of 42



22

2.3

Attachment 2
Page 22 of 42



23
Attachment 2
Page 23 of 42



24
Attachment 2
Page 24 of 42



➔

➔

Attachment 2
Page 25 of 42



26

0 10 30+20

Dwelling Units / Ac

Attachment 2
Page 26 of 42



27
Attachment 2
Page 27 of 42



28
Attachment 2
Page 28 of 42



29
Attachment 2
Page 29 of 42



➔

➔

➔

Attachment 2
Page 30 of 42



31

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Attachment 2
Page 31 of 42



32

•

•

•

•

•

o

o

Attachment 2
Page 32 of 42



33

•

•

•

•

Attachment 2
Page 33 of 42



34

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Attachment 2
Page 34 of 42



35

•

•

•

•

•

•

Attachment 2
Page 35 of 42



36

✅

✅

✅

•

•

•

•

Attachment 2
Page 36 of 42



➔

Attachment 2
Page 37 of 42



38

●Does existing infrastructure 

support additional development?

●What additional infrastructure 

might be needed?

●Do community members and the 

landowners in the Housing + Design 

area(s) support new development?

● Is there alignment between landowner 

vision and Housing + Design goals (to 

reduce barriers to housing production, 

affordability, and choice)?

●What types of development 

does the current and future 

market in Springfield support?

●What could realistically be 

built if Housing + Design 

standards were implemented?
Attachment 2
Page 38 of 42



39

Takeaways: Attachment 2
Page 39 of 42



40

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT

CONTEXT 
SENSITIVE DESIGN

STRATEGIC 
GROWTH

BUILD HOMES 
FASTER

Attachment 2
Page 40 of 42



41

●

●

o

o

o

o

●

o

Attachment 2
Page 41 of 42



42

Existing Entitlements

Small Lot Single Unit

What does existing zoning allow the 

market to produce today?

Moderate Density 

Apartments

Attached / Middle 

Housing

Garden Apartments

What could the Housing + Design  standards 

allow the market to deliver in the future?

These represent development types that could occur in 

areas where the Housing + Design regulations are 

implemented, if market conditions were supportive.

Housing + Design Standards

3-Story Apartment
(reduced parking)

4-Story Apartment
(reduced parking)

5-Story Mixed-Use
(reduced parking)

The code changes are intended to remove regulatory barriers 

3-4 story buildings feasible today and 5-7 story building 

feasible if the market changes. 

Attachment 2
Page 42 of 42



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
   
S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

  

SUBJECT:
April 7, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Minutes

Attachments
April 7, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Minutes



MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION OF
THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL

HELD MONDAY, APRIL 7, 2025

The Springfield City Council met in person and via Zoom on Monday, April 7, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., Council
President Webber presiding.

CALL TO ORDER
Council President Webber called the City Council work session to order at 6:00 p.m. and noted the absence of
Mayor VanGordon.

ATTENDANCE
Council President Michelle Webber, and Councilors Steve Moe, Kori Rodley, Beth Blackwell, Victoria Doyle,
and Alan Stout.

Absent: Mayor Sean VanGordon

STAFF PRESENT
City Manager Nancy Newton, Assistant City Manager Niel Laudati, City Attorney Mary Bridget Smith, City
Recorder Allyson Pulido, Administrative Specialist Jennifer Zarazua

1.  Budget Committee Interviews
Jessica Mumme reported three candidates applied to fill one Budget Committee vacancy to represent Ward Six
for a three-year term that would expire on December 31, 2027. One applicant, Veronique Deam, withdrew their
application prior to interviews.

Persons interviewed were Joseph Wible and Bob Brew.

Council agreed that Bob Brew should move forward to appointment on the Budget Committee

2. Historic Commission Interviews
Tom Sievers stated there were four open vacancies on the Historic Commission due to term limits and
resignations, and recruitment for these vacancies opened February 25, 2025, and closed March 21, 2025. He said
the City received two applications, from Gary Jones and Charlotte Helmer.

Gary Jones was interviewed. Charlotte Helmer was not present to be interviewed, and Mr. Sievers noted the
absence may have been unavoidable and added she had been a member of the Commission whose term ended
December 2024.

Council requested that Charlotte Helmer’s application be take to council leadership for reappointment.

Council President Webber affirmed there was Council consensus to appoint Gary Jones and take the discussion of
Ms. Helmer’s application to Council Leadership.

3.  Bike Share Check-in
Drew Larson, Senior Transportation Planner stated the City Council approved a three-year pilot expansion
program of the PeaceHealth Rides bike share program into downtown Springfield in April 2024 and had
requested an annual check-in to review trip information and the operating budget. He said he also wanted to



explore plans for years two and three of the pilot program, which would include Lane Transit District’s (LTD)
efforts to improve the service. He said the City provided $16,500 for the first year of the pilot and LTD re-
committed funding of $50,000 for 2025 and to increase the number of bikes in the area, including Gateway, and
the MX station, possibly Meadow Park. He added bike valet services would be added at special events.

Members of council were encouraged by the number of users of the bike share program but would like to see the
numbers increase. Council offered suggestions on how the program could be more user friendly and cost
effective.

Mr. Larson confirmed he would report back on the program in a year.

ADJOURNMENT
Council President Webber adjourned the meeting at 6:45 p.m.

(Minutes prepared by Pam Berrian, LCOG)

Sean VanGordon
Mayor

Attest:

Allyson Pulido
City Recorder



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
   
S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

  

SUBJECT:
April 7, 2025 Draft City Council Regular Session Minutes

Attachments
April 7, 2025 Draft City Council Regular Session Minutes



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF
THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL

HELD MONDAY, APRIL 7, 2025

The Springfield City Council met in person and via Zoom on Monday, April 7, 2025, at 7:00 p.m.,
Council President Webber presiding.

CALL TO ORDER
Council President Webber called the City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. and noted the absence of
Mayor VanGordon.

ATTENDANCE
Council President Michelle Webber, and Councilors Steve Moe, Kori Rodley, Beth Blackwell, Victoria
Doyle, and Alan Stout

Absent: Mayor Sean VanGordon

STAFF PRESENT
City Manager Nancy Newton, Assistant City Manager Niel Laudati, City Attorney Mary Bridget Smith,
City Recorder Allyson Pulido, Administrative Specialist Jennifer Zarazua

SPRINGFIELD UPBEAT
1. Fair Housing Month Proclamation 2025
2.  National Library Week Proclamation 2025

CONSENT CALENDAR
1. Claims - None
2. Minutes

a. September 3, 2024, City Council Regular Session minutes
b. September 9, 2024, City Council Work Session minutes
c. September 16, 2024, City Council Work Session minutes
d. September 16, 2024, City Council Regular Session minutes

3. Resolutions
a. Acceptance of Project P 31087, Oxwood Subdivision

4. Ordinances – None
5. Other Routine Matters

a. Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission Pretreatment Program Reporting Obligations
for Tree Pretreatment Activities Outside of The Urban Growth Boundaries Intergovernmental
Agreement

MOTION: COUNCILOR RODELEY MOVED, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR DOYLE, TO
APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR.

The motion was approved unanimously 6 for and 0 against.
Webber Y
Moe Y
Rodley Y
Blackwell Y
Doyle Y
Stout Y



ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR - None

PUBLIC HEARINGS

1.  Ordinance Adopting Administrative Civil Penalties (ACP) And Public Nuisance Code
Amendments

Ordinance No. 1 - An Ordinance Amending Springfield Municipal Code Chapter 5 Regarding
Public Nuisances and Adopting Standards and Procedures For Administrative Civil Penalties
(ACP).

First reading only, no action requested

Charlie Kent said the Ordinance represented a significant update as to how the City handled nuisance
code enforcement. He said currently, code enforcement was a one-size-fits-all program that primarily
relied on the court system to resolve minor code violations.  He said the updated Ordinance introduced a
tool to resolve minor code violations that many cities have moved, the use of Administrative Civil
Penalties (ACP).

Council President Webber opened the public hearing. There were no requests to speak. She closed the
public hearing.

2.  Liquor License Endorsements For Renewal 2025-2026
Robin Holman reported that 186 businesses were up for renewal of their liquor license endorsements and
noted that liquor-related complaint call volumes were down compared to the same period last year.

Council President Webber opened the public hearing. There were no requests to speak. She closed the
public hearing.

MOTION: COUNCILOR RODLEY MOVED, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR DOYLE TO
RECOMMEND GRANTING LIQUOR LICENSE ENDORSEMENTS FOR RENEWAL 2025-2026 TO
THE OREGON LIQUOR AND CANNABIS COMMISSION

The motion was approved unanimously, 6 for and 0 against.
Webber Y
Moe Y
Rodley Y
Blackwell Y
Doyle Y
Stout Y

BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE
1. Lizzy Utterbuck, a resident of Ward 3, spoke in support of the library.
2. Jennifer Tucker spoke in support of library.
3.  Owen Ott, a resident of Ward 3 spoke in support of the library
4.  Mike Koivula, Ward 2, spoke about a wastewater line concern and he distributed written materials to
the Council.
5. Heather Millehrer- Huerta, spoke in support of the library
6.  Tim Olguin, a Springfield resident, said he was representing one of the middle housing code
developers siting three apartment units in Springfield.
7.  Elliott Harwell, a Ward 3 resident, spoke in support of Springfield Library.

CORRESPONDENCE - None



BIDS - None
ORDINANCES – None

1.  Glenwood Riverfront Annexation - Second Reading
Tom Sievers introduced this agenda item and noted that he had made a correction by changing language
relating to a Willakenzie Rural Fire Protection District at the suggestion of Councilor Moe.

MOTION: COUNCILOR RODELY MOVED, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR DOYLE TO
APPROVE AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY IN THE GLENWOOD
RIVERFRONT (MAP 17-03-34-41, TLs 400, 500, 700, 800, 900, 1000, 1300, & 1500; MAP 17-03-34-
42, TLs 100, 200,300, 400, 500, 501, 502, 503, 504, 600, 700, 800, 900, 1000, 1200, 1300, 1400, 1500,
1600, 1700,1800, 1900, 2000, & 2100) TO THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD; WITHDRAWING THE
SAME TERRITORY FROM APPLICABLE SPECIAL DISTRICTS; ADOPTING A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE;AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

The motion was approved unanimously 6 for and 0 against.
Webber Y
Moe Y
Rodley Y
Blackwell Y
Doyle Y
Stout Y

RESOLUTIONS – None

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL

Councilor Doyle stated she had attended a meeting of the Planning Commission last week and would
have more to report next week.

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER

1.  HOME-ARP Applications
Katie Carroll and Erin Fifield presented this item and stated the applicants were present to respond to
questions about two HOME-ARP Applications involving property at 1577 Laura Street, a .17-acre parcel
of land to be transferred from Lane County to the City of Springfield.

Ms. Carroll and Ms. Fifield described the two rental housing proposals, one submitted by Dev Northwest
(Laura Apartments) and the other submitted by Porch House LLC (Laura Street Homes). Ms. Fifield
recommended prioritization of the two projects because federal funding was complex, and prioritization
would broaden the options for funding. She noted that Eugene would not close on the funding until all
requirements were met.

Council confirmed their support for both projects but agreed that the project by Dev Northwest be
prioritized over the project of Porch House LLC.

MOTION: COUNCILOR RODLEY MOVED, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR DOYLE TO
RECOMMEND BOTH PROJECTS FOR HOME-ARP FUNDING TO THE HOME
GOVERNING BOARD WITH A PRIORITY ON THE DEV NORTHWEST LAURA
APARTMENTS PROPOSAL.

The motion was approved unanimously, 6 for and 0 against.



Webber Y
Moe Y
Rodley Y
Blackwell Y
Doyle Y
Stout Y

MOTION: COUNCILOR RODLEY MOVED SECONDED BY COUNCILOR DOYLE TO
AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE ALL NECESSARY
DOCUMENTS TO TRANSFER THE CITY-OWNED PROPERTY AT 1577 LAURA STREET
(MAP AND TAX LOT # 17-03-27-41- 05200) TO THE APPLICANT AWARDED HOME-ARP
FUNDS BY THE HOME GOVERNING BOARD.

The motion was approved unanimously 6 for and 0 against.
Webber Y
Moe Y
Rodley Y
Blackwell Y
Doyle Y
Stout Y

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY – None

ADJOURNMENT

Council President Webber adjourned the City Council meeting at 8:05 p.m.

(Minutes prepared by Pam Berrian, LCOG)

Sean VanGordon
Mayor

Attest:

Allyson Pulido
City Recorder



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
   
S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

  

SUBJECT:
April 14, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Minutes

Attachments
April 14, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Minutes



MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION
OF THE SPRINGFIELD   CITY
COUNCIL HELD MONDAY, APRIL
14, 2025

The Springfield City Council met in person and via Zoom on Monday, April 14, 2025, at 6:00 p.m.,
Mayor Sean VanGordon presiding.

CALL TO ORDER
Mayor VanGordon called the City Council work session to order at 6:00 p.m.

ATTENDANCE
Mayor VanGordon, Council President Michelle Webber, and Councilors Steve Moe, Kori Rodley, Beth
Blackwell, Victoria Doyle, and Alan Stout.

STAFF PRESENT
City Manager Nancy Newton, Assistant City Manager Niel Laudati, City Attorney Mary Bridget Smith,
City Recorder Allyson Pulido

GUESTS PRESENT
Anne Marie Levis, Funk Levis & Associates and Sarah Emmans, ECONorthwest

1.  Wastewater and Stormwater User Fees FY 2025-26
Matt Stouder, Environmental Services Director, and Jeff Paschall, Community Development Director,
presented this item and said staff sought Council direction establishing local wastewater and stormwater
rates. He said user fees for local and regional wastewater and local stormwater services were reviewed by
the Council annually as part of the City's budget process, and noted a public hearing was scheduled for
May 5, 2025. He added that the Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission (MWMC) approved
a schedule of FY 25-26 regional wastewater user fees on April 11, 2025, and would forward them to the
Cities of Springfield and Eugene.

After discussing the options, most of the council preferred option two as it allowed for more flexibility for
future planning.

2.  Springfield Fiscal Stability Task Force

Nathan Bell provided a slide presentation and said the Mayor convened a Fiscal Stability Task Force in
late 2024 in response to long-standing structural budget pressures and the growing need to plan for the
City's long-term fiscal health. He explained the task force was charged with developing a shared
understanding of City's services and finances and providing City Council with community-driven
recommendations for the sustainable funding of those services. The Task Force met January-March 2025.
Mr. Bell explained the goal of this work session was to provide the Council with a clear understanding of
the Task Force process and prepare for deeper discussions in May and June.

City Manager Newton referred to the 2020 the Portland State University Center for Public Service
independent assessment. She said the assessment did not include a scope for Fire governance but found:

 The City was financially well managed



 The City had lean operations
 The City had reduced property tax revenue compared to other municipalities
 There were no easy decisions to fix the structural imbalance
 Public Safety was the largest tax demand
 Levies do not cover full costs
 Development and Public Works costs were offset by fee revenue
 The City’s overhead rate was 10%, considered exceedingly low

City Manager Newton said she had a conversation with Mayor VanGordon and the decision was made to
establish a 2025 task force and enlist consultants with expertise in economic development, public policy,
and community engagement. She said Funk Levis and Associates and ECONorthwest were selected. She
added that Funk Levis and Associates provided facilitation and meeting design support, and
ECONorthwest conducted fiscal analysis, researched strategies, and would prepare the report that
reflected the body of work and recommendations of the task force.

Anne Marie Levis, Funk Levis and Associates, described the facilitation of the task force and said its
members were selected for their technical expertise. She emphasized that staff responded to task force
member questions, and did not drive its work. She said the task force concentrated on four areas:

 Cost cutting
 Revenue options
 Economic development
 Legislative proposals

Ms. Levis described task force membership and said members took a deep dive into the City’s finances,
and developed a group consensus on its recommendations for the final report:

Sarah Emmans, ECONorthwest showed comparable Oregon city analysis, fiscal comparisons, and census
data reflecting community and economic characteristics. She said the task force focused on operating
budgets across departments and the City’s major services. She provided a sample of the city-city
comparisons:

 Population and household comparisons
 Race and Ethnicity (and found similarities across all comparable cities).
 Household income and poverty comparisons, also considering that Eugene and Corvallis were

college communities.
 Employment and higher education comparisons
 Home values and rent
 Age and households with children
 Crime per 1,000
 Budget size and structure
 City taxes per capita; City revenues per capita; property tax rates/median assessed values

Council comments and questions

In response to council questions City Manager Newton explained that the charge to the task force was to
recover $4.5 million total over five years. She added that while the task force was meeting, she was
developing the budget, and she provided them information about the proposed cuts. She added that the



task force was aware the City Council had decision authority over the recommendations and that all
products of the task force were public record.  She said the information would be placed on the City's
website, including the video recordings of the meetings.

Mayor VanGordon suggested the City Council needed to choose the strategy to solve the issue and then
decide on its communications about the strategy.

ADJOURNMENT

Mayor VanGordon adjourned the meeting at 7:22 p.m.

(Minutes prepared by Pam Berrian, LCOG)

Sean VanGordon
Mayor

Attest:

Allyson Pulido
City Recorder



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
   
S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

  

SUBJECT:
April 21, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Minutes

Attachments
April 21, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Minutes



MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION
OF THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL

HELD MONDAY, APRIL 21, 2025

The Springfield City Council met in person and via Zoom on Monday, April 21, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., Mayor
Sean VanGordon presiding.

CALL TO ORDER
Mayor VanGordon called the City Council work session to order at 6:00 p.m.

ATTENDANCE
Mayor VanGordon, Council President Michelle Webber, and Councilors Steve Moe, Kori Rodley, Beth
Blackwell, Victoria Doyle, and Alan Stout.

STAFF PRESENT
City Manager Nancy Newton, Assistant City Manager Niel Laudati, City Attorney Mary Bridget Smith, City
Recorder Allyson Pulido

1. Arts Commission Annual Report to City Council

Mindy Linder introduced Chair Keith Bennett and former member Uyen‐Thi Nguyen. Mr. Bennett provided a
slide presentation describing the make-up of the Commission and illustrating key activities such as the 2nd
Friday Art Walk, the City Hall Art and Youth Gallery which uses a competitive selection process, its shared
musicians list, its marketing committee, its heritage arts grants, and its mural restoration.  Ms. Nguyen
described the outside mural restoration program, as an example of the creativity and successes while working
within constrained budgets and unexpected events.

Responding to a question from Council regarding funding, Ms. Linder explained that Transient Room Tax
funds were used to fund the Springfield Arts Commission; approximately $25,000 annually.

2. 2024 Annual Police Department Use of Force Report

Chief Jami Resch reflected on the Department’s ongoing commitment to transparency. She introduced Sgt.
Kyle Potter who managed the Professional Standards Division which included the work of Lily Wick. Sgt.
Potter said the report was a summary of the use of force used during 2024 and included recommendations to
further improve processes and training intended to reduce injuries, and the use of force.  He advised the report
was not just a snapshot, it was a foundational element of their work.

ADJOURNMENT

Mayor VanGordon adjourned the meeting at 6:59 p.m.

(Minutes prepared by Pam Berrian, LCOG

Sean VanGordon
Mayor

Attest:

Allyson Pulido
City Recorder



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
   
S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

  

SUBJECT:
April 21, 2025 Draft Joint Elected Officials Meeting Minutes

Attachments
April 21, 2025 Draft Joint Elected Officials Meeting Minutes



MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING OF
THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL AND

THE LANE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMSISIONERS
HELD MONDAY, APRIL 21, 2025

The Springfield City Council and the Lane County Board of Commissioners met in person and via Zoom on
Monday, April 21, 2025 at 7:00 p.m., Mayor Sean VanGordon and Chair Dave Loveall presiding.

CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Sean VanGordon called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m.
Board Chair Loveall called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m.

ATTENDANCE
Mayor Sean VanGordon, Council President Michelle Webber, and Councilors Steve Moe, Kori Rodley, Beth
Blackwell, Victoria Doyle, and Alan Stout

Chair David Loveall, Vice Chair Ryan Ceniga and Board Members Laurie Trieger and Heather Buch.
Absent: Board Member Pat Farr

STAFF PRESENT
City Manager Nancy Newton, Assistant City Manager Niel Laudati, Assistant City Attorney Kristina Kraaz,
City Recorder Allyson Pulido, Senior Planner Andy Limbird, Lane County Planner Jared Bauder, and Lane
County Counsel Rob Bovett

PUBLIC HEARING

1.  Request for a Type 4 Amendment to Sections 3.2.40 (Campus Industrial District) and 6.1.110
(definitions) of the Springfield Development Code

Mr. Bovett, County Council suggested Board members disclose whether they had an actual or potential
conflict of interest in this matter and noted it was a legislative action. Commissioners Trieger and Ceniga
stated they had no actual or potential conflict of interest. Commissioner Buch stated she holds real estate in
Springfield but did not think it was a conflict of interest. Chair Loveall stated he owned Masaka Properties and
property in Springfield, and said it was a potential conflict of interest.

Councilor Rodley stated there was a potential conflict of interest as she owned property in the Gateway area.
All other of the members of the Springfield City Council declared they had no actual or potential conflict of
interest in the matter.

Andy Limbird, senior planner said the amendment request was initiated by the property owner. He said the
applicant represented a business park and the amendment was sought because the applicant believed existing
code provisions were too limited for the described office use.

Mayor VanGordon invited the representatives of the applicant to comment. Andrea Phelps and Teresa Bischoff
stated they represented the applicant. Ms. Phelps stated that with medical clinics it may be difficult to limit
hours, but they would not provide inpatient services. She added that outpatient services would benefit the
nearby hospital and the general area. She said the building height, the setback, and the landscaping would
remain the same. She said there would be no ambulances or big trucks accessing the space.

Mayor VanGordon opened the public hearing. Chair Loveall declared it was the second reading of the
Ordinance for a Request for a Type 4 Amendment to Sections 3.2.40 (Campus Industrial District) and 6.1.110
(definitions) of the Springfield Development Code.

Public Testimony



1. Michael Gilardi, legal counsel for Richardson Sports, spoke in opposition to the code amendment. He
referenced his written testimony which included a map illustrating how that zone is trending towards a medical
dominant zone, that would further open the doors to medical uses. He said the amendment would refine the
definition of business park and would allow secondary uses such as daycare, restaurants, and other uses and
the City had not done the necessary facility planning for related to traffic or sanitation.

Staff had no response to this testimony.

Mayor VanGordon asked if the representatives of the applicant had a response. Ms. Bischoff provided an
example of what she considered primary and secondary use and encouraged elected officials to support the
Planning Commission's recommendation to allow clinic services that do not involve an overnight stay. Ms.
Phelps provided an example of other allowed public uses in the area.

Comments and Questions

Ms. Kraaz and Mr. Bovett outlined the options for the elected officials to postpone the meeting, keeping the
record open, and continuing the public hearing.

Mayor VanGordon determined the consensus of the Springfield City Council was to keep the public hearing
open to the meeting of May 5, 2025, at 7:00 p.m. at Springfield City Hall.

Chair Lovell determined that there was consensus of the Lane County Board of Commissioners for the same.
He said a vote was needed on the matter.

MOTION: COMMISSIONER TRIEGER MOVED. SECONDED BY VICE CHAIR CENIGA TO
APPROVE THE SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE 25-03, CONTINUE THE PUBLIC HEARING,
AND SET A THIRD READING TO A TIME AND DATE CERTAIN ON MAY 5, 2025 AT 7:00PM.

The motion was approved 4 for and 0 against, with Commissioner Farr absent
Loveall Y
Ceniga Y
Trieger Y
Buch Y
Farr Ab

ADJOURNMENT

Mayor VanGordon adjourned the Springfield City Council meeting at 7:54 p.m.
Chair Lovell adjourned the meeting of the Lane County Board of Commissioners at 7:54 p.m.

(Minutes prepared by Pam Berrian, LCOG)

Sean VanGordon
Mayor

Attest:

Allyson Pulido
City Recorder



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
   
S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

  

SUBJECT:
April 21, 2025 Draft City Council Regular Session Meeting Minutes

Attachments
April 21, 2025 Draft City Council Regular Session Meeting Minutes



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD

MONDAY, APRIL 21, 2025

The Springfield City Council met in person and via Zoom on Monday, April 21, 2025, Mayor Sean VanGordon
presiding.

CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Sean VanGordon called the City Council meeting to order at 7:57 p.m.

ATTENDANCE
Mayor Sean VanGordon, Council President Michelle Webber, and Councilors Steve Moe, Kori Rodley, Beth
Blackwell, Victoria Doyle, and Alan Stout

STAFF PRESENT
City Manager Nancy Newton, Assistant City Manager Niel Laudati, City Attorney Mary Bridget Smith, City
Recorder Allyson Pulido, Communications Coordinator Thomas Gray, Senior Planner Thomas Sievers, Code
Enforcement Program Manager, Comprehensive Planning Manager Sandy Belson, and Human Resources
Analyst Candace Steffen

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

SPRINGFIELD UPBEAT
1.  Springfield Upbeat: Earth Day Art Competition

CONSENT CALENDAR
Assistant City Manager Niel Laudati announced that an item had been removed from the consent calendar, the
Purchase of Radios for Police Officers.

1. Claims - None
2. Minutes

a. October 7, 2024, City Council Regular Session minutes
b. October 14, 2024, City Council Work Session minutes
c. October 21, 2024, City Council Work Session minutes
d. October 21, 2024, City Council Regular Session minutes

3. Resolutions - None
4. Ordinances

a.  Ordinance Adopting Administrative Civil Penalties and Public Nuisance Code Amendments
5. Other Routine Matters

a.  Budget Committee Applicant Appointment
b.  2025 Slurry Seal IGA
c.  Historic Commission applicant appointments

MOTION: COUNCILOR WEBBER MOVED, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR RODLEY TO APPROVE
THE CONSENT CALENDAR.

The motion was approved unanimously 6 for and 0 against.
Webber Y
Moe Y



Rodley Y
Blackwell Y
Doyle Y
Stout Y

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR –
1. Purchase of Radios for Police Officers

PUBLIC HEARINGS

1.  Request for a Street Name Change – Kiev Street to Kyiv Street

Ordinance No. 1: An Ordinance renaming Kiev Street, in the Uke Village Subdivision, to Kyiv Street, as
platted and recorded in book 73, pages 98 And 99, plat records of Lane County Oregon in Township 17
South, Range 3 West of the Willamette Miridian.

First Reading Only, No Action Requested

Thomas Sievers stated the Uke Village Subdivision was platted in 1978 and residents of the street requested
renaming to the geographically and culturally correct Ukrainian spelling of Kyiv. 

Mayor VanGordon opened the public hearing.

1. Cheryl Limbo lives on Kiev Street and supports the ordinance.
2. Linda Gonzalez lives on an adjacent street and supports the ordinance.
2. Kathy Johns supports the ordinance.
3. Candance McDonald lives on an adjacent street and supports the ordinance.
4. Charlotte Behm and supports the ordinance.
5. Andrew Schulyar stated he approved the petition for the name change.

Mayor VanGordon closed the public hearing.

Mayor VanGordon explained that action could not be taken that night and would be scheduled for May 5th.

BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE – None

COUNCIL RESPONSE – None

CORRESPONDENCE AND PETITIONS - None

BIDS - None

ORDINANCES – None

RESOLUTIONS
1.  Special Procurement for Springfield Home Repair Program

Sandy Belson explained the changes to the program that had been in place for 7 years. She said the program used
federal Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds to pay for home repairs and accessibility
improvements for very-low-income citizens.



MOTION:  COUNCILOR WEBBER MOVED, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR RODLEY TO APPROVE
A RESOLUTION OF THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL AS THE LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW
BOARD AMENDING A CLASS SPECIAL PROCUREMENT FOR SPRINGFIELD HOME REPAIR
CONTRACTS APPROVED UNDER RESOLUTION 2018-22 AND ADOPTING FINDINGS IN
SUPPORT.

The motion was approved unanimously 6 for and 0 against.
Webber Y
Moe Y
Rodley Y
Blackwell Y
Doyle Y
Stout Y

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL
Councilor Doyle reported she attended a meeting of the Springfield Utility Board (SUB) and explained Jeff
Nelson was retiring. She added there was a presentation from Judge Tierney, representing Smart Court, requesting
a $6,000 one-time donation to assist new graduates with utility related gap funding. She reported that the SUB
denied the request citing the existence of a current program to help people in need. She thanked staff for their
efforts to make the request.

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER
1.  Ratification of Contract with International Association of Firefighters (IAFF) 851 representing the
firefighter labor contract

Candace Steffen stated that staff concluded negotiations with IAFF for a three-year successor labor contract
spanning July 1, 2024 – June 30, 2027, pending ratification by union membership and the City Council. She said
the contract aligned with City Council guidance and described the changes in the agreement and the cost impact.

MOTION: COUNCILOR WEBBER MOVED, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR RODLEY TO
AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO RATIFY COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT
WITH IAFF

The motion was approved; 5 for, 0 against, one absent (Councilor Moe stepped out of the room during the
vote)
Webber Y
Moe Ab
Rodley Y
Blackwell Y
Doyle Y
Stout Y

2.  Ratification of Contract with International Association of Firefighters (IAFF) 851 Representing the
Battalion Chief Labor Contract

Candace Steffen stated that staff had concluded negotiations with IAFF for a two-year successor labor contract
spanning July 1, 2024, to June 30, 2026.  She said the two-year agreement was pending notification by union
membership in the City Council and that the contract aligned with council guidance and described the agreement
and its cost.



MOTION: COUNCILOR WEBBER MOVED, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR RODLEY TO
AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO RATIFY COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT
WITH IAFF.

The motion was approved unanimously 6 for and 0 against.
Webber Y
Moe Y
Rodley Y
Blackwell Y
Doyle Y
Stout Y

3.  City Manager Newton acknowledged her five years of service as City Manager and stated she continued to be
honored to be Springfield’s City Manager and was delighted with the community and the professionalism of
employees. She added that the interest of Ukrainian neighbors was just one example of what made Springfield
rich and welcoming, and she thanked the City Council for all their contributions.

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY – None

ADJOURNMENT

Mayor VanGordon adjourned the City Council meeting at 8:27 p.m.

(Minutes prepared by Pam Berrian, LCOG)

Sean VanGordon
Mayor

Attest:

Allyson Pulido
City Recorder



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
   
S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

  

SUBJECT:
April 28, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Meeting Minutes

Attachments
April 28, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Meeting Minutes



MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION
OF THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL

HELD MONDAY, APRIL 28, 2025

The Springfield City Council met in person and via Zoom on Monday, April 28, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., Mayor Sean
VanGordon presiding.

CALL TO ORDER
Mayor VanGordon called the City Council work session to order at 6:00 p.m.

ATTENDANCE
Mayor VanGordon, Council President Michelle Webber, and Councilors Steve Moe, Kori Rodley, Beth
Blackwell, Victoria Doyle, and Alan Stout.

STAFF PRESENT
City Manager Nancy Newton, Assistant City Manager Niel Laudati, City Attorney Mary Bridget Smith, City
Recorder Allyson Pulido

1. Affordable Housing Department of Administrative Services Grant Funding Award Update

City Manager Newton stated that during the 2021 Oregon Legislative Session, the City was awarded $620,000 in
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds to support long-term affordable housing in Springfield. She said staff
recommended allocating $500,000 in ARPA funds to support two currently underway affordable housing
developments by DevNW located at 190 S. 41st Street and 1577 Laura Street. She said DevNW would be
responsible for verifying the eligibility of all residents living in the grant-funded units and has committed to fully
expending the grant funds by December 31, 2026.

City Manager Newton said the remaining $120,000 of the grant would be utilized for a future affordable home
ownership development future opportunity, as defined by the grant intent.

Mayor VanGordon concluded the Council supported the bringing the item to the Council for approval on May 5th.

2. Sanipac Annual Rate Adjustment

Jeff Paschall stated that in accordance with the franchise agreement, Sanipac requested an 2.6% increase in rates
effective July 1, 2025, based on the CPI increase and other operating cost increases such as increases to landfill
tipping fees and labor rates. He added that staff would provide guidance and feedback on Sanipac’s proposed fee
increase as part of the City’s Master Fees & Charges update for review at a later meeting.  He introduced Aaron
Donnelly form Sanipac, to provide information about the Oregon Community Recycling Modernization
Recycling Act (the Act), to take effect July 2025.

Aaron Donnelly from Sanipac a presentation which included a 2017-18 overview of major changes in recycling
markets when China refused to recycle many products, in part due to food contamination. He said the Act would
standardize the list of recycling materials allowed in the recycling container, no matter the City or the company.
He reviewed the new materials allowed such as plant container hard plastics, and metal pots, and pans, and noted
items still not allowed, such as light bulbs, batteries, no plastic bags.



Mayor VanGordon concluded there was a City Council consensus for a 2.6% rate increase.

3. Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) 2024 Report

Michael Liebler introduced Keith Dickey, BPAC Chair, to provide an overview of the report.

Keith Dickey stated it was his third year on the committee. He said the BPAC had a productive year in 2024 and
made meaningful progress on several fronts, highlighted in the report, including conducting two Safe Street
Audits (one for bicycle and one for walking) and engaging in community outreach at major Springfield events.

ADJOURNMENT

Mayor VanGordon adjourned the meeting at 7:00 p.m.

(Minutes prepared by Pam Berrian, LCOG)

Sean VanGordon
Mayor

Attest:

Allyson Pulido
City Recorder



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
 Meeting Type:       Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept:  Amanda Clinton/Community Development

S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:
Estimated Time:  Consent Calendar
Council Goals:  Community and Economic Development and

Revitalization

ITEM TITLE:
Award Contract To Morganic Roots Eco Firm for the Franklin Phase 1 Maintenance, P51073

ACTION REQUESTED:
Approve or reject the following motion:  
Approve the contract with a not-to-exceed budget of $112,650 for the Franklin Blvd Phase 1 maintenance and
upkeep of the Franklin Phase 1 green infrastructure and authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute all
necessary documents to carry out the grant agreement with Morganic Roots Eco Firm.

ISSUE STATEMENT:
The proposed work involves ongoing landscape maintenance of the green infrastructure along Franklin Boulevard
phase 1. The contract includes a two-year base term, with the possibility of up to three one-year extensions, for a
maximum duration of five years. If approved, Morganic Roots Eco Firm will be responsible for maintaining the area
in a consistently clean, orderly, and visually appealing condition while adhering to all applicable safety standards,
environmental regulations, traffic control requirements, and jurisdictional guidelines. The City will perform routine
inspections and annual evaluations to ensure compliance with performance expectations throughout the term of the
contract.
 

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
It has been determined that the ongoing landscape maintenance of the green infrastructure along Franklin Boulevard
phase 1 requires more consistent care and cleanup than City resources can currently provide.  The landscaping was
designed and installed to serve a dual purpose, beautification and cleaning stormwater.  Maintaining this green
infrastructure is critical to meeting requirements within the City's Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4)
Permit issued by the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality.  It is therefore recommended that the City enter
into a contract for landscape services to bring the area to a maintainable condition while ensuring it remains clean,
orderly, and visually appealing for City maintenance and beautification.
 
The City will conduct routine inspections, maintain regular communication with the maintenance contractor, and
provide annual evaluations to ensure compliance with performance expectations throughout the contract term.
Funding for this contract will be provided through local stormwater funds.

Attachments
1. Stamped Contract



Contract #C3990 

{00026318:1}  

 
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD 

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT CONTRACT  
FOR USE WITH OREGON STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION 

PROJECT # P51073 

 
Dated:   10/01/2025 
 
Parties: City of Springfield                                “CITY” 

A Municipal Corporation of the State of Oregon  
225 5th Street 
Springfield, OR 97477                

         and 
   

Morganic Roots Eco Firm, LLC  “Contractor” 
  

Additional Contractor Information: 
 

a) Type of Entity:    Sole Proprietorship   Partnership 
 Limited Liability Comp         Corporation 

b)   Address:     252 S M Street, Cottage Grove, OR 97424 
   
c) Telephone:   541-953-4047 

   
d) If Applicable, Listed among the Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-Procurement Programs 

found at: https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/:  Yes   No   
 

City Account Number(s) To Be Charged (Include Percentages):  
 

Account Number Percentage 

617-07300-8800-800000-P51073 100% 
  

  
 

RECITALS 
 
Contractor was the successful bidder for the contract for the construction of the public improvement project 
described in the plans and specifications for the project that were included in the bid documents and the 2021 
Oregon Standard Specifications for Construction, issued by the Oregon Department of Transportation, as 
modified by the City’s Amendments to the Specifications for the Project and any other Supplemental 
Specifications and Special Provisions included in the Bid Documents (all specifications, plans, Standard 
Drawings, Supplemental Specifications and Special Provisions included in the Contract are collectively referred 
to herein 
as the “Specifications”) which form a part of the Contract. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. The Contract. The Contract between the City and Contractor (the “Contract”) includes this Document 
and its exhibits, together with all of the documents and materials included in the definition of the 
“Contract Documents” in 00110.20 of the Specifications. In addition, the Contract between the City and 

Attachment 1
1 of 62 



Contract #C3990 

{00026318:1}  

Contractor shall be deemed to incorporate all reports, records, laws, rules and orders referenced in the 
Contract documents. 
 
This Document includes and incorporates the following Exhibits: 

Exhibit A - Solicitation Documents. 
 

2. Definitions.  Unless otherwise specifically defined in this Document, all capitalized terms which are 
not proper nouns shall have the meanings assigned thereto in the Specifications. 
 

3. Project.  The project is generally described as: 

Landscaping maintenance for comprehensive care and upkeep of the green infrastructure on Franklin 
Blvd., as detailed in the bid materials. The awarded contract will have a base term of two (2) years, 
with the possibility of up to three (3) additional one-year extensions, for a maximum total term of five 
(5) years. 

4. Work to be Performed. Contractor agrees to furnish all services, labor, materials and equipment for 
and to construct the improvement listed above (the “Project”), according to the Bid Documents (“the 
Work”) and according to the provisions of the Contract. All parts of the Work are the sole responsibility 
of Contractor. 
 

5. Time of Commencement and Completion. Time is of the Essence of the Contract. The time in 
which Contractor shall commence, prosecute and complete the Work is described in Section 00180 of 
the Specifications. 
 

6. Contract Amount.  The Contract Amount is $112,650 and consists of unit prices bid by Contractor 
multiplied by estimated quantities, together with lump sum amounts for portions of the Work, as 
described on Contractor’s Bid attached hereto. The actual sum payable to Contractor for the Work shall 
be based on lump sum amounts and actual quantities, as modified by Change Orders and adjustments 
made in accordance with the Specifications. Payment will be made as provided in the Specifications. 

  
7. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall 

indemnify, defend (with counsel approved by City) and hold harmless the parties as described in 
00170.72 of the Specifications. 
 

8. Insurance.  Contractor shall maintain in force for the duration of the Contract the insurance 
coverages specified in 00170.70 of the Specifications. Each policy required by these provisions shall be 
written as a primary policy, not contributing with or in excess of any coverage which City may carry. 
Unless otherwise specified, each policy shall be written on an "occurrence" form with an admitted 
insurance carrier licensed to do business in the state of Oregon.  In the event the statutory limit of 
liability of a public body for claims arising out of a single accident or occurrence is increased above the 
combined single limit coverage requirements specified below, City shall have the right to require 
Contractor to increase Contractor's coverages by the amount of the statutory limit increase for such 
claims and to increase the aggregate coverage by an amount that is twice as large as the statutory 
increase. The adequacy of all insurance required under the Contract shall be subject to approval by 
City's Risk Manager. Failure to maintain any insurance coverage required by the Contract shall be cause 
for immediate termination of the Contract by City. 

 
8.1. Evidence of Insurance Coverage.  Evidence of the required insurance coverages issued by an 

insurance company satisfactory to the City shall be provided to the City by way of a City 
approved certificate of insurance before any work or services commence. 

 
8.2. Notice of Cancellation or Material Change in Coverage.  The certificate of insurance shall 

contain a requirement that the Insurance company notify the City 30 days prior to any cancellation 
Attachment 1

2 of 62 



Contract #C3990 

{00026318:1}  

or material change in coverage.  If the approved insurance company will not provide this 30 
day notice, the Contractor shall provide written notice to the City contract manager within two 
days after the Contractor becomes aware that their coverage has been canceled or has been 
materially changed.  The Contractor shall send notice or email it directly to Sr. Contract Analyst, 
Amanda Clinton at aclinton@springfield-or.gov.  Regardless of what circumstances cause 
Contractor’s insurance coverage to cease or be modified, it is the Contractor’s responsibility to 
notify the City.   Failure to maintain proper insurance or provide notice of cancellation or 
modification shall be grounds for immediate termination of this contract. 

 
9. Performance and Payment Bonds.  Prior to the commencement of the Work, Contractor shall 

provide good and sufficient performance and payment bonds as described in 00130.40 of the 
Specifications for approval by City and in the form of the bonds included in the Solicitation Documents. 
 

10. Termination and Suspension. City may terminate the Contract or suspend the Work at any time as 
provided in 00180 of the Specifications. 
 

11. Nonresident Contractors. 
 
11.1. When a public contract is awarded to a nonresident bidder and the contract price exceeds 

$10,000, the bidder shall promptly report to the Department of Revenue on forms to be provided 
by the department the total contract price, terms of payment, length of contract and such other 
information as the department may require before the bidder may receive final payment on the 
public contract. The contracting agency shall satisfy itself that the requirement of this subsection 
has been complied with before the contracting agency issues a final payment on a public contract. 
 

11.2. As used in this paragraph, “nonresident contractor” means a contractor that: (A) has not paid 
unemployment taxes or income taxes in the state of Oregon during the 12 calendar months 
immediately preceding submission of the bid for the contract, (B) does not have a business 
address in this state and (C) stated in the bid for the contract that it was not a “resident bidder” 
under ORS 279A.120. 

 
12. Default; Remedies. Upon Contractor’s default or if in the public interest, City may terminate the 

Contract and take all other remedial actions available to City, as further specified in the 00180.90 of 
the Specifications. Without limiting the City’s right to disqualify Contractor pursuant to ORS279C.440, if 
Contractor willfully violates any of the provisions of sections EC 4.615 to 4.650 of The Eugene Code, 
1971 or any of the provisions of State law or City’s administrative rules governing public contracts, or if 
Contractor knowingly files false affidavits or certificates of compliance required under the Contract, 
Contractor shall waive for a period of one year any right to bid upon any public improvement project let 
by City. City's claims for damages and any other equitable relief available to City resulting from 
Contractor's breach shall survive a termination of the Contract. 
 

13. Liquidated Damages. In the event the Work is not completed within the contract time as specified in 
the Contract, Contractor shall pay to City liquidated damages, as further specified in 00180.85 of the 
Specifications.  
 

14.  Notices.  Any written notices permitted or required by the Contract shall be delivered according to 
00150.30 of the Specifications to the attention of the representatives of the parties set for below, or 
such other address and/or numbers as either party may provide to the other by notice given in 
accordance with this provision. 
 
Contractor:     Morganic Roots Eco Firm, Arnold Emmanuel Morgan, Jr, Owner, 541-953-4047 

 
City:     Ben Gibson, Operations Maintenance Manager, City of Springfield, 541-726-2197 
 

Attachment 1
3 of 62 



Contract #C3990 

{00026318:1}  

15. Contract Documents; Interpretation. Where possible, all parts of the Contract shall be interpreted 
in a manner that avoids conflict between the various documents and their provisions. In the event that 
any provision of this Document conflicts with any provision of the Specifications, the discrepancy will be 
resolved in the order of precedence in 00150.10 of the Specifications. 

 
16. Dispute Resolution.  All disagreements, protests, and claims relating to the Contract, including claims 

for additional compensation and time for performance and completion of the Work, must be resolved 
according to section 00199 of the Specifications. 
 

17. Venue & Choice of Law.  The Contract shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles of conflict of laws. If federal funding is 
included in the Contract, applicable Federal requirements govern in the event of conflicts among 
Federal, State and local laws. Any dispute between the Agency and the Contractor that arises from or 
relates to this Contract and is not resolved under the provisions of 00199 of the Specifications, shall be 
brought in the forum described in 00170.00. 
 

18. Force Majeure.  If Contractor is delayed by reason of weather, fire, riot, strikes, acts of God or other 
circumstances beyond Contractor’s reasonable control, City may terminate this Agreement in writing to 
Contractor after determining such delay or default will unreasonably prevent successful performance of 
the Contract.  If City elects not to terminate the Contract, Contractor will be entitled to additional time 
to complete the Contract equal to that lost by an or all of the above causes. 
 

19. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is declared by a court to be illegal or in conflict with 
any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions will not be affected; the rights and 
obligations of the parties will be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the 
particular provision held to be invalid.  

 
20. Waiver.  Failure of City to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver or 

relinquishment by City of the right to such performance in the future nor of the right to enforce any 
other provision of this Agreement. 

 
21. Amendments.  The terms of this Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or 

amended in any manner whatsoever, without prior written approval of City.  No modification of this 
Agreement shall bind either party unless reduced to writing and subscribed by both parties, or ordered 
by a Court. 

 
22. Assignment/Subcontract.  Contractor shall not assign, sell, transfer, subcontract or sublet rights, or 

delegate responsibilities under this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written approval of 
City.  No such written approval shall relieve Contractor of any obligations of this Agreement, and any 
transferee or subcontractor shall be considered the agent of Contractor.  Contractor shall remain liable 
as between the original parties to this Agreement as if no such assignment had occurred. 
 

23. Compliance with All Government Regulations.  Contractor shall comply with all Federal, State 
and local laws, codes, regulations and ordinances applicable to the work performed under this 
Agreement.  Failure to comply with such requirements shall constitute a breach of contract and shall be 
grounds for termination of this Agreement.  Damages or costs resulting from noncompliance shall be 
the sole responsibility of Contractor.  This section includes, but is not limited to, compliance with all 
applicable requirements of Federal and State civil rights statutes, rules, and regulations, and all 
applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 USC Section 12101 et seq. and 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. 

 
24. Construction of Agreement.  This Contract shall not be construed more favorably to City due to the 

preparation of this Contract by City.  The headings and subheadings in this Contract are for 
convenience, do not form a part of this Contract, and shall not be used in construing this Contract. 

Attachment 1
4 of 62 



Contract #C3990 

{00026318:1}  

 
25. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement signed by both parties is the parties’ final and entire Agreement 

and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous oral or written communications between the parties, 
their agents and representatives.  There are no representations, promises, terms, conditions or 
obligations other than those contained herein. 
 

26. Third Party Beneficiaries. The parties to the Contract do not intend to confer on any third party any 
rights under the Contract, except as otherwise described in 00170.79 of the Specifications. All 
Subcontractors are third parties. 
 

27. Survival. Any obligation arising under the Contract which is not, or cannot be performed or paid prior 
to the expiration or termination of the Contract, including, but not limited to, all provisions concerning 
the quality of the Work, warranties and obligations for payment, indemnification, and reimbursement, 
shall survive termination or expiration of the Contract. 

 
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD:  CONTRACTOR:     
   
By:   By:  

Name:   Name:  

Title:   Title:  

Date:   Date:  

     
 

Attachment 1
5 of 62 

kskraaz
Typewriter
9/29/2025



ATTACHMENT 1

Attachment 1
6 of 62 



Attachment 1
7 of 62 



Attachment 1
8 of 62 



Attachment 1
9 of 62 



Attachment 1
10 of 62 



Attachment 1
11 of 62 



Attachment 1
12 of 62 



Attachment 1
13 of 62 



Attachment 1
14 of 62 



Attachment 1
15 of 62 



Attachment 1
16 of 62 



Attachment 1
17 of 62 



Attachment 1
18 of 62 



Attachment 1
19 of 62 



Attachment 1
20 of 62 



Attachment 1
21 of 62 



Attachment 1
22 of 62 



PREVAILING WAGE RATE INFORMATION 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

ITB7 Rev. 7-10-2024 

Prevailing Wage Rates information can be found at the following  website:

BOLI : Prevailing Wage Rates : For Employers : State of Oregon

For the proper Prevailing Wage Rates applicable to this project, please refer to the 
following publications:

1) Prevailing Wage Rate Publication; Prevailing Wage Rates for Public Works Contracts in 
Oregon, effective July 5th, 2025.

a) PWR Apprenticeship Rates Effective July 5th, 2025

Effective January 1, 2023, Senate Bill 588 removes the exemption of sick time for employees 
covered by a collective bargaining agreement. You can find a list of frequently-asked-
questions at BOLI’s website:
https://www.oregon.gov/boli/employers/Documents/FAQ%20for%20SB%20588.pdf.  For any 
questions regarding sick time, please contact BOLI’s Employer Assistance Program at 971-361-
8400 or  employer.assistance@boli.oregon.gov.

If you have prevailing wage rate questions, please contact the  Wage and Hour Division’s 
Prevailing Wage Rate Unit at 971-245-3844, Option 2,  or  PWR.Email@boli.oregon.gov.

Attachment 1
23 of 62 



Attachment 1
24 of 62 



Attachment 1
25 of 62 



Attachment 1
26 of 62 



Attachment 1
27 of 62 



Attachment 1
28 of 62 



Attachment 1
29 of 62 



Attachment 1
30 of 62 



Attachment 1
31 of 62 



Attachment 1
32 of 62 



Attachment 1
33 of 62 



Attachment 1
34 of 62 



Attachment 1
35 of 62 



Attachment 1
36 of 62 



Attachment 1
37 of 62 



Attachment 1
38 of 62 



Attachment 1
39 of 62 



Attachment 1
40 of 62 



Attachment 1
41 of 62 



Attachment 1
42 of 62 



Attachment 1
43 of 62 



Attachment 1
44 of 62 



Attachment 1
45 of 62 



Attachment 1
46 of 62 



Attachment 1
47 of 62 



Attachment 1
48 of 62 



Attachment 1
49 of 62 



Attachment 1
50 of 62 



Attachment 1
51 of 62 



Attachment 1
52 of 62 



Attachment 1
53 of 62 



Attachment 1
54 of 62 



Attachment 1
55 of 62 



Attachment 1
56 of 62 



Attachment 1
57 of 62 



Attachment 1
58 of 62 



Attachment 1
59 of 62 



Attachment 1
60 of 62 



Attachment 1
61 of 62 



Attachment 1
62 of 62 



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
 Meeting Type:       Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept:  Robin Holman/Community Development

S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No: 541-726-3662
Estimated Time:  Consent Calendar
Council Goals:  Mandate

ITEM TITLE:
Liquor license application for a new license for Richard E. Wildish Community Theater, DBA: Richard E. Wildish
Community Theater.

ACTION REQUESTED:
Endorsement of OLCC Liquor License Application for Richard E. Wildish Community Theater, located at 630
Main Street, Springfield, OR 97477.

ISSUE STATEMENT:
The owner Richard E. Wildish Community Theater has requested the City Council to endorse its OLCC Liquor
License Application.

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The license endorsement for Richard E. Wildish Community Theater, DBA: Richard E. Wildish Community Theater
is for a New License for Limited On-Premises Sales.  The license application has been reviewed and approved by the
appropriate City Departments.

Attachments
1. OLCC Liquor License Application



OREGON LIQUOR & CANNABIS COMMISSION 
Local Government Recommendation – Liquor License 

 Form |Page 1
Rev 10.14.24

Annual Liquor License Types 
Off-Premises Sales 
Limited On-Premises Sales 
Full On-Premises, Caterer 
Full On-Premises, Commercial 
Full On-Premises,�For�Profit�Private�Club 
Full On-Premises,�Non�Profit�Private�Club 
Full On-Premises, Other Public Location 
Full On-Premises, Public Passenger Carrier 

Brewery-Public House 
Brewery  
Distillery 
Grower Sales Privilege  
Winery 
Wholesale Malt Beverage & Wine 
Warehouse 

Section 1 – Submission – To be completed by Applicant: 

License Information 

Legal Entity/Individual Applicant Name(s): 

Proposed Trade Name: 

Premises Address:  Unit: 

City: County: Zip: 

Application Type: New License Application Change of Ownership   Change of Location 

License Type: Additional Location for an Existing License 

Application Contact Information 

Contact Name: Phone: 

Mailing Address: 

City: State: Zip: 

Email Address: 

Business Details 
Please check all that apply to your proposed business operations at this location: 

Manufacturing/Production  

Retail Off-Premises Sales  

Retail On-Premises Sales & Consumption 
If there will be On-Premises Consumption at this location: 

Indoor Consumption Outdoor Consumption 

Proposing to Allow Minors 

Section 1 continued on next page 

Richard E. Wildish Community Theater

Richard E. Wildish Community Theater

630 Main St

Springfield Lane 97477

Limited On-Premises Sales

Camron Purdum 5418680689

PO Box 1260

Springfield OR 97477

camron@wildishtheater.com

Attachment 1
Page 1 of 2



OREGON LIQUOR & CANNABIS COMMISSION 
Local Government Recommendation – Liquor License 

 Form |Page 2
Rev 10.14.24

 

 

 

Section 1 Continued – Submission - To be completed by Applicant: 

Legal Entity/Individual Applicant Name(s): 

Proposed Trade Name: 

    IMPORTANT:  You MUST submit this form to the local government PRIOR to submitting to OLCC.  
  Section 2 must be completed by the local government for this form to be accepted  
  with your CAMP application. 
 

 
 

 

Section 2 – Acceptance - To be completed by Local Government: 

Local Government Recommendation Proof of Acceptance 
After accepting this form, please return a copy to the applicant with received and accepted information 

City or County Name: Optional Date Received Stamp 

Date Application Received:  

Received by:  

 
 

 

Section 3 – Recommendation - To be completed by Local Government: 

 Recommend this license be granted 

 Recommend this license be denied (Please include documentation that meets OAR 845-005-0308) 

 No Recommendation/Neutral 

Name of Reviewing Official: 

Title: 

Date: 

Signature: 

After providing your recommendation and signature, please return this form to the applicant. 

 

Richard E. Wildish Community Theater

Richard E. Wildish Community Theater

Attachment 1
Page 2 of 2

rholman
Typewriter
City of Springfield

rholman
Typewriter
9/23/2025

rholman
Typewriter
Robin Holman



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
 Meeting Type:       Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept:  Robin Holman/Community Development

S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No: 541-726-3662
Estimated Time:  Consent Calendar
Council Goals:  Mandate

ITEM TITLE:
Liquor license application for a new license for TNT Pizza LLC, DBA: Track Town Pizza.  

ACTION REQUESTED:
Endorsement of OLCC Liquor License Application for Track Town Pizza, located at 5809 A Street, Springfield, OR
97478.

ISSUE STATEMENT:
The owner TNT Pizza LLC has requested the City Council to endorse its OLCC Liquor License Application.  

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The license endorsement for TNT Pizza LLC, DBA: Track Town Pizza is for a New License for Limited On-
Premises Sales.  The license application has been reviewed and approved by the appropriate City Departments. 

Attachments
OLCC Liquor License Application



oREGON LTQUOR & CANNABIS COMMISSION

Loca! Government Recommendation - Liquor License

Off-Premises Sales

Limited On-Premises Sales

Full On-Prem ises, Caterer
Full On-Premises, Commercial
Full On-Premises, For Profit Private Club

Full On-Premises, Non Profit Private Club

Full On-Premises, Other Public Location

Full On-Premises, Public Passenger Carrier

Brewery-Public House

Brewery
Distillery
Grower Sales Privilege
Winery
Wholesale Malt Beverage & Wine
Warehouse

Legal Entity/lndividualApplicant Name(s): TNT Pizza, LLC dba Track Town Pizza

Proposed Trade Name: Track TownPizza

Premises Address: 5809 A Street Unit:

City: Springfield County: Lane Zip:97478

Application Type: @ N"* License Application Q ch.ng" of ownership O ct,rng" of Location

License Type: Limited On-Premises Sales Liquor License [Jl aaaitional Location for an Existing License

Contact Name: Tim Hill

Mailing Address: 1809 Franklin Blvd.

City: Eugene

Email Address: tracktownp@comcast.net

Zip: 97403

Phone: 541-284-8484

State: OR

Please check all that apply to your proposed business operations at this location:

! uanufacturing/Production

! n"trit off-Premises Sales

I netail On-Premises Sales & Consumption

I

lf there will be On-Premises Consumption at this location

[] tndoor Consumption lrl outdoor consumption

Proposing to Allow Minors

License lnformation

Form I Page 1

Rev L0.14.24

Annual Liquor License Types

Section 1- Submission - To be completed by Applicant:

Application Contact lnformation

Business Details

Section 1 continued on next page

Attachment 1
Page 1 of 2



oREGON LTQUOR & CANNABIS COMMISSION

Loca! Government Recommendation - Liquor License

Legal Entity/lndividualApplicant Name(s): TNT Pizza, LLC dba Track Town Pizza

Proposed Trade Name: Track TownPizza

IMPORTANT: You MUST submit this form to the local government PRIOR to submitting to OLCC.

Section 2 must be completed by the locol government for this form to be accepted
with your CAMP application.

Local Government Recommendation Proof of Acceptance

After accepting this form, please return a copy to the applicant with received and accepted information

City or County Name: Optional Date Received Stamp

Date Application Received:

Received by:

O R".ormend this license be granted

Q neco.mend this license be denied (please include documentation that meets oiB JAs,-00,s'0308)

O ftf o Recommendation/Neutra I

Name of Reviewing Official:

Title:

Date:

Signature:

After providing your recommendation and signature, please return this form to the applicant.

Form lPage2
Rev 10.14.24

Section 1 Continued - Submission - To be completed by Applicant:

Section 2 -Acceptance - To be completed by Local Government:

Section 3 - Recommendation - To be completed by Local Government:

Attachment 1
Page 2 of 2

rholman
Typewriter
City of Springfield

rholman
Typewriter
9/9/2025

rholman
Typewriter
Robin Holman



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
 Meeting Type:       Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept:  Robin Holman/Community Development

S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No: 541-726-3662
Estimated Time:  Consent Calendar
Council Goals:  Mandate

ITEM TITLE:
Liquor license application for a new license for Bartolotti Management LLC, DBA: Sophia's.

ACTION REQUESTED:
Endorsement of OLCC Liquor License Application for Sophia's, located at 330 Main Street Unit B, Springfield, OR
97477.

ISSUE STATEMENT:
The owner Bartolotti Management LLC has requested the City Council to endorse its OLCC Liquor License
Application.  

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The license endorsement for Bartolotti Management LLC, DBA: Sophia's is for a New License for Full On-Premises
Sales.  The license application has been reviewed and approved by the appropriate City Departments. 

Attachments
OLCC Liquor License Application



OREGON LIQUOR & CANNABIS COMMISSION

Local Government Recommendation - Liquor License

Off-Premises Sales

Limited On-Prem ises Sales

Full On-Premises, Caterer
Full On-Premises, Commercial
FullOn-Premises, For Profit Private Club

Full On-Premises, Non Profit Private Club

Full On-Premises, Other Public Location
Full On-Premises, Public Passenger Carrier

Brewery-Public House

Brewery
Distillery
Grower Sales Privilege
Winery
Wholesale Malt Beverage & Wine
Warehouse

Legal Entity/tndividual Applicant Name(s): $flnfOuerrt
Proposed Trade Namer .tPil r A'S
PremisesAddress: 39 InAt ,.,t Sf

County: LAN€. zip: f 7 1t"21

G cnrns"of ownership O cnrns"of Location

LicenserYpet (|ULL ON _?e$\t56 _ rA

rf\ANlAGUlnqsf t-t-L
pr

city: sPar
New License ApplicationApplication Type:

Additional Location for an Existing License

Unit: 6

Contact Name: STAE 5r, / ru r,*/

MailingAddress: 3aqa_t 5/J€(l0n^ Li)
city: Sp-lN 6fi8 Jt state: OL
EmailAddress: fiLssetpS+tr ru I @y ApGD

phone: Sa / 7SV

a1 q1BZip:

t

Please check all that apply to your proposed business operations at this location:

Manufacturing/Prod uction

fl netait off-Premises sales

ffinetait On-Premises Sales & Consumption

Consurlprtion at this location:

pfoutaoor consumptionConsumption

n

lf there will be On-Premises

to Allow Minors

Form lPage 1

Rev 10.14.24

Annual Liquor License Types

Section 1 - Submission - To be completed by Applicant:

License lnformation

Application Contact lnformation

Business Details

Section l continued on next page

Attachment 1
Page 1 of 2



a

Iorcc OREGON LIQUOR & CANNABIS COMMISSION

Local Government Recommendation - Liquor License

IMPORTANT: You MUST submit this form to the local government PRIOR to submitting to OLCC.

Section 2 must be completed by the local government for this form to be accepted
with your CAMP application.

r,A SI5cP'
Legal Entity/l ndivid ua I Applicant Name(s):

Proposed Trade Name:

Local Government Recommendation Proof of Acceptance

After accepting this form, please return a copy to the applicant with received and accepted information

City or County Name: Optional Date Received Stamp

Date Application Received:

Received by:

O n".ormend this license be granted

Q R"aotmend this license be denied (please include documentation that meets oAR 845-005-0308)

O rrro Recommendation/Neutral

Name of Reviewing Official:

Title:

Date:

Signature:

After providing your recommendation and signature, please return this form to the applicant.

Form lPage t
Rev 10.14.24

Section 1 Continued - Submission - To be completed by Applicant:

Section 2 *Acceptance - To be completed by Local Government:

Section 3 - Recommendation - To be completed by Local Government:

Attachment 1
Page 2 of 2

rholman
Typewriter
City of Springfield

rholman
Typewriter
9/10/2025

rholman
Typewriter
Robin Holman



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
 Meeting Type:       Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept:  Vahana Horn/Finance

S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:
Estimated Time:  Consent Calendar
Council Goals:  Financially Responsible and Stable Government

Services

ITEM TITLE:
August 2025 Disbursements for Approval

ACTION REQUESTED:
Approve the following motion to: Approve the August 2025 Disbursements for Approval

ISSUE STATEMENT:
The August 2025 Disbursements for Approval is attached for your review and approval.

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
Checks totaling $6,101,934.65 were issued in August 2025.  Documentation supporting these payments has been
reviewed. 

Attachments
1. RS FIN Disbursements August 2025
2. Cert of Approval August 2025































































































































CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL OF DISBURSEMENTS

AUGUST 2025

This is to certify that the documentation supporting City of Springfield Automated
Clearing House payments 0171211 through 0171380 and General Account checks
171685 through 171965 in the amount of $6,101,934.65 has been reviewed. I, therefore,
recommend approval of these claims payments:

  ____________________________________
 Nathan Bell, Finance Director

Approved and recommended for payment this 6TH day of October 2025.

 ___________________________________
      Nancy Newton, City Manager

Approved and recommended for payment this 6TH day of October 2025.

 
 ___________________________________

  Chair, Finance Committee

 ___________________________________
  Member, Finance Committee

___________________________________
  Member, Finance Committee

Approved by the Springfield City Council for payment this 6TH day of October 2025.

  __________________________________
   Nathan Bell, Finance Director

  _________________________________
   Sean VanGordon, Mayor



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
 Meeting Type:       Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept:  Jessica Crawford/Springfield Police Department

S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:
Estimated Time:  Consent Calendar
Council Goals:  Enhance Public Safety

ITEM TITLE:
Armored Rescue Vehicle Purchase

ACTION REQUESTED:
Provide authorization for the purchase of an armored rescue vehicle and authorize the City Manager to negotiate and
execute a Purchase Order for an armored rescue vehicle.

ISSUE STATEMENT:
The Springfield Police Department requests authorization to purchase an armored rescue vehicle to respond to high
risk, critical incidents.

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The Springfield Police Department requests authorization to purchase an armored rescue vehicle, which will be
utilized when responding to high risk, critical incidents, which will have a positive impact on the safety of the
community members, officers and other first responders. 

The proposed purchase will utilize a cooperative agreement with an estimated cost of $467,000. The purchase would
be supported by Springfield Police Department federal forfeiture funds. 

Attachments
1. CBM Armored Rescue Vehicle
2. Cooperative Procurement Purchase Order



 

 

 M E M O R A N D U M                                                                   City of Springfield  

Date: 9/26/2025  

To: Springfield City Manager 
Springfield City Council 

COUNCIL 

From: Lieutenant Justin Myers BRIEFING 

Subject: Armored Rescue Vehicle Purchase MEMORANDUM 

ISSUE:  
The Springfield Police Department requests approval to purchase an armored rescue vehicle to 
respond to high risk, critical incidents. 

COUNCIL GOALS/ 
MANDATE: 
Strengthen Public Safety by Leveraging Partnerships and Resources 

BACKGROUND:  
The Springfield Police Department is seeking approval to purchase an Armored Rescue Vehicle 
(ARV) to respond to high risk, critical incidents to provide enhanced safety to citizens, officers, 
and suspects.  The Lenco Armored Vehicles (“Lenco”) BearCat G3 was identified as the ARV 
best suited to meet City required specifications. The proposed Lenco ARV can be purchased 
through a cooperative purchasing agreement and would be funded with Springfield Police 
Department federal forfeiture funds. 
 
SPD currently has, and will continue to utilize, an armored Chevrolet Suburban.  Outwardly, the 
armored Suburban appears no different than a standard SUV and provides some level of armor 
to incident response without the overt appearance of an ARV.  Significant disadvantages have 
been identified in utilizing the armored Suburban as the only armored vehicle available to SPD 
officers.  These limitations include a very limited off-road capability, slow and difficult ingress 
and egress due to the way the armor is installed, challenges with passengers occupying the 
vehicle while wearing helmets and/or rifle rated personal body armor, and the limitation of no 
more than 5 officers wearing personal body armor being effectively transported. 
 
Regional partner agencies, including Lane County Sheriff’s Office (LCSO), Eugene Police 

Department (EPD), and the Oregon State Police (OSP), own ARVs that can be made available to 
SPD upon request under mutual aid support. However, reliance on borrowing a lifesaving 
vehicle during a critical incident increases the risk to community members and first responders 
due to increased response times or lack of availability. 
 
Over the last several years, the City of Springfield has realized an increase in critical incidents 
supported by patrol staff and the Special Weapons and Tactics (SWAT) Team. Springfield is not 
immune to active violence, as demonstrated by the following examples: the 1998 Thurston High 
School shooting, the 2018 fire and shooting on Oakdale Avenue, the 2023 gunshot wound to 
SPD Officer Bragg, and the July 2025 structure fire and active gunshots on 36th Street.  These 
are high-profile examples, with many lesser-known calls in-between, that demonstrate the 
increase in gun related incidents within our community. 
 

Attachment 1
1 of 3 



MEMORANDUM 9/29/2025 Page 2 

 

The 36th Street fire incident on the night of July 3rd of this year is the catalyst to this 
request.  Officers arrived at a growing house fire with gun shots actively being fired by a 
suspect, which was a detail confirmed by a victim who was able to flee the house before police 
arrival.  Due to the extreme danger and fear of a fire set to draw responders into an ambush, 
officers did their best to safely evacuate neighboring residences.  Eugene Springfield Fire 
responded but was forced to stage until police were able to provide safety for them to start 
battling the blaze.  The currently fielded armored Suburban was deployed but due to its size was 
not useful in shielding fire apparatus from gun fire.  ARVs were requested early in the call from 
EPD and LCSO, but due to logistics of other agency personnel and equipment availability and 
location, arrival of the other agency ARVs added approximately 20 minutes to their arrival 
time.  During this delay, additional gun fire occurred and the house fire grew and nearly spread 
to neighboring homes.  Once ARVs arrived, ESFD was able to safely approach the scene and 
fight the fire.  A dedicated ARV in Springfield would have significantly reduced the response 
time and the delay in combating the fire. 
 
Having a dedicated, purpose-built ARV would allow SPD to employ industry standard tactics to 
de-escalate situations and mitigate risk to involved community members, officers, and involved 
individuals.  Fortunately, our partner agencies have been responsive of ARV related mutual aid 
requests. However, the ability to utilize an SPD owned and managed ARV will result in reduced 
response times to incidents, allowing quicker support for patient triage, intervention with active 
shooters, and even fire suppression efforts, which ultimately improve officer and community 
safety.  
 
The Lenco BearCat G3 ARV meets the City’s requirements and specification requests to provide 

enhanced protection to the community and officers. The Lenco BearCat G3 is highly regarded 
and considered a standard amongst law enforcement in the United States with numerous 
proprietary and/or patented features making it stand out from the competition.  These features 
include NIJ Level IV equivalent armor designed to protect against rifle rounds up to .50 caliber 
BMG, a patented roof hatch counterbalance mechanism providing easy and reliable opening of 
the hatch, and a useful life of at least 20 years.  In addition to enhanced ballistic protection, the 
BearCat G3 offers seating for 12 or more fully equipped officers with easy entry and exit from 
either side and the back of the vehicle.  There is also room in the rear of the vehicle for a patient 
to be treated by officers or medics while safely behind protective armor. 
 
BearCat G3s possess an enhanced offroad capability and have been used during natural disasters 
to rescue victims trapped by floods, heavy snow, and down trees.  Properly equipped, the vehicle 
can safely navigate in up to 40 inches of water.  Similar hazards have been faced by SPD 
officers in the past, including during mutual aid evacuation support provided during the Holiday 
Farm Fire.  
 
The Eugene Police Department and Oregon State Police currently operate Lenco manufactured 
armored response vehicles.  Maintaining similar vehicles as our regional partners has an additive 
effect for regional agencies due to familiarity with vehicle function, features and best practices.  
 
SPD’s deployment of the ARV would be limited to high-risk critical incidents, disaster 
scenarios, and community events (Touch-a-Truck).  Deployment of the ARV will include 
supervisor and command level notification and approval if the situation is not exigent.   
 
The Springfield Police Department proposes purchase of a Lenco BearCat G3 armored response 
vehicle. The department intends to utilize the HGAC Cooperative Agreement #AM10-23 at an 
estimated total cost of $467,000. The proposed purchase would be fully supported by federal 
forfeiture funds reserved for Springfield Police Department use. 

Attachment 1
2 of 3 



MEMORANDUM 9/29/2025 Page 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   
Springfield Police Department staff requests that Council authorize the purchase and 
authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute a Purchase Order for an armored 
rescue vehicle.   

 

Attachment 1
3 of 3 



City of Springfield                                                 Cooperative Procurement
225 Fifth Street Purchase Order
Springfield, Oregon 97477 P.O Number C4023
Phone: 541-726-3622

Fax: 541-726-3782

VENDOR: F.O.B. DESTINATION:
COMPANY NAME: DEPARTMENT:
SALES CONTACT: RECIPIENT NAME:

STREET ADDRESS: STREET ADDRESS:
CITY, ST, ZIP: CITY, ST, ZIP:

PHONE: PHONE:

This purchase is placed against the following Price Agreement: 

State of Oregon (ORCPP) Price Agreement #

NPPGov Price Agreement #

Sourcewell (NJPA) Price Agreement #

Other: H-GAC # AM10-23

QTY
UNIT 
PRICE 

TOTAL 

1             450,866  450,866     
-             
-             

SUBTOTAL 450,866     
PAYMENT DETAILS SHIPPING & HANDLING 16,100       
Voucher OTHER

G/L Account # 204-06100-1144-650155 TOTAL 466,966$   
A/P Code # 362

ADDITIONAL NOTES

Authorized Purchaser Signature Date 

Nancy Newton, City Manager

Invoicing Address Name and Title (Print)

Email: ap@springfield-or.gov

541-726-3700, cmo@springfield-or.gov

            Springfield, OR 97477 Phone Number and Email 

10 Betnr Industrial Dr 230 4th Street
Pittsfield, MA 01201 Springfield, OR 97477

Mailing: 225 5th Street

Net 309/26/2025
TermsShipped VIA 

[The P.O. number must appear on all related 
correspondence, shipping papers, and 

invoices]

Lenco Armored Vehicles Police Department
Daniel Besemer Lt. Justin Myers

Lenco Industries will abide by 2 CFR 200.322 domestic 
preferences for procurements and 2 CFR 200.323 
regarding procurement of recovered materials

413-443-7359 541-726-3714

RequisitionerP.O. Date 

DESCRIPTION

Lenco BearCat G3, 4-wheel off-road upgrade pkg. Additional options 
specified on attached quote 110778, dated 9/10/25

Jessica Crawford, jcrawford@springfield-or.gov

Attachment 2
1 of 4 



nk you!

Attachment 2
2 of 4 



Quotation 110778

10 Betnr Industrial Drive - Pittsfield, MA 01201
PH: 413-443-7359 - FAX: 413-445-7865

Quotation Date:
Lenco Tax ID#:

09/10/25
04-2719777

SPLORCustomer Code:

Page #: 21 of

Springfield Police Department
230 4th St.
Springfield, OR 97477 USA

Bill To
Springfield Police Department
230 4th St.
Springfield, OR 97477 USA

Ship To

Net 30 Days FOB:  Destination

Payment Terms

Lenco Contact
Daniel Besemer

Shipping Terms

Estimated Completion

Ship Via
Common Carrier

Inspection & Acceptance
At Lenco's Facility, Pittsfield, MA18 Months (+ or -) ARO

Unit Price TotalQtyItem: Product #
Vehicle configuration 4488

$264,310.00Lenco BearCat BC55003-BASE 1 $264,310.00
Options:
LED Red and Blue LED_RED_BLUE 1
Exterior Paint Color: Lusterless Black LUSTERLESS_BLACK 1

$38,454.00BearCat G3 4-Wheel Off-Road Upgrade Pkg w/Run-Flats BC3WOFFRD 1 $38,454.00
Gasoline Engine BCGSEN 1

$9,823.004-Door Configuration BC4DR 1 $9,823.00
$1,824.00(1) 7" Vertical GunPort Upgrade BCGP7 8 $228.00
$4,422.00360 Camera System BC360DEG 1 $4,422.00
$8,250.00Rear A/C - Heating System: High Capacity Upgrade BCHACUP 1 $8,250.00

$16,975.00Hydraulic Front Mounted Receiver with Ram Post and Plate BCHYDRAM 1 $16,975.00
$14,552.00Gas Injector Unit BCGIU 1 $14,552.00

$1,595.00Gas Injector Storage Basket BCGISB 1 $1,595.00
$1,800.00Break and Rake BCBAR 1 $1,800.00
$6,102.00VSP Style Low Profile & Scene Lighting Pkg BCVSPL 1 $6,102.00
$5,616.00Roof Mounted Remote Control Spot Light - LED BCSLLED 4 $1,404.00
$1,840.00High Intensity Driving Lights in Front Bumper BCHIDL 1 $1,840.00
$1,800.00Front Bumper Intersection Lights BCBIL 1 $1,800.00
$2,986.00Fender Intersection Lights BCFIL 1 $2,986.00
$1,853.00Take Down Light (Bumper Mounted) BCTDL 1 $1,853.00

$33,585.00Police Cupola w/ Glass & Barn Doors BCPCUPOLA 1 $33,585.00
$1,006.00Plasma Rope BCPLAS1 1 $1,006.00
$1,936.00Armored Oil Pan Guard BCAOPG 1 $1,936.00
$5,640.00Ballistic Skip Round Shield BCBSRS 2 $2,820.00
$1,713.00Front Skid Pan BCFSP 1 $1,713.00
$1,200.002 Rear Area Electric Fans BC2RELFAN 1 $1,200.00
$2,800.00Interior Crew Compartment Exhaust Fan BCICEF 1 $2,800.00
$8,100.00LRAD Wiring Kit (For Internal controls) BCLWP 1 $8,100.00
$1,430.00LRAD Roof Rail Mount BCLRRM 1 $1,430.00
$5,000.00Extreme Heat Reducing Insulation & Sound Reduction Pkg BCEXHT 1 $5,000.00
$6,254.00(G3/G4) Spare Tire with Run-Flat BC40STRF 1 $6,254.00

$450,866.00Configuration Subtotal:

$450,866.00NEWCONFIGLenco BearCat 1 $450,866.00
$16,100.00FREIGHTOUT-VEHICLEFreight Out - SWAT 1 $16,100.00

$466,966.00Net Total

Attachment 2
3 of 4 



Quotation 110778

10 Betnr Industrial Drive - Pittsfield, MA 01201
PH: 413-443-7359 - FAX: 413-445-7865

Quotation Date:
Lenco Tax ID#:

09/10/25
04-2719777

SPLORCustomer Code:

Page #: 22 of

Notes:

Authorized

WARNING: Information Subject to Export Control Laws

Acceptance of this quotation or entering into a purchase agreement with Lenco, the purchaser agrees to Lenco's full Terms and Conditions of Sale, available upon request. This
quote will be valid for 60 days.

Please sign and return Daniel Besemer

Authorized

Thank you

The written approval of the Directorate of US Defense Trade Controls and Lenco Industries, Inc. must be obtained before reselling, transferring, transshipping or disposing of a
defense article to any end user, end use or destination other than as stated on this Lenco quote or the shipper's export declaration in cases where an exemption is claimed under
this subchapter ITAR 123.9(A).

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL

Signature:_______________________________Signature:_______________________________

H-GAC – Ambulances, EMS, and Other Special Service Vehicles
Contract Number: AM10-23
Current Option Period End Date: September 30, 2027

C4023, Page 4 of 4Attachment 2
4 of 4 

kskraaz
Typewriter
9/29/2025



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
 Meeting Type:       Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept:  Jessica Mumme/Finance

S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No: 541-736-1032
Estimated Time:  5 Minutes
Council Goals:  Financially Responsible and Stable Government

Services

ITEM TITLE:
FY26 Supplemental Budget #1

ACTION REQUESTED:
Conduct a public hearing and adopt/not adopt the following resolutions:

A Resolution Adjusting Resources And Requirements in the Following Funds: General, Street, Special Revenue,
Transient Lodging Tax, Community Development, Building Code, Fire Local Option Levy, Police Local Option
Levy, Bond Sinking, Development Assessment Capital, Development Projects, Regional Wastewater Capital, Street
Capital, Sanitary Sewer Operations, Regional Wastewater, Ambulance, Storm Drainage Operations, Booth-kelly,
Regional Fiber Consortium, Insurance, Vehicle & Equipment, and Sdc Administration.
 

ISSUE STATEMENT:
At various times during the fiscal year, Council is requested to adjust the annual budget to reflect needed changes in
planned activities, to recognize new revenues, or to make other required changes.  These adjustments to resources
and requirements change the current budget and are processed through supplemental budget requests scheduled by
the Finance Department. This is the first of three scheduled FY26 supplemental budget requests to come before
Council. 

The City Council is asked to approve the attached Supplemental Budget Resolution.
 

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The overall financial impact of the Supplemental Budget Resolution is to adjust department operating expenditures
by $5,873,748, capital expenditures by $801,882, interfund transfer expense by $1,042,932, and reserves by
$24,437,925.  These are offset by new revenue of $31,807,725, adjustments to beginning cash of $27,097,456, a
reduction in unappropriated fund balance by $3,538, and a reduction in Contingency of $345,224.

Attachments
1. Council Briefing Memorandum
2. FY26 Supplemental Budget 1 Resolution and Exhibit A



 

FY26 Supplemental Budget 1  Page 1 of 3 

 M E M O R A N D U M                                  City of Springfield  

Date: 10/6/2025  

To: Nancy Newton, City Manager COUNCIL 

From: Jessica Mumme, Budget & Procurement Manager BRIEFING 

Subject: FY26 SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET #1 MEMORANDUM 

ISSUE:  

At various times during the fiscal year, the Council is requested to adjust the annual budget to 

reflect needed changes in planned activities, to recognize new revenues, or to make other required 

changes. These adjustments to resources and requirements change the current budget and are 

processed through supplemental budget requests scheduled by the Finance Department. This is the 

first of three scheduled FY26 supplemental budget requests to come before Council.  

 

The City Council is asked to approve the attached Supplemental Budget Resolution. 

 

COUNCIL GOALS/ 

MANDATE: 

Financially Responsible and Stable Government Services 

BACKGROUND: 

Supplemental budgets may be used to meet unexpected needs or to spend revenues not anticipated at 

the time the original budget was adopted. In accordance with Oregon budget law, notification of this 

supplemental budget and a hearing is made no later than five calendar days before the public meeting. 

A public hearing is only required when a supplemental budget request changes total appropriations 

within a fund by 10% or greater. Notification of this public hearing was published in The Chronicle at 

least five days prior to the public hearing. The attached information identifies the individual items 

that are included in the October 6th, 2025 supplemental budget request. 

 

Changes to the budget included in this request fall into three general categories: reallocations, 

carryforward requests, and new appropriation requests.  

 

Reallocations move existing approved budget authority between already appropriated spending 

categories, such as appropriations transfer from a contingency account to operating expense.  

 

Re-appropriations or carryovers represent money that was committed by contract in the previous 

year, but the contracted work was not completed within the fiscal year. The prior year’s remaining 

budget amount needs to be appropriated into this year’s budget to allow final payments to be made in 

the current year. Re-appropriations also may include money for capital projects that were planned but 

not completed in the prior year. The projects are still scheduled, and funds are being carried forward 

to the current year’s budget.  

 

New appropriation requests include both expenditure items that are funded by new revenue, such as a 

new grant, and expenditure items that are requested to be funded out of reserves.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Attachment 1
Page 1 of 3



   

FY26 Supplemental Budget 1  Page 2 of 3 

Summary of Proposed Changes by Fund: 

 

All Funds 

• Beginning Cash Adjustment - All funds beginning cash adjustments total $27,097,456. 

Typically, beginning cash adjustments occur because prior year expenses were not as high as 

predicted, resulting in more money being available in the new fiscal year. In February, the 

budget preparers attempt to estimate the status of the City’s expenditures as of the end of the 

fiscal year (June 30), but a variety of factors can result in costs being ahead or behind 

schedule. Proceeding is a list of beginning cash adjustments by fund. 

 

 

 
 

General Fund 100 

• Increase Ambulance Fund (Fund 615) reserves by $1,040,730, offset by interfund transfer 

from the General Fund (Fund 100), to eliminate the deficit in the Ambulance Fund from 

FY25. 

• Increase Fire & Life Safety operating expense by $125,000, offset by a reduction in 

Contingency, to eliminate the need for station brown-outs. 

 

Special Revenue Fund 204 

• Increase Finance Department operating expense by $596,037, offset by a reduction in 

reserves by $358 and an increase in grant revenue of $595,679, to adjust balances to actual 

carryforward amounts for donations and grants and to record a newly awarded ODOT grant 

for the Drug Court program. 

• Increase Library operating expense by $20,000, offset by grant revenue, to support museum 

initiatives and library collections. 

• Increase Police Department operating expense by $467,000, offset by a reduction in reserves, 

to support the purchase of an armored rescue vehicle.  

• Increase Police Department operating expense by $437,750, offset by an increase in grant 

revenue of $189,215 and a reduction in reserves by $248,535, to support the drone program 

and police volunteer program. 

• Increase Police Department operating expense by $60,500, offset by an increase in grant 

revenue from ODOT, for support of traffic safety enforcement and related equipment. 
Attachment 1
Page 2 of 3



   

FY26 Supplemental Budget 1  Page 3 of 3 

 

Development Projects Fund 420 

 

• Increase the Development & Public Works operating expense by $188,150, offset by a 

reduction in reserves, to support the City Hall west entrance bathroom upgrades to 

accommodate ADA standards. 

Storm Drainage Operating Fund 617 

• Increase Development & Public Works capital projects by $300,000, offset by a reduction in 

reserves, to align the carryforward balances for P41044 (42nd Street Levee) project. 

• Increase Development & Public Works operating expense by $150,000, offset by a reduction 

in contingency, for cleanup, repair, and maintenance of the planter boxes on Franklin Blvd. 

Vehicle and Equipment Fund 713 

• Increase Fire & Life Safety operating expense by $225,282, offset by a reduction in reserves, 

to support the purchase of three ambulances and Getac mobile devices. 

• Increase Information Technology operating expense by $73,681, offset by a reduction in 

reserves, to support the purchase of SQL Licensing to complete the PeopleSoft Financials 

upgrade. 

• Increase the Development & Public Works department operating expense $25,675, offset by 

a reduction in reserves, for the required grant match to purchase an alternative fuel mini street 

sweeper. 

• Increase the Development & Public Works department operating expense by $400,000, offset 

by a reduction in reserves, to purchase a street sweeper originally budgeted in FY25 but not 

yet received. 

• Increase the Police department operating expense by $61,000, offset by a reduction in 

reserves, to purchase a new police vehicle. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

Conduct a public hearing and adopt/not adopt the following resolutions: 

 

A RESOLUTION ADJUSTING RESOURCES AND REQUIREMENTS IN THE FOLLOWING 

FUNDS: GENERAL, STREET, SPECIAL REVENUE, TRANSIENT LODGING TAX, 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, BUILDING CODE, FIRE LOCAL OPTION LEVY, POLICE 

LOCAL OPTION LEVY, BOND SINKING, DEVELOPMENT ASSESSMENT CAPITAL, 

DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS, REGIONAL WASTEWATER CAPITAL, STREET CAPITAL, 

SANITARY SEWER OPERATIONS, REGIONAL WASTEWATER, AMBULANCE, STORM 

DRAINAGE OPERATIONS, BOOTH-KELLY, REGIONAL FIBER CONSORTIUM, 

INSURANCE, VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT, AND SDC ADMINISTRATION. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 1
Page 3 of 3



PAGE 1 OF 2 
 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON 
RESOLUTION NO. ___________  

 
SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET #1 

 
A RESOLUTION ADJUSTING RESOURCES AND REQUIREMENTS IN THE FOLLOWING 

FUNDS: GENERAL, STREET, SPECIAL REVENUE, TRANSIENT LODGING TAX, COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT, BUILDING CODE, FIRE LOCAL OPTION LEVY, POLICE LOCAL OPTION LEVY, 

BOND SINKING, DEVELOPMENT ASSESSMENT CAPITAL, DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS, 
REGIONAL WASTEWATER CAPITAL, STREET CAPITAL, SANITARY SEWER OPERATIONS, 

REGIONAL WASTEWATER, AMBULANCE, STORM DRAINAGE OPERATIONS, BOOTH-KELLY, 
REGIONAL FIBER CONSORTIUM, INSURANCE, VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT, AND SDC 

ADMINISTRATION. 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Common Council has adopted the budget and made appropriations for Fiscal Year 
2025-2026 through Resolution No. 2025-19 adopted June 16, 2025.  

WHEREAS, ORS 294.471(1)(a), and (b) permit a supplemental budget due to an occurrence or 
condition that was not known at the time the budget was prepared that requires a change in financial 
planning; due to a pressing necessity that creates a need for prompt action, that was not reasonably 
foreseen when preparing the original budget; and due to budget funds that are made available by 
another unit of federal, state, or local government, which funds were not reasonably foreseen when 
preparing the original budget;  

WHEREAS, the Common Council is requested to make adjustments to the Fiscal Year 2025-2026 
budget and appropriations to meet unexpected needs and to allow appropriations of new revenues 
pursuant to ORS 294.471(1)(a), (b) and (c) as justified in Exhibit A, which is attached and incorporated 
by reference;  

WHEREAS, ORS 294.463 allows transfers of appropriations within a fund when authorized by 
ordinance or resolution of the governing body, stating the need for the transfer, the purpose of the 
authorized expenditure, and the amount transferred;  

WHEREAS, this supplemental budget and adjustments to appropriations are being presented at a 
public hearing at which the public may comment on such requests; and 

WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing, including information regarding such revenues and 
expenditures was published in a newspaper of general circulation not less than 5 days prior to the 
public meeting, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD: 
 

Section 1:   The Fiscal Year 2025-2026 budget and appropriations, as adopted by Resolution 
No. 2025-19, are hereby adjusted as provided in Exhibit A. 

 
Section 2:   This Resolution will take effect upon adoption by the Council. 

 
 

Attachment 2
Page 1 of 11



PAGE 2 OF 2 
 

ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Springfield this ___ day of _________, ____, 
by a vote of _____ for and ____ against. 

 
 
                                                  

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
City Recorder 

Attachment 2
Page 2 of 11

kskraaz
Typewriter
9/29/2025



 FY26 Adopted 
Budget 

 Supplemental 
Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

General Fund - 100
Department Operating

City Manager's Office 1,877,832$             -$                          -$                            1,877,832$             
Development & Public Works 3,945,302               -                            -                              3,945,302               
Finance 2,847,431               54,356                  -                              2,901,787               (1,2)
Fire and Life Safety 14,723,434             125,000                -                              14,848,434             (3)
Human Resources 952,944                  15,000                  -                              967,944                  (4)
Information Technology 1,894,529               -                            -                              1,894,529               
Legal Services 978,008                  -                            -                              978,008                  
Library 2,331,465               -                            -                              2,331,465               
Police 17,907,700             -                            -                              17,907,700             

Total Department Operating 47,458,645             194,356                -                              47,653,001             

Non-Departmental
Transfers 710,170                  1,040,730             -                              1,750,900               (5)
Contingency 1,500,000               (140,000)               -                              1,360,000               (3,4)
Reserves* 13,033,416             517,603                -                              13,551,019             (1,2,5,6)

Total Non-Departmental 15,243,586             1,418,333             -                              16,661,919             

Total General Fund 62,702,231$           1,612,689$           -$                            64,314,920$           

General Fund Commentary:

Street Fund - 201
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Department Operating
City Manager's Office 61,708$                  -$                          -$                            61,708$                  
Development & Public Works 8,307,261               55,224                  -                              8,362,485               (1)
Finance 14,945                    -                            -                              14,945                    

Total Department Operating 8,383,914               55,224                  -                              8,439,138               

Non-Departmental
Transfers -                         -                            -                              -                             
Contingency 300,000                  (55,224)                 -                              244,776                  (1)
Reserves* 279,516                  632,406                -                              911,922                  (2-3)

Total Non-Departmental 579,516                  577,182                -                              1,156,698               

Total Street Fund 8,963,430$             632,406$              -$                            9,595,836$             

Street Fund Commentary:

Exhibit A
FY2025-26 (FY26)

SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET #1

1.) Increase Finance Department operating expenses by $2,356, offset by reserves, to carry-forward funds for a computer that was not ordered in 
FY25. 
2.) Increase Finance Department operating expenses by $52,000, offset by reserves, for a retirement payout. 
3.) Increase Fire & Life Safety operating expenses by $125,000, offset by a reduction in contingency, to eliminate the need for station brown-outs. 
4.) Increase Human Resources Department operating expenses by $15,000, offset by a reduction in contingency, to hire a third-party contractor to 
perform the City Manager’s evaluation.
5.) Increase Ambulance Fund (Fund 615) reserves by $1,040,730, offset by an interfund transfer from the General Fund (Fund 100), to eliminate 
the deficit in the Ambulance Fund from FY25.
6.) Beginning cash adjustment.

1.) Increase Development & Public Works operating expenses by $55,224, offset by a reduction in contingency, to complete work that was 
identified during the Legacy Street Light Replacement project but was not completed as part of the project. 
2.)  Increase reserves by $1,783, offset by a transfer from the Special Revenue Fund (Fund 204), to reimburse for grant expenditures paid and are 
reimbursable under the Oregon Dept. of Administrative Services grant received for sanitation related services.
3.) Beginning cash adjustment.

Attachment 2
Page 3 of 11

Exhibit A
1 of 9



Special Revenue Fund - 204
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Department Operating
City Manager's Office 11,110$                  (610)$                    -$                            10,500$                  (1)
Development & Public Works 1,778,892               215,525                -                              1,994,417               (2-5)
Finance 327,650                  596,037                -                              923,687                  (6)
Information Technology 20,000                    -                            -                              20,000                    
Library 254,305                  (25,084)                 -                              229,221                  (7-9)
Police 392,000                  965,250                -                              1,357,250               (10-12)

Total Department Operating 2,783,957               1,751,118             -                              4,535,075               

Non-Departmental
Transfers 493,418                  2,202                    -                              495,620                  (5)

Reserves* 3,848,442               (139,024)               -                              3,709,418               
(1,2,4,6,8,10,
11,13)

Total Non-Departmental 4,341,860               (136,822)               -                              4,205,038               

Total Special Revenue Fund 7,125,817$             1,614,296$           -$                            8,740,113$             

Special Revenue Fund Commentary:

Transient Lodging Tax Fund - 208
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Department Operating
City Manager's Office 1,058,386$             -$                          -$                            1,058,386$             
Development & Public Works 32,782                    -                            -                              32,782                    
Library 325,383                  729                       -                              326,112                  (1)

Total Department Operating 1,416,551               729                       -                              1,417,280               

Non -Departmental
Transfers 1,100,000               -                            -                              1,100,000               
Reserves* 1,994,235               479,365                -                              2,473,600               (1-2)

Total Non-Departmental 3,094,235               479,365                -                              3,573,600               

Total Transient Lodging Tax Fund 4,510,786$             480,094$              -$                            4,990,880$             

Transient Lodging Tax Fund Commentary:

1.) Decrease City Manager’s Office operating expenses by $610, offset by an increase in reserves, to adjust balances of local events funding.
2.) Increase Development & Public Works operating expense by $43,923, offset by a reduction in reserves, to carry over the broadband grant 
balance from FY25.
3.) Increase the Development & Public Works operating expenses by $224,325, offset by an increase in grant revenue from the Federal Highway 
Administration – Oregon Division, to purchase an alternative fuel mini street sweeper. 
4.) Decrease Development & Public Works operating expenditures by $143,939, offset by an increase in reserves, to adjust the final balances of 
the Trestle Bridge, Affordable Housing, and Lane County Land Acquisition grant balances. 
5.) Transfer $1,783 to the Street Fund (Fund 201), $127 to the Sanitary Sewer Operations Fund (Fund 611), and $292 to the Storm Drainage 
Operations Fund (Fund 617) to reimburse for grant expenses paid by the funds, and are reimbursable under the Oregon Dept. of Administrative 
Services grant received for sanitation related services. 
6.) Increase Finance Department operating expenses by $596,037, offset by a reduction in reserves of $358, and increase in the grant revenue of 
$595,679, to adjust balances to actual carryforward amounts for donations and grants and to record a newly awarded Oregon Dept. of 
Transportation (ODOT) grant for the Drug Court program.
7.) Increase Library operating expense by $20,000, offset by grant revenue, to support museum initiatives and library collections.
8.) Increase Library operating expenses by $1,132, offset by a reduction in reserves due to funds budgeted but not used in FY25, to support 
Library programs and projects.
9.) Decrease Library operating expense by $46,216, offset by a reduction in revenue, to remove discontinued grant funding.
10.) Increase Police Department operating expenses by $467,000, offset by a reduction in reserves, to support the purchase of an armored rescue 
vehicle. 
11.) Increase Police Department operating expenses by $437,750, offset by an increase in grant revenue of $189,215 and a reduction in reserves of 
$248,535 due to unexpended grant funds budgeted but not used in FY25, to support the drone program and police volunteer program.
12.) Increase Police Department operating expenses by $60,500, offset by an increase in grant revenue from ODOT, for support of traffic safety 
enforcement and related equipment. 
13.) Beginning cash adjustment.

1.) Increase Library operating expenses by $729, offset by a reduction in reserves, to adjust the unspent Arts Commission operations funds that 
were budgeted toward Art Walk support and not used in FY25.
2.) Beginning cash adjustment.

Attachment 2
Page 4 of 11

Exhibit A
2 of 9



Community Development Fund - 210
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Department Operating
Development & Public Works 1,124,519$             -$                          -$                            1,124,519$             
Finance 36,114                    -                            -                              36,114                    

Total Department Operating 1,160,633               -                            -                              1,160,633               

Non-Departmental
Reserves* 7,892                      71,732                  -                              79,624                    (1)

Total Non-Departmental 7,892                      71,732                  -                              79,624                    

Total Community Development Fund 1,168,525$             71,732$                -$                            1,240,257$             
Community Development Fund Commentary:

Building Code Fund - 224
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Department Operating
City Manager's Office 25,032$                  -$                          -$                            25,032$                  
Development & Public Works 1,936,479               -                            -                              1,936,479               
Fire & Life Safety 98,810                    -                            -                              98,810                    

Total Department Operating 2,060,321               -                            -                              2,060,321               

Non -Departmental
Contingency 35,000                    -                            -                              35,000                    
Reserves* 7,715,703               1,064,570             -                              8,780,273               (1)

Total Non-Departmental 7,750,703               1,064,570             -                              8,815,273               

Total Building Fund 9,811,024$             1,064,570$           -$                            10,875,594$           

Building Code Fund Commentary:

Fire Local Option Levy Fund - 235
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Department Operating
Fire and Life Safety 2,544,374$             -$                          -$                            2,544,374$             

Total Department Operating 2,544,374               -                            -                              2,544,374               

Non -Departmental
Contingency 45,000                    -                            -                              45,000                    
Reserves* 933,217                  104,407                -                              1,037,624               (1)

Total Non-Departmental 978,217                  104,407                -                              1,082,624               

Total Fire Local Option Levy Fund 3,522,591$             104,407$              -$                            3,626,998$             

Fire Local Option Levy Fund Commentary:

1.) Beginning cash adjustment.

1.) Beginning cash adjustment.

1.) Beginning cash adjustment.

Attachment 2
Page 5 of 11

Exhibit A
3 of 9



Police Local Option Levy Fund - 236
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Department Operating
Finance 896,958$                -$                          -$                            896,958$                
Legal Services 95,101                    -                            -                              95,101$                  
Police 8,612,686               -                            -                              8,612,686               

Total Department Operating 9,604,745               -                            -                              9,604,745               

Non -Departmental
Contingency 150,000                  -                            -                              150,000                  
Reserves* 2,806,287               296,966                -                              3,103,253               (1)

Total Non-Departmental 2,956,287               296,966                -                              3,253,253               

Total Police Local Option Levy Fund 12,561,032$           296,966$              -$                            12,857,998$           

Police Local Option Levy Fund Commentary:

Bond Sinking Fund - 306
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Non-Departmental
Debt Service 5,970,060$             -$                          -$                            5,970,060$             
Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance* 672,158                  (3,538)                   -                              668,620                  (1)

Total Non-Departmental 6,642,218               (3,538)                   -                              6,638,680               

Total Bond Sinking Fund 6,642,218$             (3,538)$                 -$                            6,638,680$             

Bond Sinking Fund Commentary:

Development Assessment Fund - 419
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Non-Departmental
Reserves* 1,064,875$             1,035$                  -$                            1,065,910$             (1)

Total Non-Departmental 1,064,875               1,035                    -                              1,065,910               

Total Development Assessment Fund 1,064,875$             1,035$                  -$                            1,065,910$             

Development Assessment Capital Fund Commentary:

Development Projects Fund - 420
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Total Development & Public Works Capital Projects 600,000$                227,754$              -$                            827,754$                (1-2)

Non-Departmental
Transfers 116,726                  -                            -                              116,726                  
Reserves* 4,631,725               (20,179)                 -                              4,611,546               (1-3)

Total Non-Departmental 4,748,451               (20,179)                 -                              4,728,272               

Total Development Projects Fund 5,348,451$             207,575$              -$                            5,556,026$             

Development Projects Fund Commentary:

1.) Beginning cash adjustment.

1.) Beginning cash adjustment.

1.) Beginning cash adjustment.

1.) Increase the Development & Public Works operating expenses by $39,604, offset by a reduction in reserves, to carryforward unspent budget 
for Building Preservation.
2.) Increase the Development & Public Works operating expense by $188,150, offset by a reduction in reserves, to support the City Hall west 
entrance bathroom upgrades to accommodate ADA standards.
3.) Beginning cash adjustment.

Attachment 2
Page 6 of 11

Exhibit A
4 of 9



Regional Wastewater Capital Fund - 433
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Department Operating
Development & Public Works 2,269,000$             1,509,984$           -$                            3,778,984$             (1)

Total Department Operating 2,269,000               1,509,984             -                              3,778,984               

Total Development & Public Works Capital Projects 98,425,000             274,128                -                              98,699,128             (1)

Non-Departmental
Transfers 26,658                    -                            -                              26,658                    
Reserves* 31,123,960             7,866,599             -                              38,990,559             (1)

Total Non-Departmental 31,150,618             7,866,599             -                              39,017,217             

Total Regional Wastewater Capital Fund 131,844,618$         9,650,711$           -$                            141,495,329$         

Regional Wastewater Capital Fund Commentary:

Street Capital Fund - 434
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Department Operating
Development & Public Works 141,601$                -$                          -$                            141,601$                

Total Department Operating 141,601                  -                            -                              141,601                  

Total Development & Public Works Capital Projects 21,531,134             -                            -                              21,531,134             

Non-Departmental
Reserves* 28,521,251             (51,331)                 -                              28,469,920             (1)

Total Non-Departmental 28,521,251             (51,331)                 -                              28,469,920             

Total Street Capital Fund 50,193,986$           (51,331)$               -$                            50,142,655$           

Street Capital Fund Commentary:

Sanitary Sewer Operations Fund - 611
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Department Operating
City Manager's Office 91,733$                  -$                          -$                            91,733$                  
Development & Public Works 6,559,121               -                            -                              6,559,121               
Finance 30,001                    -                            -                              30,001                    

Total Department Operating 6,680,855               -                            -                              6,680,855               

Total Development & Public Works Capital Projects 6,679,350               -                            -                              6,679,350               

Non-Departmental
Debt Service 1,710,210               -                            -                              1,710,210               
Contingency 150,000                  -                            -                              150,000                  
Reserves* 27,212,530             11,381,526           -                              38,594,056             (1-2)

Total Non-Departmental 29,072,740             11,381,526           -                              40,454,266             

Total Sewer Operations Fund 42,432,945$           11,381,526$         -$                            53,814,471$           

Sanitary Sewer Operations Fund Commentary:

1.) Increase beginning cash by $9,650,711, offset by an increase in Development & Public Works capital projects carryforward and expenditures 
of $274,128, an increase in Development & Public Works capital outlay carryforward and expenditures of $1,509,984, and an increase in reserves 
of $7,866,599.  

1.) Beginning cash adjustment.

1.) Increase reserves by $127, offset by a transfer from the Special Revenue Fund (Fund 204), to reimburse for grant expenditures paid and are 
reimbursable under the Oregon Dept. of Administrative Services grant received for sanitation related services.
2.) Beginning cash adjustment.

Attachment 2
Page 7 of 11

Exhibit A
5 of 9



Regional Wastewater Fund - 612
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Department Operating
City Manager's Office 18,932$                  -$                          -$                            18,932$                  
Development & Public Works 27,371,354             1,426,699             -                              28,798,053             (1)
Finance 209,039                  -                            -                              209,039                  

Total Department Operating 27,599,325             1,426,699             -                              29,026,024             

Non-Departmental
Transfers 14,350,000             -                            -                              14,350,000             
Debt Service 4,104,250               -                            -                              4,104,250               
Reserves* 11,752,501             (2,684,482)            -                              9,068,019               (1-2)

Total Non-Departmental 30,206,751             (2,684,482)            -                              27,522,269             

Total Regional Wastewater Fund 57,806,076$           (1,257,783)$          -$                            56,548,293$           

Regional Wastewater Fund Commentary:

Ambulance Fund - 615
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Department Operating
Fire and Life Safety 7,740,155$             -$                          -$                            7,740,155$             

Total Department Operating 7,740,155               -                            -                              7,740,155               

Non-Departmental
Reserves* -                             -                            -                              -                             (1-2)
Total Non-Departmental -                             -                            -                              -                             

Total Ambulance Fund 7,740,155$             -$                          -$                            7,740,155$             

Ambulance Fund Commentary:

1.) Decrease beginning cash by $3,611,617 and increase revenue from regional sewer user fees for FY25 that were received in FY26 by 
$2,353,834 offset by an increase in Development & Public Works operating expenditures carryforward of $1,426,699 and a decrease in reserves of 
$2,684,482.
2.) Beginning cash adjustment.

1.) Increase Ambulance Fund (Fund 615) beginning cash by $1,040,730, offset by an interfund transfer from the General Fund (Fund 100), to 
eliminate the deficit in the Ambulance Fund from FY25.
2.)  Beginning cash adjustment.

Attachment 2
Page 8 of 11

Exhibit A
6 of 9



Storm Drainage Operating Fund - 617
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Department Operating
City Manager's Office 91,994$                  -$                          -$                            91,994$                  
Development & Public Works 8,620,972               150,000                -                              8,770,972               (1)
Finance 30,001                    -                            -                              30,001                    

Total Department Operating 8,742,967               150,000                -                              8,892,967               

Total Development & Public Works Capital Projects 2,224,000               300,000                -                          2,524,000               (2)

Non-Departmental
Debt Service 550,051                  -                            -                              550,051                  
Contingency 200,000                  (150,000)               -                              50,000                    (1)
Reserves* 25,204,513             3,669,932             -                              28,874,445             (2-4)

Total Non-Departmental 25,954,564             3,519,932             -                              29,474,496             

Total Drainage Operating Fund 36,921,531$           3,969,932$           -$                            40,891,463$           

Storm Drainage Operations Fund Commentary:

Booth-Kelly Fund - 618
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Department Operating
City Manager's Office 264,299$                -$                          -$                            264,299$                
Development & Public Works 587,302                  -                            -                              587,302                  

Total Department Operating 851,601                  -                            -                              851,601                  

Non-Departmental
Contingency 15,000                    -                            -                              15,000                    
Reserves* 1,079,045               229,819                -                              1,308,864               (1)

Total Non-Departmental 1,094,045               229,819                -                              1,323,864               

Total Booth-Kelly Fund 1,945,646$             229,819$              -$                            2,175,465$             

Booth-Kelly Fund Commentary:

Regional Fiber Consortium - 629
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Department Operating
Finance 261,405$                -$                          -$                            261,405$                

Total Department Operating 261,405                  -                            -                              261,405                  

Non-Departmental
Reserves* 622,358                  24,671                  -                              647,029                  (1)

Total Non-Departmental 622,358                  24,671                  -                              647,029                  

Total Regional Fiber Consortium Fund 883,763$                24,671$                -$                            908,434$                

Regional Fiber Consortium Fund Commentary:

1.) Increase Development & Public Works operating expenses by $150,000, offset by a reduction in contingency, for cleanup, repair, and 
maintenance of the planter boxes on Franklin Blvd.
2.) Increase Development & Public Works capital projects by $300,000, offset by a reduction in reserves, to align the carryforward balances for 
P41044 (42nd Street Levee) project. 
3.) Increase reserves by $292, offset by a transfer from the Special Revenue Fund (Fund 204), to reimburse for grant expenditures paid and are 
reimbursable under the Oregon Dept. of Administrative Services grant received for sanitation related services.
4.) Beginning cash adjustment.

1.) Beginning cash adjustment.

1.) Beginning cash adjustment.

Attachment 2
Page 9 of 11

Exhibit A
7 of 9



Insurance Fund - 707
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Department Operating
Human Resources 829,082$                -$                          -$                            829,082$                
Health Insurance 8,768,828               -                            -                              8,768,828               
Property & Liability 2,232,453               -                            -                              2,232,453               
Worker's Compensation 1,321,121               -                            -                              1,321,121               

Total Department Operating 13,151,484             -                            -                              13,151,484             

Non-Departmental
Transfers 1,935,857               -                            -                              1,935,857               
Contingency 200,000                  -                            -                              200,000                  
Reserves* 16,456,824             126,711                -                              16,583,535             (1)

Total Non-Departmental 18,592,681             126,711                -                              18,719,392             

Total Insurance Fund 31,744,165$           126,711$              -$                            31,870,876$           

Insurance Fund Commentary:

Vehicle and Equipment Fund - 713
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Department Operating
Development & Public Works 906,600$                425,675$              -$                            1,332,275$             (1-2)
Fire & Life Safety 130,667                  225,282                -                              355,949                  (3)
Information Technology 1,220,404               73,681                  -                              1,294,085               (4)
Legal 1,900                      -                            -                              1,900                      
Library 10,000                    -                            -                              10,000                    
Police 71,000                    61,000                  -                              132,000                  (5)

Total Department Operating 2,340,571               785,638                -                              3,126,209               

Non-Departmental
Debt Service 209,190                  -                            -                              209,190                  
Reserves* 7,858,111               678,316                -                              8,536,427               (1-6)

Total Non-Departmental 8,067,301               678,316                -                              8,745,617               

Total Vehicle and Equipment Fund 10,407,872$           1,463,954$           -$                            11,871,826$           

Vehicle and Equipment Fund Commentary:
1.) Increase Development & Public Works operating expenses by $25,675, offset by a reduction in reserves, for the required grant match to 
purchase an alternative fueld mini street sweeper. 
2.) Increase the Development & Public Works operating expenses by $400,000, offset by a reduction in reserves, to purchase a street sweeper 
originally budgeted in FY25 but yet not received.
3.) Increase Fire & Life Safety operating expenses by $225,282, offset by a reduction in reserves, to support the purchase of three ambulances and 
Getac mobile devices. 
4.) Increase Information Technology operating expenses by $73,681, offset by a reduction in reserves, to support the purchase of SQL Licensing 
to complete the PeopleSoft Financials upgrade.
5.) Increase in the Police Department operating expenses by $61,000, offset by a reduction in reserves, to purchase a new police vehicle.
6.) Beginning cash adjustment.

1.) Beginning cash adjustment.

Attachment 2
Page 10 of 11

Exhibit A
8 of 9



SDC Administration Fund - 719
 FY26 Adopted 

Budget 
 Supplemental 

Budget 1 

 Appropriations 
Transfers & 
Adjustments 

 FY26 Revised 
Budget 

Department Operating
Development & Public Works 499,569$                -$                          -$                            499,569$                
Finance 35,580                    -                            -                              35,580                    

Total Department Operating 535,149                  -                            -                              535,149                  

Non-Departmental
Contingency 10,000                    -                            -                              10,000                    
Reserves* 582,690                  187,283                -                              769,973                  (1)

Total Non-Departmental 592,690                  187,283                -                              779,973                  

Total SDC Administration Fund 1,127,839$             187,283$              -$                            1,315,122$             

TOTAL RESOLUTION 496,469,576$         31,807,725$         -$                            528,277,301$         

SDC Administration Fund Commentary:

*Reserves and Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance are not appropriated for spending and are shown for information purposes only.

1.) Beginning cash adjustment.

Attachment 2
Page 11 of 11

Exhibit A
9 of 9



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
 Meeting Type:       Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept:  Jessica Mumme/Finance

S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No: 541-736-1032
Estimated Time:  10 Minutes
Council Goals:  Financially Responsible and Stable Government

Services

ITEM TITLE:
Springfield Municipal Code Update - Public Contracts

ACTION REQUESTED:
Conduct a public hearing and adopt/not adopt the following ordinance:

An Ordinance Adopting its Own Code for Public Contracting and Purchasing by Repealing and Replacing
Springfield Municipal Code Sections 2.700-2.722 with New Sections 2.700-2.713.
 

ISSUE STATEMENT:
Procurement at the City of Springfield is subject to state laws and regulations. The Springfield Municipal Code for
Public Contracts is outdated, creating inefficient processes for Council, staff, and the vendor community. 

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
At the September 15, 2025, Council work session, staff presented several policy questions to Council about
suggested changes to the Springfield Municipal Code (Public Contracts). The changes will have no impact to
budgets but will change processes with the intent to improve efficiency. The proposed changes address updates to
state law (SB 1047, 2023 Regular Session) and update the code to adjust practices surrounding public contracting to
improve efficiencies for Council, staff, and our vendor community. Most Oregon cities and counties have already
updated their public contract code to incorporate the changes to state law. The proposed changes to the code are
consistent with the actions taken by other jurisdictions. 

Staff return to Council with a revised Ordinance, capturing feedback provided by Council to staff at the work
session. The revised Ordinance includes language being added back regarding emergency procurement (Section
2.710(3)). 

The remaining milestones for this process is:
October 6, 2025: City Council, Public Hearing (First Reading)
October 20, 2025: City Council, (Second Reading)
Winter-Spring 2026: Implementation of code, and staff training. 
 

Attachments
1. Public Contract Code Ordinance and Exhibit A



PAGE 1 of 2 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON 
ORDINANCE NO. ___________ (GENERAL) 

 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING ITS OWN CODE FOR PUBLIC CONTRACTING AND PURCHASING 
BY REPEALING AND REPLACING SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE SECTIONS 2.700-2.722 

WITH NEW SECTIONS 2.700-2.713  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Springfield is a municipality in the State of Oregon and is subject to Oregon’s 

public contracting laws;  

WHEREAS, the State of Oregon enacted statutes known as the Public Contracting Code and the 

Attorney General adopted associated Model Rules specifying procedures for public contracting that 

reflects the marketplace and industry standards, instills public confidence through ethical and fair 

dealing, and promotes efficient use of government resources; 

WHEREAS, on February 5, 2005, the City of Springfield adopted Ordinance 6115 adopting local 

contract rules not addressed in state law or administrative rule; 

WHEREAS, the City of Springfield further amended Sections 2.700 through 2.722 in 2006 (Ordinance 

6181); 2012 (Ordinance 6281); 2013 (Ordinance 6306); and 2015 (Ordinance 6340); 

WHEREAS, the City of Springfield has determined that Springfield Municipal Code Sections 2.700 

through 2.722 are outdated and must be superseded and replaced with provisions that are streamlined 

and consistent with the state Public Contracting Code and Model Rules; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to ORS 279A.065(6)(a) the City of Springfield adopts its own code for public 

contracting, prescribes its own local rules of procedures and states that the Model Rules do not apply 

unless expressly stated in this ordinance; 

WHEREAS, ORS 279A.070 provides that the City of Springfield may also adopt rules necessary to 

carry out the provisions of the Public Contracting Code; 

WHEREAS, under the Public Contracting Code and this ordinance, the Springfield City Council is 

designated as the local contract review board; and 

WHEREAS, the Common Council finds that the proposed code about public contracting will increase 

the efficiency of City operations, promote competition and fairness, and government efficiency, 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.   Existing Springfield Municipal Code sections 2.700 through 2.722 are repealed; 
new sections 2.700 through 2.713 are adopted as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated by this reference. 
 
 Section 2. The City Attorney is hereby specifically authorized to edit the code to change 
references to these renumbered sections to agree with this Ordinance, as provided in section 1.145. 

 
Section 3.  Savings Clause. Except as specifically provided herein, Chapter 2 shall continue 

in full force and effect.   
 

Attachment 1
Page 1 of 14



PAGE 2 of 2 

Section 4.   Severability Clause. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 
portion of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such 
holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion hereof. 

 
Section 5. Effective date of Ordinance. The effective date of this Ordinance is 30 days after 

adoption by the Council and approval by the Mayor.  
 

ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Springfield this ___ day of October, 2025, by a 
vote of ______ for and ______ against. 

 
APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Springfield this ______ day of October, 2025. 

 
 
 
_______________________ 

      Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
City Recorder 

Attachment 1
Page 2 of 14

lcraig
Typewriter
9/24/2025



EXHIBIT A 

{00038129:2} 1 
 

Article XIII PUBLIC CONTRACTS 
 
2.700 Applicability of Model Rules. 
Pursuant to ORS 279A.065(6), the City elects to establish its own policy for public contracting 
and purchasing. Except as provided herein, the Model Rules do not apply to the City. 
 
2.701 Local Contract Review Board. 
The Council is designated as the local contract review board of the City and has all the rights, 
powers, and authority necessary to carry out the provisions of this Code, the Public Contracting 
Code, and/or the Model Rules. 
 
2.702 Definitions. 
Unless context clearly requires otherwise, the terms used in this Code have the meanings set 
forth in this section, Springfield Municipal Code 1.105, ORS 279A.010(1), the statutes listed in 
ORS 279A.010(2), or the Model Rules: 
 
(1) Model Rules. The Attorney General’s model rules of procedure for Public Contracting as 

required under ORS 279A.065, specifically Oregon Administrative Rules Chapter 137, 
divisions 46, 47, 48, and 49. 

 
(2) Code, This Code. Sections 2.700 to 2.713 of the Springfield Municipal Code. 
 
(3) Personal Services. Services, other than professional services, that require specialized 

skill, knowledge, and resources in the application of technical or scientific expertise or in 
the exercise of professional, artistic, or management discretion or judgment, including 
but not limited to, the following classes of contracts: 

 
(a) Contracts for services performed in a professional capacity, including but not 

limited to, services of an accountant, attorney, auditor, court reporter, 
information technology consultant, physician or broadcaster; 

 
(b) Contracts for professional or expert witnesses or consultants to provide services 

or testimony relating to existing or potential litigation or legal matters in which 
the City is or may become interested; 

 
(c) Contracts for services as an artist in the performing or fine arts, including any 

person identified as a photographer, film maker, actor, director, painter, weaver 
or sculptor; 

 
(d) Contracts for services that are specialized, creative or research-oriented; and 
 
(e) Contracts for services as a consultant. 

 
(4) Professional services. Architectural, engineering, land surveying, photogrammetric, 

transportation planning or related services, or any combination of these services, 
provided by a consultant. 
 

Exhibit A
1 of 12

Attachment 1
Page 3 of 14



EXHIBIT A 

{00038129:2} 2 
 

(5) Public Contracting Code. ORS chapters 279A, 279B and 279C. 
 
(6) Related services. Personal services, other than architectural, engineering and land 

survey services, that are related to the planning, design, engineering or oversight of 
public improvement projects or components thereof, including but not limited to the 
following:  
 
(a) Landscape architectural services; 
(b) Facilities, energy, and space planning services; 
(c) Environmental impact studies; 
(d) Hazardous substances or hazardous waste or toxic substances testing services; 
(e) Wetland delineation studies; 
(f) Wetland mitigation services; 
(g) Natural and historic resource services such as Native American/Alaskan Native 

studies, historical research, endangered species studies, rare plant studies, 
biological services, or archaeological services; 

(h) Cost estimating and appraising services; 
(i) Material testing services; 
(j) Mechanical system balancing and commissioning services; 
(k) Project management services, construction management services, and owner’s 

representatives services; and/or 
(l) Land use planning services. 

 
(7) Revenue generating agreements. Contracts or agreements for services that generate 

revenue and that are typically awarded to the offeror proposing the most advantageous 
or highest monetary return, except for liquidation sale and auction services for 
disposition of surplus property. 
 

(8) Scope. The range and attributes of the goods or services described in a procurement 
document. 
 

(9) Work. The furnishing of all materials, equipment, labor and incidentals necessary to 
successfully complete any individual item in a contract and successful completion of all 
duties and obligations imposed by the contract. 
 

(10) Written or in writing. Conventional paper documents, whether handwritten, typewritten 
or printed, in contrast to spoken words, including electronic transmissions or facsimile 
documents when required by applicable law or permitted by a solicitation document or 
contract. 

 
2.703 Exempt Contracts. 
This Code does not apply to the following: 
 
(1) Contracts or agreements to which the Public Contracting Code does not apply. 
 
(2) Contracts, intergovernmental and interstate agreements entered into pursuant to ORS 

Chapter 190. 
 

Exhibit A
2 of 12

Attachment 1
Page 4 of 14



EXHIBIT A 

{00038129:2} 3 
 

(3) Grants. 
 
(4) Acquisitions or disposals of real property or interests in real property. 
 
(5) Procurements from an Oregon Corrections Enterprise program. 
 
(6) Contracts for employee benefit plans. 
 
(7) Contracts for insurance. 
 
(8) Revenue generating agreements. 
 
(9) A development agreement entered into between the city of Springfield and a person or 

entity responsible for carrying out conditions of approval of a land use decision of the 
City of Springfield. The term “land use decision” has the meaning provided by ORS 
197.015. 
 

(10) Contracts with newspapers or other publications for the placement of advertising or for 
the purpose of giving public or legal notice. 

 
(11) Contracts, agreements, or other documents entered into, issued or established in 

connection with: 
 
(a) The incurring of debt, including any associated contracts, agreements or other 

documents, regardless of whether the obligations that the contracts, agreements 
or other documents establish are general, special or limited; 
 

(b) The making of program loans and similar extensions or advance of funds, aid or 
assistance by the City to a public or private person for the purpose of carrying 
out, promoting or sustaining activities or programs authorized by law other than 
for the construction of public works or public improvements; 
 

(c) The investment of funds by the City as authorized by law; or 
 

(d) Banking, money management or other predominantly financial transactions that, 
by their character, cannot practically be established under the competitive 
contractor selection procedures, based upon the findings of the City Manager. 

 
(12) Contracts for the purchase of goods or services where the rate or price for the goods or 

services being purchased is established by federal, state or local regulating authority and 
available from a single source or limited number of sources. 
 

(13) Federal agreements where applicable federal statutes and regulations govern when 
federal funds are involved and the federal statutes or regulations conflict with any 
provision of the Public Contracting Code or this Code or require additional conditions in 
public contracts not authorized by the Public Contracting Code or this Code. 

 
(14) Any contract exempted by the specific provisions of this Code. 

Exhibit A
3 of 12

Attachment 1
Page 5 of 14



EXHIBIT A 

{00038129:2} 4 
 

 
2.704 Contracting Authority and Responsibilities. 
(1) Authority of the City Manager. For contracts and purchases covered by this Code, the 

City Manager is authorized to: 
 

(a) Award and enter into contracts and amendments, and purchase goods, services 
and/or property, without specific authorization by the Council, whenever the 
contract amount is $250,000 or less and the proposed expenditure is included in 
the current fiscal year appropriations. 

 
(b) Delegate, in writing, the signature authority and purchasing powers described in 

subsection (a). 
 
(c) Consistent with this chapter, adopt forms, computer software, procedures, and 

administrative policies for all City purchases regardless of amount. 
 

i. The forms, computer software, procedures, and administrative policies 
adopted under this section must not encourage favoritism or substantially 
diminish competition, and must allow the City to take advantage of the 
cost-saving benefits of alternative contracting methods and practices. 

 
ii. The City must use the forms, procedures, computer software, and 

administrative rules unless they conflict with the Code. 
 
(2) Purchasing from City Employees or Officials. Purchases of goods from or contracts for 

services with a City employee or official, a City employee’s or official’s relative or 
member of their household, or a business with which the employee or official or their 
relative or member of their household is associated with, must be authorized by the City 
Manager and must be in accordance with City administrative policies and the Oregon 
Government Ethics Law, ORS Chapter 244. 

 
(3) Economies of Scale. Each department must plan purchase requirements sufficiently in 

advance so that orders can be placed in economical quantities. 
 
(4) Favorable Terms Required. Purchases and contracts must be negotiated on the most 

favorable terms in accordance with this chapter, other adopted ordinances, state laws, 
policies and procedures. 
 

2.705 General Provisions. 
(1) Public Notice. Unless otherwise specifically provided by this Code, the Public Contracting 

Code, or Model Rules, any notice required to be published by this Code may be 
published using any method the City Manager deems appropriate, including but not 
limited to, mailing notice to persons that have requested notice in writing, placing notice 
on the City’s website, or publishing in statewide trade or local publications. 

 
(2) Procedure for Verbal Quotes and Proposals. Where allowed by this Code, solicitations by 

verbal quotes and proposals must be based on a description of the quantity of goods or 
services to be provided, and may be solicited and received by phone, facsimile, or email 

Exhibit A
4 of 12

Attachment 1
Page 6 of 14



EXHIBIT A 

{00038129:2} 5 
 

if authorized by the City Manager. 
 
(a) A good faith effort must be made to contact at least three (3) prospective 

contractors. 
 

(b) If three (3) prospective contractors are not reasonably available, fewer will 
suffice, provided the reasons three prospective contractors are not reasonably 
available is documented as part of the procurement file. 

 
(3) Procedure for Informal Written Solicitation. Where allowed by this Code, informal written 

solicitations are made by a solicitation document sent to not less than three (3) 
prospective contractors. 

 
(a) The solicitation document must request competitive price quotes or competitive 

proposals, and include: 
 

i. The date, time and place that price quotes or proposals are due; 
 
ii. A description or quantity of the good or service required; 
 
iii. Any statement of period for which price quotes or proposals must remain 

firm, irrevocable, valid and binding on the offeror. If no time is stated in 
the solicitation document, the period is thirty (30) days; 

 
iv. Any required contract terms or conditions; and 
 
v. Any required bid form or proposed format. 

 
(b) Price quotes or proposals must be received by the City Manager at the date, time 

and place established in the solicitation document. 
 
(c) The City Manager will keep a written record of the sources of the quotes or 

proposals. 
 
(d) If three (3) quotes or proposals are not reasonably available, fewer will suffice, 

but the City Manager must make a written record of the effort made to obtain 
quotes or proposals as part of the procurement file. 

 
(4) Retroactive Approval. Retroactive approval of a contract means the award or execution 

of a contract where work was commenced without final award or execution. The City 
Manager may make a retroactive approval of a contract only if the responsible employee 
submits a copy of the proposed contract to the City Manager, along with a written 
request for contract retroactive approval, that contains: 
 
(a) An explanation of the reason work was commenced before the contract was 

finally awarded or executed; 
 
(b) A description of steps being taken to prevent similar occurrences in the future; 

Exhibit A
5 of 12

Attachment 1
Page 7 of 14



EXHIBIT A 

{00038129:2} 6 
 

 
(c) Evidence that, but for the failure to finally award or execute the contract, the 

employee complied with all other steps required to properly select a contractor 
and negotiate the contract; and 

 
(d) A proposed form of contract. 
 

(5) No Artificial Division. The City may not artificially divide or fragment a public contract or 
procurement so as to constitute a less competitive level of procurement than required 
under this Code or to circumvent competitive procurement requirements under this 
Code. 

 
2.706 Source Selection for Goods and Services other than Personal or Professional 
Services. 
(1) Small Procurements. Contracts for or purchases of goods or services with a contract 

price of $25,000 or less are small procurements. 
 
(a) Small procurements may be by any procurement method the City Manager 

deems practical or convenient, including direct selection or award, competitive 
verbal quotes, or informal written solicitations. 

 
(b) Negotiations. The City Manager may negotiate with an offeror to clarify 

competitive verbal quotes or proposals or informal written proposals, or to make 
modifications that will make the quote or proposal acceptable or more 
advantageous to the City. 

 
(c) Award. If a contract is awarded, the award must be made to the offeror whose 

verbal quote or proposal the City Manager determines will best serve the 
interests of the City, taking into account price as well as any other relevant 
considerations, including but not limited to, experience, expertise, product 
functionality, suitability for a particular purpose, delivery, and contractor 
responsibility. 

 
(d) Amendments. Small procurement contracts may be amended if the cumulative 

amendments do not increase the total contract price to greater than $31,250. 
 
(e) Public Notice. No public notice of small procurements is required. 

 
(2) Intermediate Procurements. Contracts for goods or services with a contract price greater 

than $25,000 and less than or equal to $250,000 are intermediate procurements. 
 
(a) Intermediate procurements must be by informal written solicitation. 
 
(b) Negotiations. The City Manager may negotiate with an offeror to clarify an 

informal written solicitation, or to make modifications that will make the quote, 
proposal or solicitation acceptable or more advantageous to the City. 

 

Exhibit A
6 of 12

Attachment 1
Page 8 of 14



EXHIBIT A 

{00038129:2} 7 
 

(c) Award. If a contract is awarded, the award must be made to the offeror whose 
competitive verbal quote or proposal or informal written solicitation the City 
Manager determines will best serve the interests of the City, taking into account 
price or any other relevant considerations, including but not limited to, 
experience, expertise, product functionality, suitability for a particular purpose, 
delivery and contractor responsibility. 

 
(d) Amendments. Intermediate procurement contracts may be amended if the 

cumulative amendments do not increase the total contract price to greater than 
$250,000 or one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the original contract 
price, whichever is greater. 

 
(e) Public Notice. No public notice of intermediate procurements is required. 

 
(3) Large Procurements. Contracts for goods or services with a contract price greater than 

$250,000 are large procurements. 
 

(a) The City Manager may use competitive sealed bidding as set forth in ORS 
279B.055, or competitive sealed proposals as set forth in ORS 279B.060. 

 
(b) When using either competitive sealed bidding or competitive sealed proposals, 

the City Manager must follow the applicable procedures set out in the Model 
Rules. 

 
(c) Public notice requirements for large procurements will follow the applicable 

procedures for competitive sealed bidding or competitive sealed proposals as set 
out in the Model Rules. 

 
(d) The City must apply the applicable procedure set out in the Model Rules for 

processing protests of large procurements. 
 
2.707 Personal Services Contracts. 
(1) Classification of Services as Personal Services. In addition to the classes of personal 

service contracts identified in the definition of personal services contracts, the City 
Manager may classify additional specific types of services as personal services. The City 
Manager may classify a service as a personal service if it meets all of the following:   
 
(a) The work requires specialized skills, knowledge, and resources in the application 

of technical or scientific expertise, or the work requires the exercise of 
professional, artistic, or managerial discretion or judgment; 
 

(b) The City intends to rely on the contractor’s specialized skills, knowledge, and 
expertise to accomplish the work; and 
 

(c) Selecting a contractor primarily on the basis of qualifications, rather than price, 
would most likely meet the City’s needs and result in obtaining satisfactory 
contract performance and optimal value. 

 

Exhibit A
7 of 12

Attachment 1
Page 9 of 14



EXHIBIT A 

{00038129:2} 8 
 

(2) Request for Qualifications. At the City Manager’s discretion, a request for qualifications 
may be used to determine whether competition exists to perform needed personal 
services or to establish a non-binding list of qualified contractors for direct selection, 
informal written solicitation, or requests for proposals. 

 
(a) A request for qualifications must describe the particular type of personal services 

that will be sought, the qualifications the contractor must have to be considered, 
and the evaluation factors and their relative weight. 

 
(b) A request for qualifications may require information including, but not  

limited to: 
 
i. The contractor's particular capability to perform the required 

personal services; 
 
ii. The number of experienced personnel available to perform the required 

personal services; 
 

iii. The specific qualifications and experience of personnel; 
 
iv. A list of similar personal services the contractor has completed; 
 
v. References concerning past performance; and 
 
vi. Any other information necessary to evaluate the contractor’s 

qualifications. 
 

(c) A voluntary or mandatory qualifications pre-submission meeting may be held for 
all interested contractors to discuss the proposed personal services. The request 
for qualifications must include the date, time and location of the meeting. 
 

(d) Unless the responses to a request for qualifications establish that competition 
does not exist, the request for qualifications is canceled, or all responses to the 
request for qualifications are rejected, and all respondents who meet the 
qualifications set forth in the request for qualifications must receive notice of any 
required personal services and have an opportunity to submit a proposal in 
response to request for proposals. 

 
(3) Direct Selection.  
 

(a) Personal services may be procured through direct selection if the contract 
price does not exceed $250,000. 

 
(b) Personal services may be procured through direct selection at any 

contract price, if the personal services are of a confidential nature that 
are necessary to assist with pending or threatened litigation or other legal 
matters in which the City may have an interest, or if the nature of the 
personal service requires an ongoing, long-term relationship of 
knowledge and trust. 

Exhibit A
8 of 12

Attachment 1
Page 10 of 14



EXHIBIT A 

{00038129:2} 9 
 

 
(c) Amendments. Personal services contracts procured by direct selection 

pursuant to this section may be amended, provided the amendment is 
within the scope of the original contract and the cumulative amount of 
the amendments does not increase the total contract price by more than 
one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the original contract price; or 
the amendment is necessary to complete the work being performed and 
it would be unreasonable or impracticable to seek another contractor 
within the time frames needed to complete the work. 

 
(4) Public Notice. No public notice of personal services contracts procured by direct selection 

is required. 
 

2.708 Professional Services. 
The City will apply the Public Contracting Code and the Model Rules when procuring 
professional services and processing protests thereof. 
 
2.709 Public Improvement Contracts. 
(1) Small Procurements. Public improvement contracts for construction services with a 

contract price of $25,000 or less are small public improvement procurements. 
 
(a) Small public improvement procurements may be by any procurement method the 

City Manager deems practical or convenient, including direct selection or award, 
competitive verbal quotes, or informal written solicitations. 
 

(b) Negotiations. The City Manager may negotiate with an offeror to clarify 
competitive verbal quotes or proposals or informal written proposals, or to make 
modifications that will make the quote or proposal acceptable or more 
advantageous to the City. 
 

(c) Award. If a contract is awarded, the award must be made to the offeror whose 
verbal quote or proposal the City Manager determines will best serve the 
interests of the City, taking into account price as well as any other relevant 
considerations, including but not limited to, experience, expertise, product 
functionality, suitability for a particular purpose, delivery, and contractor 
responsibility. 
 

(d) Amendments. Small public improvement procurement contracts may be 
amended in accordance with the Model Rules. 
 

(e) Public notice. No public notice of small procurements is required. 
 

(2) Intermediate Procurements. Public Improvement Contracts with a contract price greater 
than $25,000 and less than or equal to $100,000 are intermediate procurements. 
 
(a) Intermediate public improvement procurements must be made by competitive 

quotes as set forth in ORS 279C.412 to ORS 279C.414. 
 

Exhibit A
9 of 12

Attachment 1
Page 11 of 14



EXHIBIT A 

{00038129:2} 10 
 

(b) The City must apply the applicable procedure set out in the Model Rules for 
competitive quotes. 

 
(c) Amendments. Intermediate public improvement procurement contracts may be 

amended as set forth in the Model Rules. 
 

(d) Public notice. No public notice of intermediate public improvement procurements 
is required. 
 

(3) Large Procurements. Public improvement contracts with a contract price greater than 
$100,000 are large procurements. 

 
(a) The City Manager must use competitive bids as set forth in ORS 279C.335, 

unless using another procurement method as set forth in that statute and 
consistent with the procedures of the Model Rules. 

 
(b) The City Manager must follow the applicable procedures set out in the Model 

Rules for competitive bids. 
 
(c) The City must apply the applicable procedure set out in the Model Rules for 

processing protests of large public improvement procurements. 
 
2.710 Alternative Source Selection. 
(1) Sole-Source Procurements. The City Manager may award a contract for goods and 

services or for personal services as a sole-source procurement without competition 
pursuant the requirements in ORS 279B.075 and the Model Rules. 

 
(2) Special Procurements. The City Council, upon its own initiative or upon request of the 

City Manager, may create special selection, evaluation, and award procedures for, or 
may exempt from competition, the award of a specific contract or class of contracts as 
provided in ORS 279B.075 or ORS 279C.335 and in accordance with the Model Rules. 

 
(3) Emergency Procurements. When the City Manager determines that an emergency exists, 

the City Manager may authorize emergency procurement as provided in ORS 279B.080 
and in accordance with the Model Rules. Except for emergency procurements in 
response to a declared state of emergency, within 30 days of the emergency 
procurement, the City Manager will provide the City Council with a written report of the 
circumstances giving rise to the emergency procurement, the costs of the goods and/or 
services procured, and the method used for selecting the contractor. The City Manager 
will provide the City Council a written report at reasonable intervals of the circumstances 
giving rise to emergency procurements that occur in response to a declared state of 
emergency under the City’s emergency management program.  

 
(4) Cooperative Procurement Contracts. Cooperative procurements may be made without 

competitive solicitation as provided in the Public Contracting Code. 
 
2.711 Electronic Proposals/Bidding. 

Exhibit A
10 of 12

Attachment 1
Page 12 of 14



EXHIBIT A 

{00038129:2} 11 
 

(1) The City may, but is not required to, conduct any or all portions of a procurement by 
electronic methods in accordance with the Model Rules. 

 
(2) The Uniform Electronic Transactions Act, ORS 84.001 to ORS 84.063, applies to all 

electronic records and electronic signatures relating to a transaction entered into by the 
City or its officers, employees, and agents, except as otherwise provided in said Act. 

  
2.712 Disposition of Surplus Property. 
(1) General Methods. The City may dispose of surplus property by any of the following 

methods based upon the City Manager’s determination that the method of disposal is in 
the best interest of the City. The City Manager may consider the costs of sale, 
administrative costs, public benefits to the City, and any other relevant factors. 

 
(a) Governments. Without competition, by transfer or sale to another unit of 

government or public agency. 
 

(b) Auction. By publicly advertised auction to the highest bidder. 
 
(c) Bids. By publicly advertised invitation to bid. 
 
(d) Liquidation Sale. By liquidation sale using a commercially recognized third-party 

liquidator selected as provided in section 2.708 for personal services contracts. 
 

(e) Fixed Price Sale. For a price established by the City Manager based upon an 
independent appraisal or published schedule of values generally accepted by the 
insurance industry. The City Manager will schedule and advertise a sale date and 
sell to the first buyer meeting the specified sale terms. 
 

(f) Trade-In. By trade-in, in conjunction with acquisition of other price-based items 
under a competitive selection. The solicitation must require the offer to state the 
total value assigned to the surplus property to be traded. 
 

(g) Donation. By donation to any organization operating within or providing a service 
to the residents of the state of Oregon, which is recognized by the Internal 
Revenue Service as an organization described in section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

 
(2) Disposal of Property with Minimal Value. Surplus property which has a value of less than 

$500, or for which the costs of sale are likely to exceed sale proceeds, may be disposed 
of by any means determined to be cost-effective, including by recycling or disposal as 
waste. The employee making the disposal must make a record of the value of the item 
and the manner of disposal. 
 

(3) Personal Use Items. An item or individual set of items for specialized and personal use 
with a current value less than $100 may be sold to the present, retired, or terminated 
employee for whose use it was purchased. These items may be sold for fair market 
value as determined by the City Manager, without bid and by process deemed most 
efficient by the City Manager. 

Exhibit A
11 of 12

Attachment 1
Page 13 of 14



EXHIBIT A 

{00038129:2} 12 
 

 
(4) Restriction on Sale to City Employees. City employees shall not compete as members of 

the public, for the purchase of publicly sold surplus property. 
 

(5) All Sales As-Is. All personal property sold pursuant to this section is to be sold “as-is” 
without any warranty, either expressed or implied, of any kind. 

 
(6) Conveyance to Purchaser. Upon the consummation of a sale of surplus personal 

property, the City shall make, execute and deliver a bill of sale or similar instrument 
signed on behalf of the City, conveying the pretty in questions to the purchaser and 
delivering possession, or the right to take possession, of the property to the purchaser. 
 

2.713 Reserved. 
  
 

Exhibit A
12 of 12

Attachment 1
Page 14 of 14



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
 Meeting Type:       Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept:  Thomas Sievers/Community Development

S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:
Estimated Time:  10 Minutes
Council Goals:  Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities

ITEM TITLE:
City-initiated Street Annexation - Segments of Aspen Street and Menlo Loop Public Right-of-Way (ROW) Only.

ACTION REQUESTED:
Conduct a legislative public hearing and first reading of the following ordinance:

An ordinance annexing public right-of-way to the City of Springfield consisting of a segment of Aspen Street and
Menlo Loop; withdrawing the same territories from the Rainbow Water District; adopting a severability clause; and
providing an effective date (first reading).

ISSUE STATEMENT:
The City Council is requested to consider an ordinance to annex segments of right-of-way (ROW) only identified as
Aspen Street from its connection with Centennial Boulevard to 1380 Aspen Street, including the portion of Menlo
Loop that extends easterly from 1370 Menlo Loop, crossing Tamarack Street to 1320 Menlo Loop.  The proposed
ROW annexation is requested to facilitate a jurisdictional transfer from Lane County and to perform infrastructure
updates within the public ROW.

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The subject right-of-way is outside the City limits but within the UGB and are owned by Lane County.  Annexation
and jurisdictional transfer must occur before the commencement of Capital Improvement Projects in the right-of-
way.  The City previously agreed to annex and take over jurisdiction of this right-of-way in an intergovernmental
agreement with Lane County dated April 11, 2022; the agreement includes $415,000 from Lane County for
improvements to Aspen Street & Menlo Loop.

The Aspent Street ROW proposed for annexation is located beginning from its connection with Centennial
Boulevard and extends north to approximately 1380 Aspen Street, and includes a portion of Menlo Loop that
extends easterly from 1370 Menlo Loop, crossing Tamarack Street, to approximately 1320 Menlo Loop.

Recommendation: The subject rights-of-way comply with the standards and provisions of the SDC and applicable
ORS for annexation.  Council is requested to conduct the first reading and public hearing of the ordinance annexing
the subject rights-of-way to the City and withdrawing from the Rainbow Water District.

Attachments
1. Location Maps Aspen-Menlo
2. Aspen-Menlo Ordinance
2A. Site Map and Legal Description
2B. Staff Report
3. Opposition Letter
4. Presentation



LOCATION OF PROPERTY SUBJECT TO ANNEXATION 

 

 

 

  
SITE 

    

Attachment 1
Page <<1 of 1>>



 
 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON 
ORDINANCE NO.    

 

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY TO THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD 
CONSISTING OF A SEGMENT OF ASPEN STREET AND MENLO LOOP; WITHDRAWING THE 
SAME TERRITORY FROM APPLICABLE SPECIAL DISTRICTS; ADOPTING A SEVERABILITY 

CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE  
 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council is authorized by Springfield Development Code (SDC) Article 5.7.100 and 

Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 222 to accept, process, and act upon annexations to the City;  
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with SDC 5.7.125 and ORS 222.111, the City Council initiated annexation of 

certain territory by Resolution 2025-15 on June 2, 2025, said territory being Assessor’s Map Township 17 

South, Range 03 West, Section 27, Map 33, Tax Lot 00077, which is public right-of-way, and is generally 

depicted and more particularly described in Exhibit A to this Ordinance;  

WHEREAS, the territory proposed for annexation is within the Springfield Comprehensive Plan Urban 

Growth Boundary and is contiguous to the city limits. (SDC 5.7.140(A)); 

 
WHEREAS, the annexation is consistent with the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization 

Element; 

 
WHEREAS, a Staff Report (Exhibit B) was presented to the City Council with the Director’s 

recommendation to withdraw the subject territory from the Rainbow Water District as the Springfield Utility 

Board will provide water services directly to the area after it is annexed to the City; 

 

WHEREAS, this action is consistent with the intergovernmental agreement between Lane County and 

Springfield regarding jurisdictional transfer of this street dated April 11, 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 6, 2025, the Springfield Common Council conducted a public hearing and is now 

ready to take action on this application based on the recommendation and findings in support of approving 

the annexation request as set forth in the aforementioned Staff Report to the Council, incorporated herein 

by reference, and the evidence and testimony presented at this public hearing held in the matter of 

adopting this Ordinance, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD ORDAINS AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The Common Council of the City of Springfield does hereby approve annexation of 
the following described territory to the City of Springfield, said territory being generally depicted and more 
particularly described in Exhibit A to this Ordinance. 
 

Section 2.       The Common Council of the City of Springfield does hereby approve withdrawal of 
the following described territory from the Willakenzie Rural Fire Protection District and the Glenwood 
Water District, said territory being generally depicted and more particularly described in Exhibit A to this 
Ordinance.   
 

Section 3. The City Manager or the Development & Public Works Director or their designee 
shall send copies of this Ordinance to affected State and local agencies as required by SDC 5.7.155. 
 

Section 4.  Severability Clause.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 

Attachment 2
Page 1 



 
 

of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, 
such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining portion hereof. 
 

Section 5. Effective Date of Ordinance.  This Ordinance shall become effective on the day 
following the special election, November 5, 2025, or upon the of its filing with the Secretary of State as 
provided by ORS 222.180, whichever is later. 

 

ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Springfield, this           day of     , 2025, 

by a vote of _____ for and _____ against. 

 

APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Springfield this          day of                      , 2025. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

ATTEST: 

Mayor 

 
 

 

City Recorder 

Attachment 2
Page 2 



+ + +

+

* * *

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

***

*

***

**

* *

*

*

*

**

* *

**

***

* * *

*

**

*

*

*

**
*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*
*

*

***

*

*

* *

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

* *

*
*

*

*

*

* *

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

A

(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(((

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
( (

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

((((

((((((((
(
(
(
((

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

( ( ( ( ( ( (

(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((

((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((((

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

(
(

(
(

(

(

((((((

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

R

R

R

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

R

R

R

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

((

( (

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

R

(

R

(

(

R

)

( (

S73°46'30"E  138.18'

195.43'

87.54'

10

96.75'

INITIAL

5

11
9.9

9'

78'

N87°43'40"E

.

14
3.6

8'

80'

15
6.1

7'

85'

11
9.4

1'

(56
.09

')

N34°
9'5

0"E

53.1'

45
.67

'

N71°55'10"W

75'

C R=194.58'

85.03'

11

80'

23.71'

78'

N1
9°5

0'4
0"E

  1
05

.11
'

(N88°55'W)  N87°20'30"W

80'

10
0'

110.45'

N62°46'10"E

90'

N0
°5

5'3
0"E

1

N1
°5

'E

60
'

91.52'

40'
9

30

S59°5'40"W

S1
°0

9'W
    

38
5.1

4'

LC=85.19'

50
'

14'

8

N83°51'15"W

N1
°5

'30
"E

LC
=11

4.5
5'

120.06'

S1°5'31"W

45
.18

'

71
.99

'

N20°25'30"W

3'

45.95'

52
.58

'

N89°50'11"W

14

62
.59

'

78.30'

47.95'

7

MENLO       
       

       
       

      P
ARK

14
0'

N0
°5

5'3
0"E

N1
°5

'30
"E

  1
15

'

N5
°3

7'2
5"E

7

LC=99.61'

138'

S79°34'50"E

N73°7'30"EN61°29'30"W

SURVEY NO 1143

1

N0
°5

5'3
0"E

7.23'

117'

10
0'

ST
RE

ET50'

78'

N87°30'50"E

127.13'

S2
7°2

'30
"W

80'

85'

45.85'

S69°35'50"E

COTTONWOOD

98'

N°
55

'30
"E

90
'

100'

N89°12'55"E

7 N88°54'30"W

S7°29'E

145.29'

398'

62
.58

'

S88°54'30"E

70
'

90
'

91
.16

'

78'

56.28'

90'

80
'

5

N56°15'20"W

5

6

N75°15'W

N26°6'30"W

N1
1°1

2'E

42.4'

N88°38'30"W

80.89'

88.97'

78'

82.71'

4

S72°16'10"W

N1
°5

'30
"E

8

27

10
0'

N34°58'35"W

12

S88°54'30"E

90'

N46°23'25"E

80.15'

11
9.9

9'

79.3'

S5
°2

4'3
0"E

N78°0'40"E

155.71'

RE-ENTRANT COR
ROBERT E. CAMPBELL

DLC 59

80'

19
.18

'

N8
6°

1'5
5"E

14

14
45

.4'

80.04'

R=45'

4

60
'

5'

46.12'

S3
1°7

'W

N62°39'25"E  95'

11

77.5'

12.19'

12
0'

12
0'

N86°38'W

N9°1'40"W

90'

78'

8

99.23'

LC=85.15'

17.96'

10'

86
.17

'

N31°19'45"W

80.9'

N3
°2

2'2
2"E

86
.77

'

S43°37'20"W

90
'

7

S88°54'30"E

S3
0°1

5'2
0"W

48.92'

2

151.43'

N51°39'40"E

2

S89°4'30"E

10
0'

60'

S1
5°4

0'2
0"W

144.23'

N63°47'E     117.05'

5

SECOND       
 ADD

PARK .

10

80.61'

108.57'

N9
°8

'E

S0
°5

5'3
0"E

LC=105'

N1
8°1

8'2
0"E

3

JU
NI

PE
R 

LN

20
'

R=45'
23.96'

10
5'

13

11
9.4

6'

6

S88°54'15"E      777.15'

N22°26'50"W

156'

80'

N68°54'40"E     138.06'

12
0'

11
5'

AVE

75'

N2
6°5

7'5
5"E

137.59'

66'

COURT

3

120'

28.84'

90
'

15
'

7

50
6.2

0'

90'

91
.16

'

90'

79.22'

N1
°5

'30
"E

7

11
9.9

9'

96
.97

'

38.58'

1

S55°49'20"W

70
'

N0
°5

5'3
0"E

    
 33

7.0
6'

135.51'

78'

N66°3'40"E

98.26'

40'

63.12'

61.44'

N2°43'10"W

N26°41'W

25
.85

'

80'

LC
=5

5.8
4'

N79°57'10"E

N1°5'30"E

9.0
1'

39.5'

80.16'

12
0'

134.14'

50'

80'

60
'

84'

N8
°2

2'2
2"E

4

LC=45.84'

N7°33'30"W

N77°51'20"E

28'

N16°15'50"W

N77°2'E N51°59'55"E

N85°0'30"E

12
0.0

4'

N35°30'30"W

67.66'

27.08'

96.38'

11                

13

LC=89.79'

20'

10
0'

N42°28'E

C R=82.23'

23.71'

N32°23'35"W

30'

80'

90'

N10°12'50"E

59
.81

'

60
.18

'

N2
9°1

3'E

28'

143.24'

10
0'

80
'

LC=99.6'

N88°54'30"W     410.74'

6

10
0'

3

=71°53'30"

12
0'

N72°22'30"W  120'

3

15

125.07'

123.07'

78'

N54°59'15"W

10
5'

3

14
45

.7'
21

MENLO       
PARK

70
'

75' N1
4°

0'4
0"E AS

PE
N

R=45
'    

 S44°
38'

50"
W  85

'

35.94'

N1
6°2

5'5
8"E

N1
°5

'30
"E

C=170.12'

12
0'

15
'

P 2

1

12
2'

90
'

80'

12
6.1

0'

N2
0°2

8'1
5"W

63.81'

80'

29.37'

N0
°4

5'W

4

80'

62.25'

80
'

10
0'

6

146.32'

N43°59'30"W

C R=121.61'

28

CY
PR

ES
S

110.03'

64.88'

17

10'

80.15'

122.7'

N73°23'10"W

17'

11

26'

70
'

75'
R=10.01'

12

S1
1°

3'4
0"W

N86°38'W

78'

42.6'

61.51'

N°
55

'30
"E

17
'

L

80'

92'
3

5.94'

27
'

81
.9'

N51°21'5"E

9

N0
°0

5'3
0"E

LC=106.23'

LC=85.98'

46'

84.97'

9

S56°18'E

10.74'

83.63'

47.2'

12
0'

13
1.7

7'

N8°45'45"W

25'

4

107.98'

103.02'

931.22'

61.
75

'

37.65'

129.21'

N1
°2

'40
"E

    
 30

9.0
6'

48.8'

87
.15

'

C R=137.7'
R=

45
'

1

17

S81°51'E     162.75'

5.79'

78'

65.06'

7

8

FIRST       
 ADD       

TO

12
0'

10
0'

64
'

1

4

78'

S6°34'53"E

35
'

10
0'

75'

TA
MA

RA
CK

N42°25'50"E

N1
°5

'30
"E

N1
°1

'25
"E

    
 29

6.7
8'

N25°49'30"W

10
0'

2

25'

78'

80'

9

N1
7°1

2'1
0"E

    
 13

0.3
1'

7

98'

25
'

90
'

80
'

25'

14.6'

90' 94'

91
.16

'

87.57'

90.28'

HICKORY

63.07'
N71°33'10"E

136'

11
5'

9

100'

3

120'

94.38'

N6°26'50"W

110'

432'

N3°13'50"W

N39°56'40"W

70.73'

80.06'

N3
0°1

5'2
0"E

L

(BEARINGS = OREGON COORDINATE SYSTEM)

CT

LC=82.38'

52.27'

N70°47'30'E

S1
8°3

0'4
5"W

  7
1.7

3'

9

18

62.25'

75'

N41°24'45"W

5

3

N4°28'40"W

17.18'

S89°26'22"W

N13°9'50"W

26

80.89'

104'

12

78'

28.
35

'

3

10
0'

10
1.9

'

34'

13

131'

83.03'

N23°55'25"W

N61°21'W

N11°10'W

N88°56'41"E     293.96'

N1
°5

5'3
0"E

    
  2

99
.55

'

59.38'

105'

12
0'

22
.27

'

82.24'

N2
4°9

'30
"E

7.24'

S33°13'20"E

90'

25'

10.23'

85
'

S1
°3

'48
"W

    
 28

0'

12

90'

80.8'

N1
7°7

'25
"E

9

8

85.71'

78'

60.10'

65
.05

'

1
N3

0°1
5'2

0"E

2

N56°56'W

78'

82.14'

80'

12
0'

91
.16

'

10
0'

63.07'

10

17'

10
0'

C R
=2

69
'

10
0'

13
7.1

1'

13
8.9

7'

N52°33'45"W

25'

N8°46'30"W

75'

14

2

108.06'

17'

78'

73.47'

P 3

8

10
7.7

1'

N34°44'W

25'

6

S89°4'30"E

70
'

CO
UN

TY
    

RO
AD

    
    

   N
O 

    
56

9

AVE

N85°30'20"W

N22°26'50"W  107.83'

4

46
.58

'

65.06'

84.94'

N3
°1

5'2
5"E

N88°51'W

48.1'

11
0'

100'

90'

CO
UR

T

120'

100.85'

55.58'

60.9'

90'

70
'

15
.39

'

10

5

S88°54'30"E     360.92'

63'

POINT

C R=252'

80'

11
9.9

9'

N54°51'E

N8
°3

7'4
0"E

27'

S1
4°

0'4
0"W

30.17'

N60°42'E

80.65'

46.57'

57.91'

R=72.34'

N54°57'55"W

30'

46'

LC
=2

4.9
9'

36
.58

'

2

80'

S41°
46'

50"
W

N43°36'35"W

S87°20'30"E  (S88°55'E)

60
'

80'

60'

78'

N44°0'45"E

24

90'

N88°54'30"W

44'

2

94.
59

'

28.65'

5

S53°50'50"E

N88°13'5"E

2.5'

N45°17'55"W

11.39'

35.95'

LC=103.55'

78'

10
0'

12

60
'

N1
°5

'30
"E

N46°26'E

15

109.91'

89.67'

51
.22

'

L

12
0.1

7'

75'

30'

6

80
'

152.10'

19
.22

'

10
0.0

7'

109.63'

S88°54'30"E

LC
=4

0.8
7'

82.5'

78'

22

12
0'

80'

10
0'

15

N5
°1

8'4
0"E

80'

43.9'

79.87'

10
3.9

8'

62.25'N89°49'W

S88°54'30"E

7

67'

100'

70
'

75'

1

SEQUOIA

ST
RE

ET

S3
0°1

5'2
0"W

22
.27

'

29
.05

'

50
.82

'

S88°54'30"E    170'

N59°3'30"E

NW COR

LC=41.9'

90
'

78'

4

N52°51'50"W

63.18'

N42°
45'

20"
E

10
'

12
5'

50'

65
'

98
.95

'

N88°54'30"W

4

=60°53'40"

17.86'                    

S1
°5

'30
"W

16

12
0'

94.66'

70
'

40'

11

N5°53'20"W

S6°5'41"E

29

10'

77.5'

78'

63
.21

'
NO ACCESS FROM LOTS TO CENTENNIAL BLVD

82
.14

'

90'

60'

N42°8'20"W

80.16'

10
0'

102.14'

107
.36

'

95.46'

42.6'

80.35'

90'

N21°15'30"W

2

7.23'

S80°53'35"E

N88°18'30"W

30'

N42°8'20"W

10'

10

3

63'

98.53'

94.93'

85.19'

78'

10
0'

120'

1.65'

EAST

N19°13'30"E

78.02'

59.92'

90'

N3
7°8

'30
"E

14.41'

8

N9
°3

4'2
0"E

S3
2°5

6'4
0"W

50'

84.31'

S57°34'W

15'

L

2

67.13'

10.25'

16

MENLO

78'

N13°20'50"W

N1
4°

50
'20

"E

5

120'

S88°54'30"E

88.41'

51.58'

80'

20

S88°54'9'E

121.08'

80'

75'

N0
°5

5'3
0"E

    
 13

6.8
3'

25'

11
7.0

5'

10
0'

LOOP

60'

100'

59.97'

25
'

7

1

70.
44'

6

8

12
2.9

'

76
.04

'

N2
2°5

8'1
5"E

N5°37'40"W

LC
=7

9.8
'

24
7.7

1'

95
'

N33°39'30"W

N1
°5

'30
"E

12
0'

50'

50
.81

'

N37°2'5"W

PONDEROSA

LC
=2

8.7
8'

91
.16

'

65.1'

11
9.9

9'

78'

(1340.1')  1339.21'

132.83'

78'

91
.16

'

1

N70°47'30'E

6

10

LO
DG

EP
OL

E

15
5.6

4'

N9°3'30"W

100'

83
.73

'

19

CENTENNIAL BLVD.

N69°50'20"E  97.87'

2

80.16'

42.6'
25

S88°54'30"E

S75°23'30"W
N68°44'28"E

38.48'

13

53.76'

N54°48'E    11
1.13'

60'

80'

120'

10
0'

R=
34

6.5
8'

120.46'

57
9.9

9'

N59°15'5"W

87.17'

10
5'

N0
°5

5'3
0"E

32.5'

S88°54'54"E

121.39'

40.83'

84.14'

90'

35
'

S71°56'40"E

62
.48

'

S45°18'20"E

N67°58'E

N69°17'20"E

6

90' 95
'

84.97'

S65°24'25"E

9

LC=79'

37.78'

86.38'

13

LC=99.62'

42
.43

'

S77°46'10"E

S11°34'25"E

S53°50'30"E

90'

78'

66.21'

12
0'

N7
°4

2'2
0"E

62
.58

'

6

10

120'

S82°35'W     267'

2

81.4'

S89°4'30"E

10
8.5

9'

112'

LC=79.13'

N72°22'30"W

L

S1
°9

'W
    

 41
7.1

1'

75'

59.18'

14

TO

12
0'

154.42'

23

13400

46
.87

'

P 1

LC=61.92'

12
0'

25'

78'

10
5.9

4'

70
'

N15°27'49"W

MENLO

L

N88°54'30"W

7

14600

95'
100'

N1
°9

'E

15'
6

L

N80°16'50"W

90.05'

COURT
S59°44'40"E

3

5

SE COR ANDERSON TRACT

P P 95-P0765

REPLAT OF

LOT A

SECOND ADD

TO MENLO

PARK

0.14 AC

0.2 AC
0.15 AC0.16 AC0.16 AC0.16 AC0.16 AC

0.16 AC
0.16 AC

0.18 AC0.18 AC0.18 AC0.18 AC0.18 AC0.18 AC0.18 AC0.18 AC1.29 AC0.18 AC0.18 AC0.18 AC0.18 AC

0.17 AC0.16 AC
0.16 AC

0.14 AC
0.2 AC 0.14 AC

0.16 AC
0.2 AC 0.2 AC

0.14 AC
0.18 AC

0.16 AC

0.16 AC

0.14 AC
0.14 AC0.13 AC0.16 AC

0.16 AC

0.24 AC0.18 AC

0.18 AC
0.19 AC 0.2 AC 0.21 AC 0.2 AC 0.2 AC

0.21 AC

0.24 AC

0.24 AC0.24 AC
0.24 AC

0.25 AC0.28 AC0.28 AC0.28 AC

0.18 AC

0.25 AC0.25 AC0.25 AC
0.24 AC

0.25 AC
0.21 AC

0.24 AC

0.31 AC
0.21 AC

0.25 AC

0.17 AC

0.24 AC
2.22 AC

0.26 AC

0.16 AC

1040010500

1330012600
12300 1270012200121001200011900

11800 12400
1170011400

7000690068006700660065006400630096006000590058005700

116001130011200
132001280012500

11500

11100
950011000 13100

12900
130009700 9100

10800
10900

10100 9000
13700

10200 9800 9400
10700

10600
8900

13600
8600

9200

870088009300

13500

13800
10000

14100
9900

1390014000

14500

142001430014400

10300

55005400

8200
7700 7800 7900 8000 8100

4400
49005000 4800

51005200 47005300 83004600 4500
7600

4300

2600

29002700
28001100

84007400
21002000 75001900 2200

1800
7300

2300
7200

4200 8500

2400 7100
3800

4100

140015001600
3900

40001700 1300
3700

2500

1200 3600
3300

3200340013402
700 3500

1000 600

31003000200300400500800900

13403

13401

019-00

019-03

019-00

SEE MAP
17032732

SEE MAP
17033422

SEE MAP
17032734

SEE MAP
17032844

SEE MAP
17033311

SEE MAP
17032840

FOR ASSESSMENT AND
TAXATION ONLY S.W.1/4 S.W.1/4 SEC. 27 T.17S. R.3W. W.M.

Lane County
1" = 100'

CANCELLED
14600
13400

17032733
SPRINGFIELD

SPRINGFIELD
17032733

LCATSKP - 2019-01-18 09:33

REVISIONS
08/03/2011 - LCAT155 - CONVERT MAP TO GIS
01/18/2019 - LCAT148 - CODE CHANGE TL 03100

  

Exhibit A
Page 1 

cmoorhead
PolyLine

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
1

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
2

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
3

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
4

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
5

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
6

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
7

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
8

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
9

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
10

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
11

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
12

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
13

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
14

cmoorhead
Arrow

cmoorhead
Arrow

cmoorhead
Callout
POINT OF BEGINNING

cmoorhead
Text Box
NOTE:
NUMBERED COURSES COINCIDE WITH COURSE NUMBERS SHOWN ON THE ANNEXATION LEGAL DESCRIPTION.

SEE MAP 17032734 FOR MORE DETAIL ON COURSES 1 THROUGH 7.

cmoorhead
Arrow

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
15

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
16

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
17

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
18



(
(

(
(

(

((((((((((((((((((((((((
(
((

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(
(
(

(
(
(

((

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

(
(
((

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(((((((

(
(
(
((

(
(
( (

(
(

(
(

(
(

( ( ( ( ( ( (

(
(

(

((((((((
(

(

(

(
(

(
(
(

(

(

(

(((((((
(

(
(

(
(

(

R

R

R

R

(

(

R

R

R

R

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

(

R

)

( (

(

72
.06

'

20'

10'

40
'

109'

8

12
'

27.03'

UNIT 20

40'

N34°30'41"W

20
7.1

0'

30'

S0
0°

26
'W

   5
02

.61
'

LC=78.59'

N87°45'10"W   350.16'

COMMON  AREA

24'

70'

LC
=34

.26'

25
'

50'

24'9.6'

82
.4'

28'

GAP

50
'

11

I.P.

16.83'

75'

4'

22'

N0
2°

39
'50

"E

10.29'

WEST  L  ST

R=50
'

4'

22'

10'

120'

10
9.7

2'

34
'

59
.23

'

S87°45'10"E

82
.5'

N0
0°

25
'E

S89°11'E   166.86'

S56°5 6'05"E

N29 °06
'12

"E

12'

24'

12
'

LINE BY DEED

4'

BY
  S

UR
VE

Y  
SP

FL
'D 

 SC
HO

OL
  D

IS
T  

18
"+2

7" 
 19

60

LC=35.75'

2500

19.80'

20'

15
4.7

2'
S0

1°
26

'53
"W

   9
4.9

9'

70'

5

UNIT 5

90
'

22
'

UNIT 14

99
.65

'

34
'

24
'

105'

UNIT 2 

137.95'

53.94'

24'

50.61'

34'

20'

10
2.8

6'

UNIT 22

N70°46'W

RE-ENTRANT COR
ROBERT E. CAMPBELL

DLC 59

120'

28'

85'

34
'

22
'

26'

7.35'

3

S 35655

S89°16'15"E   618.35'

S87°13'30"E
LC=8.97'

14
.9'

STAGE  2

56
.52

'

S87°17'E

L=43.4 7'
21'

95
'

12'

8

52'

34
'

70'

4'

12
1.5

3'

N0
2°

39
'50

"E
   1

87
.43

'

12
'

22'

75
'

L C=
5 4

.09
'

12
'

LC=78.55'

5.51'

WEST   294.85'

N0
0°

25
'E 

  1
35

'

10
'

34
'

107.34'

S87°17'E

4

29.81'

S0
0°

25
'W

LC=49.70'

10
0'

LINE BY OCCUPATION

34
'

22
'

106'

N0
1°

24
'E

22
'

UNIT 17

UNIT 11

136'

55'

2

67.22'

DR
IVE

120'

N0
1°

24
'E 

  1
50

'

22'

34
'

48
.17

'

24'

LC=49.96'

UNIT 23

87
.14

'

12'

80
'

16.3'

N88°08'14"W

24
'

16.77'

28'

FOUND  STONE

116'

LC=14.14'

S87°17'E

4'

80
'

26.71'

L =4
6.0

5'

50'

N0
2°

39
'50

"E
   1

09
.95

'

30'

14
.9'

I.P.

AVENUE 9

1600

LC=9.44'

95
'

12'

36
.68

'

N0
0°

25
'E

34'

70'

95
.11

'

52'

4'
34

'

INITIAL
25'

15'

N86°33'27"W N67°47'50"E

10

N22°11'14" W

54'

24'

84.02'

N0
°2

5'E
   8

0.1
5'

STAGE 1

4'

S87°47'05"E   260'

LC=39.20'

60
'

12
'

70'

25'

COMMON
AREA

S0
1°

25
'35

"W
 

N87°20'10"W

S89°11'E   136'

95
'

22
' 22

'

S42°
54'

44"
W

10.32'

10
0'

13
5'

60'

34
'

22'

3

UNIT 16

95
.97

'

N0
0°

35
'W

50' 82
.5'

L C=4
4.4

4 '

UNIT 19

120
.25

'

40
'

20'

S0
1°

14
'W

   5
15

.63
'

125'

74.08'

12
'

4'

34.8'

28'

10
1.7

1'

LC=60.84'

L=52.41 '

50'

N21°3
4'1

0"
E

95
'

S0
1°

26
'53

"W
   1

55
.83

'

70'

N0
9°1

5'2
0"E

7 8
.1 7

'

2910

24'

S87°13'30"E

12
'

4'

GA
P  

BY
  O

CC
UP

AT
IO

N

24'

POINT IS 106.64' NORTH
1141.93' EAST OF DLC 59

34.34'

S87°20'10"E

22
'

12

OR

28'

S62°41'38"W

R=46'

28'

N0
2°

39
'50

"E

95
.92

'

40
'

N0
0°

25
'E

34'

144'

24'

2

LC=30.94'

95'

120'

24'

12'

34'

LC=83.75'

CENTENNIAL
BLVD

N89°11'W    471.01'

22
'

N87°17'WLC=47 .42 '

55
'

N0
1°

26
'53

"E
   1

55
.83

'

4'

N89°11'W   166.82'

85
'

UNIT 8

14
4.8

6'

LINE BY DEED

13
5'

28'

79
.08

'
55'

67'

50'

UNIT 3 

61.92'

82
.5'

24'

LC=42.11' N89°11'W

14'

34
'

60
'

N78°54'30"E

55
.31

'

12
'

FND 5/8" PIN

S54°41'10"W

UNIT 24

28'

4'

I.P.

10
2.2

9'

L=32.44'

73'

82
.5'

N0
1°

26
'53

"E
    

 29
0.8

3'

50
'

6

12
'

S02°46'30"W

28'

24
'

7

PCL 1
N0

2°
39

'50
"E

28'

25'

S84°34'50"W

26.66'

108.71'
S05° 42'4 2 "E

95'

4'12'

22'

12'

34
'

4'

1

24'

10
'

N0
2°

39
'50

"E
   1

22
.14

'
75

'

48
'

N73°24'55"E

294.85'

3'

124'

50'

S0
1°

29
'W

UNIT 934
'

22
'

5

10
'

4'

S87°17'E

10
9.6

8'

20'

SEE  SURVEY  #13694 

WEST   172'

74
.62

'

N56°38'20"E

88
.88

'

12
'

9

75'

34
'

87
.29

'

10'

N80°26'50"E 74.71'

UNIT 21

132.05'

LC=50.04'

104'

268.50'  BY  SURVEY  #13694  1964
70'

12
'

116'

24' 28'

10
.4'

N85°36'24"W

15
'

50'

24
'

SO
UT

H 
  5

0'

22'

I.P.

NW COR OF A.E.SMITH DLC
BY SOME OLD DESCRIPTIONS

NOW CALLED NW COR OF GOV
LOT 12 SEC 23

S0
1°

39
'50

"W

R=12'

24'

S4
9°

21
'09

"W
LC=68.94'

L=52.31'

LC=38.94 '

R=
46

'

12'

N0
2°

39
'50

"E

N0
°5

9'E
   8

0'

10'

POINT

S87°45'10"E   198.70'

4'

N0
0°

25
'E 

  1
54

.75
'

S4
2°3

7'42"W

84.02'

25'

N86°13'30"W

90.90'

13

S87°45'10"E   136'
60

'N89°11'W   166.85'

N74° 04 '28"E

34'4'

N89°11'W   616.37'

90
'

95
'

6

4'

28'

N0
1°

26
'53

"E
   1

54
.50

'

S87°17'E

10'

13
5'

60'

70'

RA
IN

BO
W

20'

UNIT 13

UNIT 6

22
'

105'

93.83'

WEST   172'

60
'

9.8
'

70'

N49°E

LC=31.87'

17.5'

104'

60.04'

2

95
'

119'

N78°54'30"E

12
'

26'

98.99'

100'

WEST

24'

70'

90'

4'

24
'

22
'

N0
1°

18
'15

"E
    

40
2.0

2'

N16°28'42"E

L=35.12'

50'

24'

2601

N67°12'39"W

4'

119'

22
'

40
'

102.09'

S0
2°

39
'50

"W

LOYAL  AVE

53
.67

'

60.47'

N77°13' 45"E

10
'

S0
2°

39
'50

"W

40'

120'

34'

34'

20'

2

110'

N87°45'10"W

S0
0°

06
'W

N0
0°

25
'E 

  3
69

.87
'

1601

80
'

4'

S0
1°

24
'W

12
'

S87°45'10"E   107.34'

1

N87°38'W

N34°15'15"W

S0
0°

25
'W

UNIT 1 

UNIT 7

UNIT 18

UNIT 12

LINE BY OCCUPATION

22
'

S0
1°

18
'15

"W

1

70.
43

'

13
0.1

4'

100'

13
5'

LC=34.40'

UNIT 4

S0
2°

39
'57

"W

24
3.8

3'

24'

I.P.

80.23'

50'

34
'

55
'

12'

9.6'

14'

60
'

S89°25'W     143.04'

S0
2°

49
'50

"W

WITH  +

71.82'

S57°18'33"E

S43°52'04"E

4'

24'

I.P.
10'

4'

7

SEQUOIA

95
'

10

S0
9°5

9'5
2"

W

110'

73'

12
.9'

53
.72

'

22'

24
'

70'

85
'

17.73'
N0

0°
25

'E

S89°11'E      137.30'

S0
2°

46
'30

"W
   1

08
.17

'

18 X 27  1964

13'

10
9.7

2'

20'

22'

25'

S0
1°

26
'53

"W
    

   2
90

.83
'

75
.83

'

4'

11

S0
2°

  3
9'5

0"W

95
'

166.85'

24'

4'

S0
2°

39
'50

"W
   1

97
'

N68.48'15"E

12'

34
'

24'

12
'

13
'

S89°11'E   95.85'

UNIT 10

N2
°3

9'4
3"E

25'

50'

22'

34'

92
6.1

5'

4

45'

N26°43'40"W

77.22'

10.22'

34
'

22
'

N89°11'W   136'

UNIT 15

FIRST     A
DD

TO

SEQUOIA

16
.35

'

31.64'

PARK

PARKSEQUOIA

SECOND  ADD  TO

SEQUOIA  PARK

81'

N0
1°

26
'53

"E

N89°11'W
68.87'

N89°11'W

67
.87

'

S89°11'E   127.24'

PCL 2
S 38362

2003-

P1738

BI-CENTENNIAL

PARK

CONDOMINIUMS
BI-CENTENNIAL  PARK

CONDOMINIUMS

67'

N1
°2

6'5
3"E

54
.25

'
21

.63
'

N3
°2

8'3
7"W

0.31 AC0.24 AC

0.45 AC

0.02 AC

0.27 AC

0.16 AC

5.21 AC

0.26 AC

0.02 AC

0.29 AC
0.19 AC

0.16 AC0.17 AC

0.18 AC 0.18 AC
0.2 AC0.14 AC0.16 AC 0.51 AC

0.15 AC 0.17 AC

0.14 AC0.14 AC0.17 AC0.16 AC0.16 AC0.16 AC0.15 AC

0.26 AC0.25 AC0.21 AC0.27 AC0.34 AC

0.02 AC0.02 AC

0.02 AC

0.02 AC0.02 AC

0.02 AC
0.22 AC0.19 AC

0.02 AC

0.02 AC

0.02 AC

0.02 AC

0.52 AC

0.02 AC 0.17 AC

0.15 AC0.13 AC

0.32 AC

0.19 AC0.14 AC0.16 AC0.16 AC0.16 AC0.16 AC0.16 AC
1.11 AC

12.78 AC

0.42 AC

0.27 AC

0.21 AC

0.01 AC

27062807
29172918

2604

2920

2919

2916
2915

2602

2700

2707

28002906
29132914 2805

2705
2905 2808

280429122911 2704 2603

2904 2703

2702280628032907290829092903

21002300240124002402

18181819

1820

18031804

1801
1821

18021805

1806
20001900

18121817

1807
1813

180918161822

1824
1808

18101814
18151823

1700
1825

501 400

300500
9001000

1604

200

10070080011001200130016031602

2901

1826 1811

1605

2921

019-00SEE MAP
17032733

SEE MAP
17032743

SEE MAP
17032731

SEE MAP
17033422

SEE MAP
17032742

SEE MAP
17033421

SEE MAP
17032732

FOR ASSESSMENT AND
TAXATION ONLY S.E.1/4 S.W.1/4 SEC. 27 T.17S. R.3W. W.M.

Lane County
1" = 100'

CANCELLED
1701
1400-1601
1800
2200
2500
2600
2601
2701
2801
2802
2900
2902
2910
600

17032734
SPRINGFIELD

SPRINGFIELD
17032734

LCATJCG - 2019-12-31 15:39

REVISIONS
06/08/2011 - LCAT115 - CONVERT MAP TO GIS
04/24/2018 - LCAT174 - NTL 2921
12/31/2019 - LCAT174 - LLA BETWEEN TL 1604 & TL 1605

  

Exhibit A
Page 2 

cmoorhead
PolyLine

cmoorhead
PolyLine

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
1

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
2

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
3

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
4

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
5

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
6

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
7

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Callout
POINT OF BEGINNING

cmoorhead
Text Box
NOTE:
NUMBERED COURSES COINCIDE WITH COURSE NUMBERS SHOWN ON THE ANNEXATION LEGAL DESCRIPTION.

cmoorhead
Text Box
ALL OTHER COURSE NUMBERS NOT SHOWN: SEE MAP 17032733

cmoorhead
Text Box
(SHOWN ON MAP 17032733)



ANNEXATION LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

ASPEN STREET 

 

Beginning at the southwest corner of Lot 9, Block 2, of the plat FIRST ADDITION TO 

MENLO PARK, as platted and recorded at Book 27, Page 26, Lane County Plat 

Records, in Lane County, Oregon, said point being on the northerly right of way of 

Menlo Loop, thence along the following fourteen (14) numbered courses: 

1) South 59° 44' 40" East a distance of 395.67 feet, more or less;  

 

2) thence South 01° 09' West a distance of 777.70 feet, more or less, to the 

beginning of a 346.28 foot radius curve to the right;  

 

3) thence along said curve an arc distance of 87.31 feet, with a chord bearing and 

distance South 08° 22' 22" West, 87.08 feet, more or less, to the beginning of 

a 286.58 foot radius curve to the left; 

  

4) thence along said curve an arc distance of 72.25 feet, with a chord bearing and 

distance South 08° 22' 22" West, 72.06 feet, more or less;  

 

5) thence South 01° 09' West a distance of 10.00 feet, more or less, to the 

beginning of a 644.07 foot radius curve to the left; 

 

6) thence along said curve an arc distance of 16.35 feet, with a chord bearing and 

distance South 00° 25' 22" West, 16.35 feet, more or less to a point on the 

northerly right of way of Centennial Boulevard; 

 

7) thence along said right of way North 75° 45' 11" West a distance of 72.08 feet, 

more or less, to the beginning of a 10 foot radius curve to the left; 

 

8) thence leaving said right of way and along said curve an arc distance of 15.71 

feet, with a chord bearing and distance North 46° 07' 15" East, 14.15 feet, more 

or less, to the beginning of a 346.58 foot radius curve to the right; 

 

9) thence along said curve an arc distance of 87.38 feet, with a chord bearing and 

distance North 08° 22' 22" East, 87.15 feet, more or less, to the beginning of a 

286.28 foot radius curve to the left; 

 

Exhibit A
Page 3 



10)  thence along said curve an arc distance of 72.18 feet, with a chord bearing and 

distance North 08° 22' 22" East, 71.99 feet, more or less; 

 

11)  thence North 01° 09' East a distance of 72.29 feet, more or less; 

 

12)  thence North 43° 51' West a distance of 21.21 feet, more or less; 

 

13)  thence North 01° 09' East a distance of 50 feet, more or less; 

 

14)  thence North 46° 09' East a distance of 21.21 feet, more or less; 

 

15)  thence North 01° 09' East a distance of 507.78 feet, more or less, to the 

beginning of a 140.12 foot radius curve to the left;  

 

16)  thence along said curve an arc distance of 148.96 feet, with a chord bearing and 

distance North 29° 18' 18" West, 142.04 feet, more or less; 

 

17)  thence North 59° 44' 40" West a distance of 278.00 feet, more or less; 

 

18)  thence North 30° 15' 20" East a distance of 60 feet, more or less, to the Point 

of Beginning.  

 

Exhibit A
Page 4 



Page 1 of 8 
 

TYPE 4 – ANNEXATION 

STAFF REPORT AND FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

File Name:  Aspen Street/Menlo Loop 

Annexation 
                
Applicant: City of Springfield 

  
Case Number:  811-25-000049-TYP4 

 
Proposal Location:  
A s s e s s o r ’ s  M a p  1 7 - 0 3 - 2 7 -

3 3 ;  T L :  0 0 0 7 7  

 

Current Zoning & Comprehensive 

Plan Designation:  
Urbanizable Fringe Overlay (UF-10) 

 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan:  N/A  

 

Application Submittal Date:   
July 3, 2025 

 

Associated Applications:  
811-24-000257-PRE (Development Issues 

Meeting); 811-25-000018-PRE 

(Completeness Check)   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD’S DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE: 

 
Review Process (Springfield Development Code (SDC) 5.7.115):  The subject annexation request is being 

reviewed under Type 4 procedures, as a legislative matter, without Planning Commission consideration. 

POSITION REVIEW OF NAME PHONE 

Project Manager Planning Tom Sievers 541-726-2333 

Transportation Planning Engineer Transportation Michael Liebler 541-736-1034 

Public Works Civil Engineer Streets and Utilities Clayton McEachern 541-726-1036 

Deputy Fire Marshal Fire and Life Safety Gilbert Gordon 541-726-2293 

Building Official Building Chris Carpenter 541-744-4153 

A
n

n
exa

tio
n

 A
rea

 

Exhibit B
Page 1 



Page 2 of 8 
 

 
Development Issues Meeting (SDC 5.7.120):  A Development Issues Meeting (DIM) is required of all public 

agency and private landowner-initiated annexation applications, unless waived by the Director.   

 

Finding 1:  A Development Issues Meeting for the subject annexation request was held on December 5, 2024 (Case 

811-24-000257-PRE).   

 
Conclusion: The requirement in SDC 5.7.120 is met.   

 

Annexation Initiation and Application Submittal (SDC 5.7.125):  In accordance with SDC 5.7.125(A), an 

annexation application may be initiated by Council resolution or by written consents from electors or property 

owners. 

 
Finding 2:  On June 2, 2025, the City Council adopted Resolution 2025-15 (Attachment 2, Exhibit B) which initiated 

the annexation of the proposed area detailed in this report, to facilitate jurisdictional transfer of the subject right-of-

way from Lane County jurisdiction to City of Springfield jurisdiction.  Acting upon the Council resolution, the 

property owners (Lane County) who own all the land in unannexed segment of the right-of-way, via Stan Petroff 

(City Engineer) as their agent, filed an official application requesting annexation to the City of Springfield 

(Attachment 2, Exhibit C). 

 

Finding 3:  While the submitted application includes the required documents listed under SDC 5.7.125(B), these 

documents were not completed as the right-of-way contains no electors. ORS 222.170 supports this action by 

providing that when territory proposed for annexation is publicly owned, is right-of-way, or is exempt from ad 

valorem taxation, such property is not considered in determining the number of owners, land area, or assessed value 

required for annexation consent unless the public owner files a written statement of consent or opposition.  In this 

case, the sole property owner, Lane County, has consented through its authorized agent, thereby satisfying the 

statutory consent requirements. 

 
Conclusion: The application requirements in SDC 5.7.125 have been met. 

 
Site Information:  The subject annexation is comprised of public right-of-way only.  There are no privately owned 

properties associated with this request.  The subject property is inside the Springfield Urban Growth Boundary 

(UGB) and is contiguous to the Springfield city limits primarily along its eastern boundary. 

 

The public ROW associated with this annexation is not intended for development.  ROW currently shows zoning within 

the GIS mapping system but is effectively not zoned because it is not a developable lot or parcel.  Capital Improvement 

Projects (CIP) for infrastructure may occur, but ROW is precluded from development as traditionally exercised on a lot 

or parcel.  However, it is encumbered by the Urbanizable Fringe Overlay (UF-10) because it has not yet been 

annexed.  The result of this subject annexation is ultimately jurisdictional transfer from Lane County to the City of 

Springfield.  A public sanitary sewer line is already located within the ROW, as shown in the image below (the 

purple lines and circles show the existing sanitary sewer system).  An annexation agreement is not applicable in this 

instance as there will be a CIP for infrastructure improvement/extension in the annexation area. 

 

The public ROW is not wholly dependent on public services as it only exists as a roadway containing infrastructure 

both above and below grade.  Existing public services are provided to the annexation area as follows: police (Lane 

County Sheriff), schools (Springfield School District), roads (City of Springfield and Lane County), and ambulance 

services (Eugene/Springfield Fire)1.  The applicant currently receives water service and fire protection from the 

Rainbow Water District.  SUB operates the existing electric service and will continue to after annexation.  Upon 

annexation, the City of Springfield will be responsible for all urban services, including sewer, water (retained through 

SUB), electricity (retained through SUB), and police/fire response (through Eugene/Springfield Fire) to the subject 

 
1 The subject property currently receives emergency services from Eugene/Springfield Fire through long-standing contractual 

agreements.  The standards of coverage can be found here: https://www.eugene-
or.gov/DocumentCenter/View/56636/Standards-of-Response-Coverage_FY-2020?bidId= 

Exhibit B
Page 2 

https://www.eugene-or.gov/DocumentCenter/View/56636/Standards-of-Response-Coverage_FY-2020?bidId=
https://www.eugene-or.gov/DocumentCenter/View/56636/Standards-of-Response-Coverage_FY-2020?bidId=


Page 3 of 8 
 

area.  The analysis of applicable public services is provided below in Criterion C.  The approximately 82,400 square 

foot annexation area consists of public ROW only. 

 

 
 

Notice Requirements (SDC 5.7.130):  Consistent with SDC 5.7.130, notice was provided as follows: 

 
Mailed Notice.  Notice of the annexation application was mailed on September 10, 2025, which was at least 20 days 

prior to the public hearing date, to the affected property owner(s); owners and occupants of properties located within 

100 feet of the perimeter of the proposed annexation territory; affected special districts (Eugene/Springfield Fire) 

and all other public utility providers (Springfield Utility Board, CenturyLink Telecommunications); and the Lane 

County Land Management Division, Lane County Elections, and the Lane County Board of Commissioners.  The 

list of recipients of the mailed notice is included with the Affidavit of Mailing for this annexation application and is 

retained as part of the public record for Planning Case 811-25-000049-TYP4. 

 

Newspaper Notice.  Notice of the  October  6 ,  2025,  public hearing was published in The Chronicle, running 

for two consecutive weeks on September 18th and September 25th prior to the hearing. 

 
Posted Notice.  A total of five (5) notices were posted for the October 6th public hearing.  Two (2) digital 

notices were posted on both the City of Springfield website and the Department of Public Works’ Digital Display 

in City Hall on September 9th.  One (1) notice was posted on the physical display board in the City Hall lobby on 

September 9th and two (2) notices were posted at the intersections of the subject right-of-way at W. Centennial 

Boulevard and Tamarack Street on September 11th.  

 

Finding 4:  Staff received written comments from the public at the time of this writing (9/24/25), as summarized 

below:  

 

Exhibit B
Page 3 



Page 4 of 8 
 

 

Resident of 1350 Menlo Loop 

 

The resident wrote in opposition to annexing their neighborhood.  However, the proposal does not include annexation 

of any private property, it is only annexing the public street right-of-way for jurisdictional transfer from Lane County.  

Therefore, staff considers the matter resolved. 

 

Conclusion:  Notice of the public hearing was provided consistent with SDC 5.7.130. 

 
Recommendation to City Council (SDC 5.7.135):  The Director shall forward a written recommendation on the 

annexation application to the City Council based on the approval criteria specified in SDC 5.7.140, which are 

provided as follows with the SDC requirements, findings, and conclusions.  The Director’s recommendation follows 

SDC 5.7.140, Criteria. 

 

Criteria of Approval 
 
Criteria (SDC 5.7.140):  The application may be approved only if the City Council finds that the proposal conforms 

to the following criteria: 

 
A.  The affected territory proposed to be annexed is within the City’s urban growth boundary; and is 

 

1. Contiguous to the city limits; or 

 

2.   Separated from the City only by a public right of way or a stream, lake, or other body of 

water. 
 
Finding 5:  The subject annexation territory is located within the City of Springfield’s acknowledged urban growth 

boundary (UGB).  The public ROW requested for annexation abuts the Springfield city limits primarily along the 

eastern boundary.  Therefore, this annexation application meets the statutory definition of contiguity as found in 

ORS 222.111(1). 

 

Conclusion: The proposal meets and complies with Criterion A(1), Subsection 5.7.140. 

 

B. The proposed annexation is consistent with applicable policies in the Metro Plan and in any applicable 

refinement plans or Plan Districts; 
 
Finding 6:  The annexation area is located within the acknowledged Springfield UGB and as more specifically 

delineated by the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan.  Territory within the delineated UGB ultimately will be 

within the City of Springfield. 

 

Finding 7:  The Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan amends the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area General 

Plan (Metro Plan) through adoption of ordinances since 2011.  Volume 1 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive 

Plan includes the following elements: Economic, Residential Land Use & Housing, Recreation, Transportation, and 

Urbanization.  In December 2016, Springfield adopted the Urbanization Element in compliance with Statewide 

Planning Goal 14, Urbanization.  The Urbanization Element explicitly retains the Metro Plan’s long-standing 

urbanization policy criteria for approving annexations. 

 

Finding 8:  The territory requested for annexation does not carry a plan designation in the Springfield 

Comprehensive Plan (which became effective March 1, 2024, replacing the Metro Plan Diagram within the 

Springfield UGB) because it is public ROW.  The adopted elements of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan 

apply to areas within the Springfield UGB, particularly the Urbanization Element adopted by Ordinance 6361.  

There are no proposed changes to plan designation for the property, although the Urbanizable Fringe (UF-10) overlay 

will be removed upon annexation. 

 

Exhibit B
Page 4 



Page 5 of 8 
 

Finding 9:  The continued annexation of properties to the City of Springfield is consistent with Policies 27 and 

29 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element, which will result in the elimination of 

special districts within the urbanizable area.  The Metro Plan and the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – 

Urbanization Element recognize that as annexations to the City occur, the special district service areas within 

the UGB will diminish incrementally and eventually will be dissolved. 

 

Finding 10:  The territory requested for annexation is currently within the service area of the Rainbow Water 

District  for water and fire protection service.  After the public hearing and upon Council adoption of the Annexation 

Ordinance, the annexation area will remain in the combined fire and life safety departments of the Cities of 

Eugene & Springfield for fire protection and emergency medical service directly to the annexation area. 

 

Finding 11:  In accordance with Policy 33 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element, 

SUB is the exclusive water service provider within the Springfield City Limits.  The annexation area is currently 

served by the Rainbow Water District.  As discussed below in more detail under Finding 18, water services provided 

by SUB for the annexation area are planned for the future jurisdictional transfer. 
 

Finding 12:  In accordance with Policy 34 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element, 

when unincorporated territory within the UGB is provided with any new urban service, that service shall be provided 

by one of the following methods in this priority order: (a) Annexation to City; or (b) Contractual annexation 

agreements with City.  If this annexation request is approved and executed, the subject property will be provided 

with updated urban services such as public sanitary sewer via a CIP. 
 

Finding 13:  In accordance with Policy 35 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element, the 

City shall not extend water or wastewater service outside city limits to serve a residence or business without first 

obtaining a valid annexation petition, a consent to annex agreement, or when a health hazard abatement annexation 

is required.  In conjunction with Council Resolution 2025-15 (Attachment 2, Exhibit B), the property owners applied 

for annexation to the City (Attachment 2, Exhibit C), and an annexation agreement is not applicable in this instance 

as there will be a CIP in the future for infrastructure improvements in the annexation area. 

 

Finding 14:  The annexation area is not located within a Refinement Plan Area. 

 

Conclusion: The proposal meets and complies with Criterion B, SDC 5.7.140. 

 

C. The proposed annexation will result in a boundary in which the minimum level of key urban facilities 

and services as defined in the Metro Plan can be provided in an orderly efficient and timely manner; and 

 

Finding 15:  In accordance with Policy 29 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element, 

annexation shall continue to be a prerequisite for urban development and the delivery of City services in accordance 

with the Springfield Comprehensive Plan and Springfield Development Code. 

 

Finding 16:  In accordance with Policy 31 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element, key 

urban facilities and services are defined as wastewater service; stormwater service; transportation; solid waste 

management; water service; fire and emergency medical services; police protection; citywide park and recreation 

programs; electric service; land use controls; communication facilities; and public schools on a districtwide basis. 

 

Finding 17:  In accordance with Policy 32 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element, 

urban services provided by the City upon annexation to Springfield include storm and sanitary sewer; water; 

transportation systems; police and fire protection; planning, building, code enforcement and library services; and 

public infrastructure maintenance of City owned or operated facilities. 

 

Finding 18:  The territory requested for annexation is contiguous with the City Limits primarily along its eastern 

boundary.  Urban utilities including sanitary sewer, electricity, and water service, are located within the subject 

public ROW and can be extended to serve areas beyond the annexation area if needed to provide more convenient 

sewer connection to such properties.  Therefore, the urban service delivery systems are already available and in 

Exhibit B
Page 5 



Page 6 of 8 
 

place or can be logically extended from points in the vicinity to serve the annexation area and future development.  

In addition to urban utilities, the following facilities and services are either available or can be extended to this 

annexation area in a timely, orderly, and efficient manner: 

 

Water – As noted above, SUB is the exclusive water service provider for properties within the City limits.  The 

annexation area currently receives water from Rainbow Water District.  In a memo dated July 21, 2025, Rainbow 

Water District stated the following: 

 

 Aspen Street Water System Map Sheet 11-A 

 

• In August 2025 Rainbow is installing approximately 200 feet of new 8” ductile iron pipe to replace 

a section of piping in front of Centennial Elementary School (in the curve adjacent to 1360 and 1380 

Aspen Street).  This project will relocate the water main out of the center of the travel lanes and 

make room for the city’s sanitary sewer project. 

 

• Along with the new ductile iron pipe, Rainbow has 1100’ of 8” cast iron installed in 1961 on the 

west side of Aspen Street that will transfer to SUB along with roughly 2 fire hydrants and five 

valves. 

 

SUB Water acknowledged this transfer of service in a memo dated July 15, 2025. 
 

Electricity – SUB provides electric service to the neighborhoods within incorporated areas of Springfield.  SUB 

owns and maintains electrical system infrastructure in neighborhoods they serve.  SUB electric services are present in 

the area and service needs will be evaluated through the CIP. 

 

Police Services – Springfield Police Department currently provides service to areas of Springfield that are already 

inside the City limits.  The annexation territory is currently within the jurisdiction of the Lane County Sheriff’s 

Department.  Upon annexation, this area will receive Springfield Police services on an equal basis with other 

properties inside the City. 

 

Fire and Emergency Services – Fire protection is currently provided to the annexation area by the Rainbow Water 

District.  Upon annexation, the Eugene/Springfield Fire Department will provide fire and emergency services directly 

to the subject territory.  Per the Fire Marshal’s Office, the subject property is within the 5 minute response time of 

Fire Station 4 located at 1475 5th Street in Springfield.  Water supply is not applicable at this time. 
 

Emergency medical transport (ambulance) services are provided on a regional basis by the Eugene/Springfield Fire 

Department.  The annexation area will continue to receive this service consistent with the adopted ambulance 

service area (ASA) plan.  Mutual Aid Agreements have been adopted by the three regional ASA providers to 

provide backup coverage for each other’s jurisdictions. 

 

Parks and Recreation – Park and recreation services are provided by the Willamalane Park & Recreation District.  

The park district operates several indoor recreation facilities, such as the Willamalane Park Swim Center, Lively 

Park Swim Center, Bob Keefer Center for Sports and Recreation, and Willamalane Adult Activity Center.  The park 

district offers various after-school and other programs for children at schools and parks throughout the community.  

Also available are pathways and several categories of parks, including community parks, sports parks, special use 

parks, and natural area parks.  Although it is ROW only, the annexation area is currently within the special district 

territory of Willamalane and will remain that way upon annexation.  The subject public ROW does not contain 

dwellings and will not influence usage of parks.  

 
Library Services – The subject area is ROW only and does not contain residents that would be served by the 

Springfield Public Library.  This service provision is not applicable. 

 

Schools – The annexation area will not generate a school-age population because it is ROW only.  This service 

provision is not applicable. 

Exhibit B
Page 6 



Page 7 of 8 
 

 

Sanitary Sewer – An existing public sanitary sewer system is located within the subject ROW/annexation area.  The 

public line will be extended in a future CIP.  The sewer line has a depth of approximately 12-feet.   

 

Stormwater – An existing public storm sewer system is located in Aspen Street.  The stormwater system will be 

further developed as needed in the future CIP. 

 

Streets – The annexation area contains street ROW only.  A future CIP will determine needed improvements. 

 

Solid Waste Management – The City and Sanipac have an exclusive franchise arrangement for garbage service inside 

the City limits.  Upon annexation, solid waste disposal service would be provided by Sanipac. 

 

Communication Facilities – Various providers, such as CenturyLink, offer both wired and wireless communication 

services in the Eugene-Springfield metropolitan area.  Existing providers and those entering the market have the 

capability to provide service to this area. 

 

Land Use Controls – The annexation area is within Springfield’s urban growth boundary (UGB).  The city will 

acquire all rights to the public ROW upon jurisdictional transfer from Lane County. 

 

Finding 19:  The minimum level of key urban facilities and services, as outlined in the adopted Metro Plan and 

the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element are immediately available and have the capacity 

to serve the site at the time of development. 

 

Conclusion:  Based on the findings above, the proposed annexation, if approved, will result in a boundary in 

which the minimum level of key urban facilities and services can be provided in an orderly efficient and timely 

manner because of their availability and capacity levels meet the City’s requirements.  The proposal complies with 

Criterion C, SDC 5.7.140. 
 

D. Where applicable, fiscal impacts to the City have been mitigated through an Annexation Agreement or 

other mechanism approved by the City Council. 
 
Finding 20:  This annexation has been initiated by the City Council on behalf of the City in order to formally exercise 

and jurisdictional transfer with Lane County and to facilitate a CIP for infrastructure upgrades.   These fiscal impacts 

include costs of constructing public infrastructure internal to the site, such as public street improvements and paths, 

stormwater, water, sewer, and electricity. There is an existing intergovernmental agreement with Lane County setting 

forth the responsibility for payment for these improvements. 
 

Conclusion: The proposal meets and complies with Criterion D, Subsection 5.7.140. 

 

Withdrawal from Special Service Districts (SDC 5.7.160):  Withdrawal from special districts may occur 

concurrently with the approved annexation Ordinance or after the effective date of the annexation of territory to the 

City.  The Director shall recommend to the City Council for consideration of the withdrawal of the annexed territory 

from special districts as specified in ORS 222.  In determining whether to withdraw the territory, the City Council 

shall determine whether the withdrawal is in the best interest of the City.  Notice of the withdrawal shall be provided 

in the same manner as the annexation notice in SDC 5.7.150. 

 
Finding 21:  The annexation area is within the delineated service territory of SUB (electric), Rainbow Water District 

(Water & Fire).  The Cities of Eugene/Springfield will directly provide fire and emergency services after annexation, 

and the City of Springfield by and through the Springfield Utility Board will provide water service after annexation.  

SUB will also retain electric service upon annexation.  Consistent with SDC 5.7.130, posted notice in City Hall and 

the City of Springfield webpage was provided for the public hearing on September 9, 2025, and mailed notice on 
September 9, 2025.  Withdrawal from the Rainbow Water District concurrently with annexation of the territory to 

the City of Springfield is in the best interest of the City.  The withdrawal from the Rainbow Water District is 

Exhibit B
Page 7 



Page 8 of 8 
 

necessary to implement Policies 31 and 32 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element 

whereby annexation is prioritized for the City of Springfield to provide urban services to its incorporated territory, 

and existing special service districts within the City’s UGB are to be dissolved over time. 

 

DIRECTOR’S RECOMMENDATION: The proposal complies with the annexation criteria of approval listed 

in SDC 5.7.140, and Council is within its authority to approve annexation of the subject territory to the City 

of Springfield and withdrawal of the subject territory from the Rainbow Water District. 

Exhibit B
Page 8 



Attachment 3
Page 1 



Attachment 4, Slide 1 of 5



Attachment 4, Slide 2 of 5



Attachment 4, Slide 3 of 5



Attachment 4, Slide 4 of 5



SUMMARY OF APPROVAL CRITERIA

• Criterion A – Within UGB and Contiguous to City Limits

• Criterion B – Consistent with Policies of the Metro/Comp
Plan

• Criterion C – Within Boundary for Minimum Level of Key
Urban Facilities Provided in a Timely and Efficient Manner

• Criterion D – Joint Planning Agreement/Intergovernmental
Agreement for Fiscal Impacts

• Staff Recommendation - APPROVAL Attachment 4, Slide 5 of 5



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
 Meeting Type:       Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept:  Thomas Sievers/Community Development

S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:
Estimated Time:  10 Minutes
Council Goals:  Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities

ITEM TITLE:
City-initiated Street Annexation - Segment of Laura Street Public Right-of-Way (ROW) Only.

ACTION REQUESTED:
Conduct a legislative public hearing and first reading of the following ordinance:

An ordinance annexing public right-of-way to the City of Springfield consisting of a segment of Laura Street;
withdrawing the same territories from the Rainbow Water District; adopting a severability clause; and providing an
effective date (first reading).

ISSUE STATEMENT:
The City Council is requested to consider an ordinance to annex segments of right-of-way (ROW) only identified as
Laura Street from approximately 2145 Laura Street to 2320 Laura Street.  The proposed ROW annexation is
requested to facilitate a jurisdictional transfer from Lane County and to perform infrastructure updates within the
public ROW.

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
The subject right-of-way is outside the City limits but within the UGB and is owned by Lane County.  Annexation
must occur before jurisdictional transfer.  The City previously agreed to annex and take over jurisdiction of this
right-of-way in an intergovernmental agreement with Lane County dated April 11, 2022;

The Laura Street ROW is located mid-block from approximately 2145 Laura Street and extends to 2320 Laura
Street.

Recommendation: The subject right-of-way complies with the standards and provisions of the SDC and applicable
ORS for annexation.  Council is requested to conduct the first reading and public hearing of the ordinance annexing
the subject rights-of-way to the City and withdrawing from the Rainbow Water District.

Attachments
1. Location Maps Laura Street
2. Laura Street Ordinance
2A. Site Map and Legal Description
2B. Staff Report
3. Presentation



LOCATION OF PROPERTY SUBJECT TO ANNEXATION 

 

 

 

  
SITE 

    

Attachment 1
Page 1 



 
 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON 
ORDINANCE NO.    

 

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY TO THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD 
CONSISTING OF A SEGMENT OF LAURA STREET; WITHDRAWING THE SAME TERRITORY 

FROM APPLICABLE SPECIAL DISTRICTS; ADOPTING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE  

 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council is authorized by Springfield Development Code (SDC) Article 5.7.100 and 

Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 222 to accept, process, and act upon annexations to the City;  
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with SDC 5.7.125 and ORS 222.111, the City Council initiated annexation of 

certain territory by Resolution 2025-15 on June 2, 2025, said territory being Assessor’s Map Township 17 

South, Range 03 West, Section 33, Map 11, Tax Lot 00077, which is public right-of-way, and is generally 

depicted and more particularly described in Exhibit A to this Ordinance;  

WHEREAS, the territory proposed for annexation is within the Springfield Comprehensive Plan Urban 

Growth Boundary and is contiguous to the city limits (SDC 5.7.140(A)); 

 
WHEREAS, the annexation is consistent with the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization 

Element; 

 
WHEREAS, a Staff Report (Exhibit B) was presented to the City Council with the Director’s 

recommendation to withdraw the subject territory from the Rainbow Water District as the Springfield Utility 

Board will provide water services directly to the area after it is annexed to the City; 

 

WHEREAS, this action is consistent with the intergovernmental agreement between Lane County and 

Springfield regarding jurisdictional transfer of this street dated April 11, 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 6, 2025, the Springfield Common Council conducted a public hearing and is now 

ready to take action on this application based on the recommendation and findings in support of approving 

the annexation request as set forth in the aforementioned Staff Report to the Council, incorporated herein 

by reference, and the evidence and testimony presented at this public hearing held in the matter of 

adopting this Ordinance, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD ORDAINS AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The Common Council of the City of Springfield does hereby approve annexation of 
the following described territory to the City of Springfield, said territory being generally depicted and more 
particularly described in Exhibit A to this Ordinance. 
 

Section 2.       The Common Council of the City of Springfield does hereby approve withdrawal of 
the following described territory from the Willakenzie Rural Fire Protection District and the Glenwood 
Water District, said territory being generally depicted and more particularly described in Exhibit A to this 
Ordinance.   
 

Section 3. The City Manager or the Development & Public Works Director or their designee 
shall send copies of this Ordinance to affected State and local agencies as required by SDC 5.7.155. 
 

Section 4.  Severability Clause.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion 

Attachment 2
Page 1 



 
 

of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, 
such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining portion hereof. 
 

Section 5. Effective Date of Ordinance.   This Ordinance shall become effective on the day 
following the special election, November 5, 2025, or upon the date of its filing with the Secretary of State 
as provided by ORS 222.180, whichever is later. 

 

ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Springfield, this           day of     , 2025, 

by a vote of _____ for and _____ against. 

 

APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Springfield this          day of                      , 2025. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

ATTEST: 

Mayor 

 
 

 

City Recorder 

Attachment 2
Page 2 



*

*

+

*

**

*

*

*

**

*

*

* *

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

* *

* *

*

*

*

*

* *

* **

*

* *

**

* *

*

**

*

*

*

+

*

*

( ( (

((

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(( ( ( (

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(((((((((((((((((((((((((((((

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(
(
(

(((((

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

(((((((((

((((((((((((((((

(
(

(
(

(

(((((((((((((((((((((((
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

((((((((((((((((
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

((((((

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

(((
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(

((((((((((((((((
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

(
(

( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

(

(
(

(

(

(

(

(

(

R

(

2322

2627

26
3'

SH
AD

YL
AN

E D
RI

VE

WOODLAND

GREENVILLE

S.P.R.R.

THIRD STREET

PIONEER PARKWAY WEST

PIONEER PARKWAY EAST

DR.

DR.

LA
UR

A S
TR

EE
T

(C
O.

 R
D.

 3)

PRASAD  COURT

25'

40'

25'

40'

40'

40'

25'

25'

25' 25'

60'

60'

50
'

50
'

35'
25'

30'

20
'

20
'

20
'

20
'

30'

82'

82'

82'

82'

82'

12
3.6

5'

12
3.6

5'

12
3.6

5'
12

3.6
5'

12
3.6

5'
12

3.6
5'

79
.8'

79
.8'

79
.8'

79
.8'

79
.8'

79
.8'

79
.8'

141'

141'

79
.8'

8.4'

73.64'
82.28'

S 89°53' E

N 89°53' W

N 14° W  156'

S 0
0°

13
' W

121.67'

101.64'

59.97' 81.25'

61.47' 40.70'

59
1.3

0'

S 89°50' E
230.42'

51.55'

S 89°50' E
325.25' 51.55'

51.55'

134.77'

N 12°11'58" W

134.77'

260'

282'

13
0.6

6'

25
2.3

'
29

7.7
1'

S89°50' E

51.55'

191'

51.53'

51.53'

195.8'

19
0'

162.3' 62'

609.65'

S 89°54' E
280.28'

NO
RT

H 
 30

8.9
2'

(N
 00

°0
8'4

5" 
M 

 31
0.4

8')

N 89°57'30" E  1442.01'
170'

170'

142.2' 138.3'483.24'

18
9.7

'

18
9.7

'

18
9.7

'
19

0'

162.3' 62' 142.2'

330'

16
'

51.53'

EAST

330'

330'

330'

EAST  553.17'

13
2'

13
2'

66
'

66
'

SO
UT

H 
 26

4'

223.17'

N 12°11'58" W  288.76'

288.6'

30' 30'

S 89°50' E

10
1'

10
1'

10
1'

10
1'

S 89°51'15" E  551.21'

S 0
0°

03
7'4

5" 
W

10
1'

S 89°51'15" E  231.02'

248'

248'

26
7.9

8'

N 89°51'15" W  139.13'
N 82°40'25" W
L=107.78'

N 82°05'22" WL=85.41'

LC=107.5'
LC=85.22'

WEST  208.00'

350'

NO
RT

H 
 28

0.2
5'

13
8.7

8'

13
8.7

8'

660'

N 89°55' E
660'

S 89°46'30" E  660'
40 RODS. = 660'

40 RODS. = 660'

12
 R

OD
S. 

= 1
98

'
92

.18
'

13
2'

13
2'

92
.18

'
19

8'

66
'

66
'

272.68'

174.85'

60.07'58
.27

'

N 89°50'00'' W

S 14°01'07'' E

N 88°05'48" W 276.47'

N 31°27'30" W 38.41

N 67°32'30" W 32.36

287.31'

16
9.4

7'
234.94'

361.67'

307.06'

13.09'

30' 30'

3

4

1

1

2

1

4

5

1
2 3

4
5

6 7 8 9
10

LOT "A"

9

9

8

8

7

7

6

6

3

I.P.

S 89°50'00" E

76.00' 71.00' 71.00' 71.00' 67.67'

63.00' 74.00' 74.00' 74.00' 56.71'

53.97'

69.96'

67.07'
S 14°00'53" E

S 89°50'00" E

N 89°50'00" W
104.93'74.00'74.00'74.00'76.00'

57
.09

'
62

.09
'

NO
RT

H 
 18

5.1
8'

SO
UT

H
70

.09
'

SO
UT

H
70

.09
'

SO
UT

H
70

.09
'

SO
UT

H
70

.09
'

SO
UT

H
75

.09
'

SO
UT

H
75

.09
'

SO
UT

H
75

.09
'

SO
UT

H
75

.09
'

63.00' 71.00' 71.00' 71.00' 53.69'

S.38647

26.50'
12.34'6.10'

6.38'
4.38' 26.50'

1" RESERVE
STRIP

(30')

120035'

2900

GROVEDALE

WILLOW-
BROOK

SUB.

10
1'

10
1'

10
'

S0
°0

5'2
4"E

12.62'

90
.40

'

10.61'S1°48'47"E

0.46 AC

0.46 AC

2.82 AC

0.92 AC 1.31 AC

1.31 AC

1.88 AC
0.28 AC0.62 AC0.27 AC0.72 AC

0.15 AC0.12 AC0.12 AC0.12 AC0.12 AC
0.46 AC

0.12 AC0.12 AC0.12 AC0.12 AC0.13 AC

0.23 AC2.36 AC

0.22 AC
2.59 AC

0.18 AC

0.23 AC
0.2 AC

0.24 AC
0.23 AC0.95 AC

0.26 AC2.73 AC

0.66 AC

0.03 AC

2000

1900

2100

1800 1700

2200

2300
1600150014001300

39003800370036003500
2400 4000

34003300320031003000

3002500

800
1100

700
2600 200

600

2700
500

1001000

4002800

900

2801

019-00

019-00

019-03

019-03

019-03

SEE MAP
17032622

SEE MAP
17032244

SEE MAP
17032710

SEE MAP
17032623

SEE MAP
17032713

SEE MAP
17032712

SEE MAP
17032333

FOR ASSESSMENT AND
TAXATION ONLY N.E.1/4 N.E.1/4 SEC. 27 T.17S. R.3W. W.M.

Lane County
1" = 100'

CANCELLED
1200
2900

17032711
SPRINGFIELD

SPRINGFIELD
17032711

LCATSKP - 2019-09-18 14:18

REVISIONS
06/02/2011 - LCAT174 - CONVERT MAP TO GIS
11/09/2017 - LCAT155 - ANNEXATION TL 900
09/18/2019 - LCAT148 - ADJUST TL 2700, 2801, 2600 TO MATCH DESC

  

Exhibit A
Page 1 

cmoorhead
PolyLine

cmoorhead
Callout
POINT OF BEGINNING

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
1

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
2

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
3

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
4

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
5

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
6

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
7

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
8

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
9

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
10

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
11

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
12

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
13

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
14

cmoorhead
Architect

cmoorhead
Text Box
15

cmoorhead
Arrow

cmoorhead
Arrow

cmoorhead
Text Box
NOTE:
NUMBERED COURSES COINCIDE WITH COURSE NUMBERS SHOWN ON ANNEXATION LEGAL DESCRIPTION.



ANNEXATION LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

LAURA STREET 

 

Beginning at a point which is 2 feet distant (more or less) of the southwest corner of Lot 

6 of the plat WILLOWBROOK SUBDIVISION, as platted and recorded at County Survey 

File 38647, Lane County Plat Records, and Instrument Number 2004-044748, Lane 

County Deeds and Records, in Lane County, Oregon, said point being on the current 

City Limits line and on the easterly right of way of Laura Street; thence along the 

following fifteen (15) numbered courses: 

1) leaving the current city limits line and along the easterly right of way of Laura 

Street, South a distance of 206 feet, more or less;  

 

2) thence leaving said easterly right of way, West a distance of 37 feet, more or 

less;  

 

3) thence North a distance of 296.09 feet, more or less, to an angle point on the 

current City Limits line; 

  

4) thence East a distance of 40 feet, more or less to an angle point on the current 

City Limits line;  

 

5) thence North a distance of 338.25 feet, more or less to an angle point on the 

current City Limits line; 

 

6) thence leaving the current City Limits line, East a distance of 6.5 feet, more or 

less, to a point on the westerly right of way of said Laura Street; 

 

7) thence along said westerly right of way, North a distance of 202 feet, more or 

less to a point on the current City Limits line; 

 

8) thence along said westerly right of way Westerly a distance of 0.5 feet, more 

or less; 

 

9) thence along said westerly right of way North a distance of 15 feet, more or 

less to a point which is perpendicular to the westerly extension of the north line 

of the current City Limits line in Laura Street; 

 

Exhibit A
Page 2 



10)  thence along said current City Limits line and its westerly and easterly 

extensions, East a distance of 69.5 feet, more or less to a point on the easterly 

right of way of said Laura Street; 

 

11)  thence along said easterly right of way South a distance of 15 feet, more or 

less; 

 

12)  thence along said easterly right of way Easterly a distance of 0.5 feet, more or 

less; 

 

13)  thence along said easterly right of way South a distance of 426 feet, more or 

less, to the northwest corner of Lot 1 of said WILLOWBROOK SUBDIVISION; 

 

14)  thence along the north line of said WILLOWBROOK SUBDIVISION Easterly a 

distance of 2 feet, more or less; 

 

15)  thence South a distance of 185.18 feet, more or less to the Point of 

Beginning.  

 

Exhibit A
Page 3 



Page 1 of 7 
 

TYPE 4 – ANNEXATION 

STAFF REPORT AND FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

File Name:  Laura Street Annexation 
                
Applicant: City of Springfield 

  
Case Number:  811-25-000050-TYP4 

 
Proposal Location:  
A s s e s s o r ’ s  M a p  1 7 - 0 3 - 3 3 -

1 1 ,  T L : 0 0 0 7 7  

 

Current Zoning & Comprehensive Plan 

Designation:  
Urbanizable Fringe Overlay (UF-10) 

 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan:  N/A  

 

Application Submittal Date:   
July 3, 2025 

 

Associated Applications:  
811-24-000258-PRE (Development Issues 

Meeting); 811-25-000017-PRE (Completeness 

Check)   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD’S DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE: 

 
 

POSITION REVIEW OF NAME PHONE 

Project Manager Planning Tom Sievers 541-726-2333 

Transportation Planning Engineer Transportation Michael Liebler 541-736-1034 

Public Works Civil Engineer Streets and Utilities Clayton McEachern 541-726-1036 

Deputy Fire Marshal Fire and Life Safety Gilbert Gordon 541-726-2293 

Building Official Building Chris Carpenter 541-744-4153 

A
n

n
exa

tio
n

 A
rea

 

Exhibit B
Page 1 



Page 2 of 7 
 

Review Process (Springfield Development Code (SDC) 5.7.115):  The subject annexation request is being 

reviewed under Type 4 procedures, as a legislative matter, without Planning Commission consideration. 

 
Development Issues Meeting (SDC 5.7.120):  A Development Issues Meeting (DIM) is required of all public 

agency and private landowner-initiated annexation applications, unless waived by the Director.   

 

Finding 1:  A Development Issues Meeting for the subject annexation request was held on December 5, 2024 (Case 

811-24-000258-PRE).   

 
Conclusion: The requirement in SDC 5.7.120 is met.   

 

Annexation Initiation and Application Submittal (SDC 5.7.125):  In accordance with SDC 5.7.125(A), an 

annexation application may be initiated by Council resolution or by written consents from electors or property 

owners. 

 
Finding 2:  On June 2, 2025, the City Council adopted Resolution 2025-15 (Attachment 2, Exhibit B) which initiated 

the annexation of the proposed area detailed in this report, to facilitate jurisdictional transfer of the subject right-

of-way from Lane County jurisdiction to City of Springfield jurisdiction.  Acting upon the Council resolution, the 

property owners (Lane County) who own all the land in unannexed segment of the right-of-way, via Stan Petroff 

(City Engineer) as their agent, filed an official application requesting annexation to the City of Springfield 

(Attachment 2, Exhibit C). 

 

Finding 3:  While the submitted application includes the required documents listed under SDC 5.7.125(B), these 

documents were not completed as the right-of-way contains no electors. ORS 222.170 supports this action by 

providing that when territory proposed for annexation is publicly owned, is right-of-way, or is exempt from ad 

valorem taxation, such property is not considered in determining the number of owners, land area, or assessed value 

required for annexation consent unless the public owner files a written statement of consent or opposition. In this 

case, the sole property owner, Lane County, has consented through its authorized agent, thereby satisfying the 

statutory consent requirements. 
 

Conclusion: The application requirements in SDC 5.7.125 have been met. 

 
Site Information:  The subject annexation is comprised of public right-of-way (ROW) only.  There are no privately 

owned properties associated with this request.  The subject property is inside the Springfield Urban Growth 

Boundary (UGB) and is contiguous to the Springfield city limits along each boundary heading. 

 

The public ROW associated with this annexation is not intended for development.  ROW currently shows zoning within 

the GIS mapping system but is effectively not zoned because it is not a developable lot or parcel.  Capital Improvement 

Projects (CIP) for infrastructure may occur, but ROW is precluded from development as traditionally exercised on a lot 

or parcel.  However, it is encumbered by the Urbanizable Fringe Overlay (UF-10) because it has not yet been 

annexed.  The result of this subject annexation is ultimately jurisdictional transfer from Lane County to the City of 

Springfield.  A public sanitary sewer line is already located within the ROW, as shown in the image below (the 

purple lines and circles show the existing sanitary sewer system).  An annexation agreement is not applicable in this 

instance as there will be a CIP for infrastructure improvement/extension in the annexation area. 

 

The public ROW is not wholly dependent on public services as it only exists as a roadway containing infrastructure 

both above and below grade.  Existing public services are provided to the annexation area as follows: police (Lane 

County Sheriff), schools (Springfield School District), roads (City of Springfield and Lane County), and ambulance 

services (Eugene/Springfield Fire)1.  The area currently receives water service and fire protection from the Rainbow 

Water District.  SUB operates the existing electric service and will continue to after annexation.  Upon annexation, 

 
1 The subject property currently receives emergency services from Eugene/Springfield Fire through long-standing contractual 

agreements.  The standards of coverage can be found here: https://www.eugene-
or.gov/DocumentCenter/View/56636/Standards-of-Response-Coverage_FY-2020?bidId= 

Exhibit B
Page 2 

https://www.eugene-or.gov/DocumentCenter/View/56636/Standards-of-Response-Coverage_FY-2020?bidId=
https://www.eugene-or.gov/DocumentCenter/View/56636/Standards-of-Response-Coverage_FY-2020?bidId=


Page 3 of 7 
 

the City of Springfield will be responsible for all urban services, including sewer, water (retained through SUB), 

electricity (retained through SUB), and police/fire response (through Eugene/Springfield Fire) to the subject area. 

The analysis of applicable public services is provided below in Criterion C.  The approximately 40,400 square foot 

annexation area consists of public ROW only.  There are no lots or parcels associated with this annexation request. 

 

 
 

Notice Requirements (SDC 5.7.130):  Consistent with SDC 5.7.130, notice was provided as follows: 

 
Mailed Notice.  Notice of the annexation application was mailed on September 10, 2025, which was at least 20 days 

prior to the public hearing date, to the affected property owner(s); owners and occupants of properties located within 

100 feet of the perimeter of the proposed annexation territory; affected special districts (Eugene/Springfield Fire) 

and all other public utility providers (Springfield Utility Board, CenturyLink Telecommunications); and the Lane 

County Land Management Division, Lane County Elections, and the Lane County Board of Commissioners.  The 

list of recipients of the mailed notice is included with the Affidavit of Mailing for this annexation application and is 

retained as part of the public record for Planning Case 811-25-000050-TYP4. 

 

Newspaper Notice.  Notice of the  October  6 ,  2025,  public hearing was published in The Chronicle, running 

for two consecutive weeks on September 18th and September 25th prior to the hearing. 

 
Posted Notice.  A total of five (5) notices were posted for the October 6th public hearing.  Two (2) digital 

notices were posted on both the City of Springfield website and the Department of Public Works’ Digital Display 

in City Hall on September 9th.  One (1) notice was posted on the physical display board in the City Hall lobby on 

September 9th and two (2) notices were posted at both ends of the subject right-of-way segment on September 11th.  

 

Finding 4:  Staff did not receive written comments from the public at the time of this writing (9/24/25). 

 

Conclusion:  Notice of the public hearing was provided consistent with SDC 5.7.130. 

Exhibit B
Page 3 



Page 4 of 7 
 

 
Recommendation to City Council (SDC 5.7.135):  The Director shall forward a written recommendation on the 

annexation application to the City Council based on the approval criteria specified in SDC 5.7.140, which are 

provided as follows with the SDC requirements, findings, and conclusions.  The Director’s recommendation follows 

SDC 5.7.140, Criteria. 

 

Criteria of Approval 
 
Criteria (SDC 5.7.140):  The application may be approved only if the City Council finds that the proposal conforms 

to the following criteria: 

 
A.  The affected territory proposed to be annexed is within the City’s urban growth boundary; and is 

 

1. Contiguous to the city limits; or 

 

2.   Separated from the City only by a public right of way or a stream, lake, or other body of 

water. 
 
Finding 5:  The subject annexation territory is located within the City of Springfield’s acknowledged urban growth 

boundary (UGB).  The public ROW requested for annexation abuts the Springfield city limits along all boundary 
headings.  Therefore, this annexation application meets the statutory definition of contiguity as found in ORS 

222.111(1). 

 

Conclusion: The proposal meets and complies with Criterion A(1), Subsection 5.7.140. 

 

B. The proposed annexation is consistent with applicable policies in the Metro Plan and in any applicable 

refinement plans or Plan Districts; 
 
Finding 6:  The annexation area is located within the acknowledged Springfield UGB and as more specifically 

delineated by the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan.  Territory within the delineated UGB ultimately will be 

within the City of Springfield. 

 

Finding 7:  The Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan amends the Eugene-Springfield Metropolitan Area General 

Plan (Metro Plan) through adoption of ordinances since 2011.  Volume 1 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive 

Plan includes the following elements: Economic, Residential Land Use & Housing, Recreation, Transportation, and 

Urbanization.  In December 2016, Springfield adopted the Urbanization Element in compliance with Statewide 

Planning Goal 14, Urbanization.  The Urbanization Element explicitly retains the Metro Plan’s long-standing 

urbanization policy criteria for approving annexations. 

 

Finding 8:  The territory requested for annexation does not carry a plan designation in the Springfield 

Comprehensive Plan (which became effective March 1, 2024, replacing the Metro Plan Diagram within the 

Springfield UGB) because it is public ROW.  The adopted elements of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan 

apply to areas within the Springfield UGB, particularly the Urbanization Element adopted by Ordinance 6361.  

There are no proposed changes to plan designation for the property, although the Urbanizable Fringe (UF-10) overlay 

will be removed upon annexation. 

 

Finding 9:  The continued annexation of properties to the City of Springfield is consistent with Policies 27 and 

29 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element, which will result in the elimination of 

special districts within the urbanizable area.  The Metro Plan and the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – 

Urbanization Element recognize that as annexations to the City occur, the special district service areas within 

the UGB will diminish incrementally and eventually will be dissolved. 

 

Finding 10:  The territory requested for annexation is currently within the service area of the Rainbow Water 

District  for water and fire protection service.  After the public hearing and upon Council adoption of the Annexation 

Exhibit B
Page 4 



Page 5 of 7 
 

Ordinance, the annexation area will remain in the combined fire and life safety departments of the Cities of 

Eugene & Springfield for fire protection and emergency medical service directly to the annexation area. 

 

Finding 11:  In accordance with Policy 33 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element, 

SUB is the exclusive water service provider within the Springfield City Limits.  The annexation area is currently 

served by the Rainbow Water District.  As discussed below in more detail under Finding 18, water services provided 

by SUB for the annexation area are planned for the future jurisdictional transfer. 

 

Finding 12:  In accordance with Policy 34 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element, 

when unincorporated territory within the UGB is provided with any new urban service, that service shall be provided 

by one of the following methods in this priority order: (a) Annexation to City; or (b) Contractual annexation 

agreements with City.  If this annexation request is approved and executed, the subject property will be provided 

with updated urban services such as public sanitary sewer via a CIP. 
 

Finding 13:  In accordance with Policy 35 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element, the 

City shall not extend water or wastewater service outside city limits to serve a residence or business without first 

obtaining a valid annexation petition, a consent to annex agreement, or when a health hazard abatement annexation 

is required.  In conjunction with Council Resolution 2025-15 (Attachment 2, Exhibit B), the property owners applied 

for annexation to the City (Attachment 2, Exhibit C), and an annexation agreement is not applicable in this instance 

as there will be a CIP in the future for infrastructure improvements in the annexation area. 

 

Finding 14:  The annexation area is not located within a Refinement Plan Area. 

 

Conclusion: The proposal meets and complies with Criterion B, SDC 5.7.140. 

 

C. The proposed annexation will result in a boundary in which the minimum level of key urban facilities 

and services as defined in the Metro Plan can be provided in an orderly efficient and timely manner; and 

 

Finding 15:  In accordance with Policy 29 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element, 

annexation shall continue to be a prerequisite for urban development and the delivery of City services in accordance 

with the Springfield Comprehensive Plan and Springfield Development Code. 

 

Finding 16:  In accordance with Policy 31 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element, key 

urban facilities and services are defined as wastewater service; stormwater service; transportation; solid waste 

management; water service; fire and emergency medical services; police protection; citywide park and recreation 

programs; electric service; land use controls; communication facilities; and public schools on a districtwide basis. 

 

Finding 17:  In accordance with Policy 32 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element, 

urban services provided by the City upon annexation to Springfield include storm and sanitary sewer; water; 

transportation systems; police and fire protection; planning, building, code enforcement and library services; and 

public infrastructure maintenance of City owned or operated facilities. 

 

Finding 18:  The territory requested for annexation is contiguous with the City Limits each boundary heading.  

Urban utilities including sanitary sewer, electricity, and water service, are located within the subject public ROW 

and can be extended to serve areas beyond the annexation area if needed to provide more convenient sewer 

connection to such properties.  Therefore, the urban service delivery systems are already available and in place or 

can be logically extended from points in the vicinity to serve the annexation area and future development.  In addition 

to urban utilities, the following facilities and services are either available or can be extended to this annexation area 

in a timely, orderly, and efficient manner: 

 

Water – As noted above, SUB is the exclusive water service provider for properties within the City limits.  The 

annexation area currently receives water from Rainbow Water District.  In a memo dated July 21, 2025, Rainbow 

Water District stated the following: 

 

Exhibit B
Page 5 



Page 6 of 7 
 

Laura Street Water System Map Sheet 9-B 

 

• SUB installed a new water main in preparation for the jurisdictional transfer.  Due to age and 

capacity limitations, Rainbow will abandon nearly 1100’ of 10” cast iron installed in 1950. 

 

• An estimated six valves and three fire hydrants will be transferred from Rainbow to SUB. 

 

• After the right-of-way is annexed, nine lots will remain in unincorporated Lane County outside the 

city limits.  Four of these lots have active water services that have been switched to SUB’s new 

main, and Rainbow will continue to serve the existing customers with water delivered via SUB 

piping just as some SUB customers receive water from Rainbow piping in other areas. 

 

SUB Water acknowledged this transfer of service in a memo dated July 15, 2025. 

 

Electricity – SUB provides electric service to the neighborhoods within incorporated areas of Springfield.  SUB 

owns and maintains electrical system infrastructure in neighborhoods they serve.  SUB electric services are present in 

the area and service needs will be evaluated through the CIP. 

 

Police Services – Springfield Police Department currently provides service to areas of Springfield that are already 

inside the City limits.  The annexation area is currently within the jurisdiction of the Lane County Sheriff’s 

Department.  Upon annexation, this area will receive Springfield Police services on an equal basis with other 

properties inside the City. 

 

Fire and Emergency Services – Fire protection is currently provided to the annexation area by the Rainbow Water 

District.  Upon annexation, the Eugene/Springfield Fire Department will provide fire and emergency services directly 

to the subject territory.  Per the Fire Marshal’s Office, the subject property is within the 5 minute response time of 

Fire Station 5 located at 2705 Pheasant Boulevard in Springfield.  Water supply is not applicable at this time. 
 

Emergency medical transport (ambulance) services are provided on a regional basis by the Eugene/Springfield Fire 

Department.  The annexation area will continue to receive this service consistent with the adopted ambulance 

service area (ASA) plan.  Mutual Aid Agreements have been adopted by the three regional ASA providers to 

provide backup coverage for each other’s jurisdictions. 

 

Parks and Recreation – Park and recreation services are provided by the Willamalane Park & Recreation District.  

The park district operates several indoor recreation facilities, such as the Willamalane Park Swim Center, Lively 

Park Swim Center, Bob Keefer Center for Sports and Recreation, and Willamalane Adult Activity Center.  The park 

district offers various after-school and other programs for children at schools and parks throughout the community.  

Also available are pathways and several categories of parks, including community parks, sports parks, special use 

parks, and natural area parks.  Although it is ROW only, the annexation area is currently within the special district 

territory of Willamalane and will remain that way upon annexation.  The subject public ROW does not contain 

dwellings and will not influence usage of parks. 

 
Library Services – The subject area is ROW only and does not contain residents that would be served by the 

Springfield Public Library. 

 

Schools – The annexation area will not generate a school-age population because it is ROW only.  This service 

provision is not applicable. 

 

Sanitary Sewer – An existing public sanitary sewer system is located within the subject ROW/annexation area.  The 

public line will be extended in a future CIP.  The sewer line has a depth of approximately 8.41-feet.   

 

Stormwater – An existing public storm sewer system is located in Laura Street.  The stormwater system will be 

further developed as needed in the future CIP. 

Exhibit B
Page 6 



Page 7 of 7 
 

 

Streets – The annexation area contains street ROW only.  A future CIP will determine needed improvements. 

 

Solid Waste Management – The City and Sanipac have an exclusive franchise arrangement for garbage service inside 

the City limits.  Upon annexation, solid waste disposal service would be provided by Sanipac. 

 

Communication Facilities – Various providers, such as CenturyLink, offer both wired and wireless communication 

services in the Eugene-Springfield metropolitan area.  Existing providers and those entering the market have the 

capability to provide service to this area. 

 

Land Use Controls – The annexation area is within Springfield’s urban growth boundary (UGB).  The city will 

acquire all rights to the public ROW upon jurisdictional transfer from Lane County. 

 

Finding 19:  The minimum level of key urban facilities and services, as outlined in the adopted Metro Plan and 

the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element are immediately available and have the capacity 

to serve the site at the time of development. 

 

Conclusion:  Based on the findings above, the proposed annexation, if approved, will result in a boundary in 

which the minimum level of key urban facilities and services can be provided in an orderly efficient and timely 

manner because of their availability and capacity levels meet the City’s requirements.  The proposal complies with 

Criterion C, SDC 5.7.140. 

 

D. Where applicable, fiscal impacts to the City have been mitigated through an Annexation Agreement or 

other mechanism approved by the City Council. 
 
Finding 20:  This annexation has been initiated by the City Council on behalf of the City in order to formally exercise 

and jurisdictional transfer with Lane County and to facilitate a CIP for infrastructure upgrades.   These fiscal impacts 

include costs of constructing public infrastructure internal to the site, such as public street improvements and paths, 

stormwater, water, sewer, and electricity.  There is an existing intergovernmental agreement with Lane County 

setting forth the responsibility for payment for these improvements. 

 
Conclusion: The proposal meets and complies with Criterion D, Subsection 5.7.140. 

 

Withdrawal from Special Service Districts (SDC 5.7.160):  Withdrawal from special districts may occur 

concurrently with the approved annexation Ordinance or after the effective date of the annexation of territory to the 

City.  The Director shall recommend to the City Council for consideration of the withdrawal of the annexed territory 

from special districts as specified in ORS 222.  In determining whether to withdraw the territory, the City Council 

shall determine whether the withdrawal is in the best interest of the City.  Notice of the withdrawal shall be provided 

in the same manner as the annexation notice in SDC 5.7.150. 

 
Finding 21:  The annexation area is within the delineated service territory of SUB (electric), Rainbow Water District 

(Water & Fire).  The Cities of Eugene/Springfield will directly provide fire and emergency services after annexation, 

and the City of Springfield by and through the Springfield Utility Board will provide water service after annexation.  

SUB will also retain electric service upon annexation.  Consistent with SDC 5.7.130, posted notice in City Hall and 

the City of Springfield webpage was provided for the public hearing on September 9, 2025, and mailed notice on 

September 9, 2025.  Withdrawal from the Rainbow Water District concurrently with annexation of the territory to 

the City of Springfield is in the best interest of the City.  The withdrawal from the Rainbow Water District is 

necessary to implement Policies 31 and 32 of the Springfield 2030 Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element 

whereby annexation is prioritized for the City of Springfield to provide urban services to its incorporated territory, 

and existing special service districts within the City’s UGB are to be dissolved over time. 

 

DIRECTOR’S RECOMMENDATION: The proposal complies with the annexation criteria of approval listed 

in SDC 5.7.140, and Council is within its authority to approve annexation of the subject territory to the City 

of Springfield and withdrawal of the subject territory from the Rainbow Water District. 

Exhibit B
Page 7 



Attachment 3, Slide 1 of 5

SITE



Attachment 3, Slide 2 of 5



Attachment 3, Slide 3 of 5



Attachment 3, Slide 4 of 5



SUMMARY OF APPROVAL CRITERIA

• Criterion A – Within UGB and Contiguous to City Limits

• Criterion B – Consistent with Policies of the Metro/Comp
Plan

• Criterion C – Within Boundary for Minimum Level of Key
Urban Facilities Provided in a Timely and Efficient Manner

• Criterion D – Joint Planning Agreement/Intergovernmental
Agreement for Fiscal Impacts

• Staff Recommendation - APPROVAL Attachment 3, Slide 5 of 5



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
 Meeting Type:       Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept:  Andy Limbird/Community Development

S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No:
Estimated Time:  5 Minutes
Council Goals:  Maintain and Improve Infrastructure and Facilities

ITEM TITLE:
An Ordinance Annexing Certain Territory Addressed As 1035 Kintzley Avenue And Identified As Assessor's Map
18-02-06-24, Tax Lot 2500 And Concurrently Annexing An Approximately 65-foot Long By 22.5-foot Wide
Segment Of Kintzley Avenue to The City of Springfield and Willamalane Park & Recreation District; Withdrawing
Said Territory from the Willakenzie Rural Fire Protection District; Adopting a Severability Clause; and Providing an
Effective Date.

ACTION REQUESTED:
Consider adopting an Ordinance annexing territory addressed as 1035 Kintzley Avenue and a segment of Kintzley
Avenue right-of-way to the City of Springfield.

ISSUE STATEMENT:
The City of Springfield has received an owner-initiated request for annexation of territory addressed as 1035
Kintzley Avenue due to a septic failure on the property.  Annexation of an R-1 parcel due to a septic system failure
can be undertaken through adoption of an Ordinance without a public hearing in accordance with SDC 5.7.115(A)
(1)(b).

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
On July 24, 2025 the City received an owner-initiated request for annexation of approximately 0.26-acres of
property located at 1035 Kintzley Avenue.  The property contains a single-unit dwelling and annexation is requested
due to a failed septic system on the property.  In accordance with OAR 340-071-0160(4)(f)(A), connection to City
sewer is necessary to remedy a septic system failure because the system is readily accessible by way of a service lateral
that was previously installed along the subject property frontage on Kintzley Avenue.  To maintain habitability of
the dwelling, the applicant has paid sewer assessment fees and system development charges to facilitate connection of
the property to City sewer service while the annexation administrative process unfolds.  Recent amendments to the
City's Development Code allow for an owner-initiated annexation of R-1 territory to be accomplished through City
Council adoption of an Annexation Ordinance without a public hearing (SDC 5.7.115(A)(1)(b)).  Concurrent with
annexation of the subject property, an approximately 65-foot long by 22.5-foot wide segment of Kintzley Avenue is
recommended for annexation to Springfield and Willamalane Park & Recreation District.  Adoption of the
Annexation Ordinance would also withdraw the entire territory from the Willakenzie Rural Fire Protection District.

Attachments
1. Site Maps
2. Annexation Application
3. Annexation Ordinance
3a. Annexation Map and Legal Description
3b. Staff Report and Recommendations



LOCATION OF PROPERTY SUBJECT TO ANNEXATION REQUEST 

 

 SITE  
  

    

Attachment 1 
Page 1 of 2



 811-25-000144-TYP4 – PROPOSED ANNEXATION OF 0.26-ACRE RESIDENTIAL PARCEL AND  
APPROXIMATELY 65 LINEAR FEET OF KINTZLEY AVENUE RIGHT-OF-WAY 

1035 KINTZLEY AVENUE (MAP 18-02-06-24, TAX LOT 2500)  
SITE CONTEXT MAP 

 
  

 

K
in

tz
le

y
 A

v
e

n
u

e
  

SITE 

S
 3

4
th

 P
la

c
e
 

C
it
y
 L

im
it
s
 

Attachment 1 
Page 2 of 2



City of Springfield
Development & Public Works

225 Fifth Street

Springfield, OR 97477

Annexation Application Type 4

Annexation Application Completeness Check: El

Annexation Application Submittal: 0

SPRINGFIELD

6OREGON Property

Owner: Venture
401 LLC/ Dustin Johnson Phone: (

541) 554- 7606 Address: 

827
SalmonberrySt. Springfield, OR 97477 E-mail: dustin@venture40l.

com Owner

Signature: 

Owner

Signature: 
Agent

Name: Phone: Company: 

E- mail: ress: 

Signature: 

If

the applicant is other than the owner, the owner hereby grants permission for the applicant to act in his or her behalf, except where
signatures of the owner of record are required, only the owner may sign the petition. R'

S MAP NO: TAX LOT NO(S):18-
02- 06- 24- 02500 Property

Address: 1035 Kintzley Ave. Springfield, OR 97478 Area

of Request: Acres: '
26

Square Feet: Existing

Use(s):single family dwelling Case

No.: a(-

25- (hol Project
No.: Application

Fee Deposit: 7000.

00 Proposed

Use: same M

Reviewed

By: Ad7in

Fee:( Comp. Planning Fee: 6•

0. v Total

Fee: A

deposit is collected and charged for Actual Cost of Service ( COS) Placard: Date: 

11,?

q 1  Revised

12/05/ 2024 slm

Attachment 2 
Page 1 of 17



APPLICANTS SHOULD COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING STEPS PRIOR TO SUBMITTING AN
APPLICATION. APPLICATIONS NOT HAVING ALL BOXES CHECKED WILL BE RETURNED
TO THE APPLICANT AND WILL THEREFORE DELAY THE APPLICATION REVIEW
PROCESS. 

Application Fee [ SDC 5. 7. 125( 13)( 1)( h)] 

Refer to the Master Fees & Charges Schedule for the appropriate fee calculation formula. Fees are

based upon the Actual Cost of Service ( ACS) for processing the application. A deposit is collected with
the application submittal to cover the ACS and charged against for the time to process the application. 
In addition to the ACS there is a Comprehensive Planning Fee based on the acreage of the land being
annexed. Copies of the fee schedule are available at the Development & Public Works Department. 

Fees are payable to the City of Springfield. 

m Petition Signature Sheet [ SDC 5. 7. 125( A)] 

For Owner -Consent Annexation ( ORS 222. 125) 

Owner -Consents ouble Majority Petition. To initiate an owner -consent annexation, complete the
Owner- Consent/ Double Majority Petition form listing owners, including partial owners, and
electors. This form includes the Certification of Electors which must be signed by the Lane
County Elections/ Voter Registration Department and also includes the Verification ( Certification) 
of Property Owners which must be signed by the Lane County Department of Assessment and
Taxation. This form is required even if the land is vacant. ( Photocopies may be submitted at
completeness check, with original copies at time of application submittal). 

For Triple Majority ( ORS 222. 170( 1)) 
Triple Majority Petition. To initiate a triple majority annexation, complete the Triple Majority
Petition form listing owners, including partial owners. This form includes the Verification
Certification) of Property Owners which must be signed by the Lane County Department of

Assessment and Taxation. This form is required even if the land is vacant. ( Photocopies may

be submitted at completeness check, with original copies at time of application
submittal). 

Complete the Ownership Worksheet. To ensure that the necessary signatures are obtained, please
complete the attached worksheet. ( Photocopies may be submitted at completeness check, 
with original copies at time of application submittal.) 

For Double Majority ( ORS 222. 170( 2)) 
Owner-Consent/ Double Majority Petition. To initiate a double majority annexation, complete the

Owner- Consent/ Double Majority Petition form listing owners, including partial owners, and

electors. This form includes the Certification of Electors which must be signed by the Lane County
Elections/ Voter Registration Department and also includes the Verification ( Certification) of

Property Owners which must be signed by the Lane County Department of Assessment and
Taxation. This form is required even if the land is vacant. ( Photocopies may be submitted at
completeness check, with original copies at time of application submittal). 

Consent to Annexation Form. 

A Consent to Annexation form should be provided when the applicant' s agent or legal representative
signs the annexation application. To give consent for a particular piece of property, persons who own
an interest in the property, or who are purchasers of property on a contract sale that is recorded with
the county, must sign the annexation petition. Generally, this means that both husband and wife
should sign. In the case of a corporation or business, the person who is authorized to sign legal
documents for the firm may sign the annexation petition. Please provide evidence of such

Revised 12/ 05/ 2024 slm
10Attachment 2 

Page 2 of 17



authorization. 

Summary of Urban Service Provision Form [ SDC 5. 7. 125( 13)( 1)( a)-( b) and ( e)] 

The Summary of Urban Service Provision form provides additional information for the proposed
annexation that is not requested on the Annexation Application form, such as special districts
that currently provide services to the proposed annexation area. ( Photocopies may be
submitted at completeness check, with original copies at time of application
submittal). 

Census Information Sheet ( required at application submittal) 

Proof of ownership in the form of a deed, or other recorded document. 

Legal Description [ SDC 5. 7. 125( B)( 1)( d)] 

A metes and bounds legal description of the territory to be annexed or withdrawn must be
submitted electronically in Microsoft Word or a compatible software program. A legal description
must consist of a series of courses in which the first course must start at a point of beginning. 
Each course must be identified by bearings and distances and, when available, refer to deed
lines, deed corners and other monuments. A lot, block and subdivision description may be
substituted for the metes and bounds description if the area is platted. The Oregon Department
of Revenue has the authority to approve or disapprove a legal description. A professionally
stamped legal description does not ensure Department of Revenue approval. 

Cadastral Map [ SDC 5. 7. 125( 13)( 1)( c)] 

One ( 1) full- size paper copy and one ( 1) digital copy ( in . pdf format) of the Lane County
Assessor' s tax map that shows the proposed annexation area in relationship to the existing city
limits. Paper copy maps must be printed to scale. On all submitted maps the annexation area
must be outlined in redline with survey courses and bearings labeled for cross- reference with the
metes and bounds legal description. If the annexation area extends across more than one tax
map, sufficient copies of each affected tax map must be provided. Please be aware that
annexation redline closures must avoid creating gaps or overlaps, and may not necessarily
correspond with the property legal description. Cadastral maps can be obtained from the Lane
County Assessment and Taxation Office. 

Waiver of Remonstrance Form for ORS 222. 173 [ SDC 5. 7. 140( D)] 
The waiver form may be needed and signed by each owner within the proposed annexation area
as allowed by ORS 222. 173. 

Public/ Private Utility Plan [ SDC 5. 7. 125( B)( 1)( f)] 

A plan describing how the proposed annexation area can be served by key facilities and services
must be provided with the annexation application. 

Written Narrative addressing approval criteria as specified below. All annexation requests must
be accompanied with a narrative providing an explanation and justification of response with the
criteria stated in the application ( also stated below). [ SDC 5. 7. 125( B)( 1)( g)] 

A. The affected territory proposed to be annexed is within the City' s portions of the urban growth
boundary and is contiguous to the city limits or separated from the City limits only by a public
right- of- way or a stream lake or other body of water; 

B. The proposed annexation is consistent with applicable policies in the Springfield Comprehensive
Plan, Metro Plan and in any applicable refinement plan or Plan Districts; 

C. The proposed annexation will result in a boundary in which the minimum level of key urban facilities
and services as defined in the Springfield Comprehensive Plan can be provided in an orderly
efficient and timely manner; and

Revised 12/ 05/ 2024 slm
11Attachment 2 

Page 3 of 17



D. Where applicable fiscal impacts to the City have been mitigated through a signed Annexation
Agreement, a development agreement per SDC 5. 1. 1200, a waiver of remonstrance, or other

mechanism approved by the City Council. 

One ( 1) copy of the previously required information. 

ALL PLANS AND ATTACHMENTS MUST BE FOLDED TO 81/ 2" BY 11" AND BOUND BY RUBBER

BANDS. 

Revised 12/ 05/ 2024 slm

Attachment 2 
Page 4 of 17



Owner Signatures

This application form is used for both the required pre -submittal meeting and subsequent
complete application submittal. Owner signatures are required at both stages in the application

process. 

An application without the Owner' s original signature will not be accepted. 

Pre -Submittal

The undersigned acknowledges that the information in this application is correct and
accurate for scheduling of the Pre- Submittal Meeting. If the applicant is not the
owner, the owner hereby grants permission for the applicant to act in his/ her behalf. 
I/ we do hereby acknowledge that I/ we are legally responsible for all statutory
timelines, information, requests and requirements conveyed to my representative. 

Owner: 

Date: ` 7 0 `% 0D

Signature

Print

Submittal

I represent this application to be complete for submittal to the City. Consistent with the completeness check
performed on this application at the Pre -Submittal Meeting, I affirm the information identified by the City as
necessary for processing the application is provided herein or the information will not be provided if not otherwise
contained within the submittal, and the City may begin processing the application with the information as
submitted. This statement serves as written notice pursuant to the requirements of ORS 227. 178 pertaining to a
complete application. 

Owner: 

Date: —
7

Signature

Print

Revised 4/ 8/ 14 BJ Page 9 of 17Attachment 2 
Page 5 of 17



I

Narrative for Annexation Application for City of Springfield

As of July 23, 2025

Prepared by Venture 401 LLC/ Dustin Johnson dustin venture401. com, ( 541) 554- 7606

The territory proposed to be annexed is a . 26 acre parcel of land located 1035 Kintzley Ave Springfield, 
OR 97478. The property consists of a 1072 sq ft, 3 bedroom/ 2 bath home that currently has city water
and a gravity septic system. The property tax lot is # 1802062402500. The property is currently owned by
Venture 401 LLC/ Dustin L Johnson. 

The reason for seeking annexation is due to a septic tank leak that was discovered by Royal Flush during
a septic tank pump and inspection on 5/ 22/ 2025. It was reported that the tank had a leak and was not
repairable. I was informed by officials of the City of Springfield that a septic permit for repair or
replacement was not available. Essentially my only option was to annex the property to the City of
Springfield and connect to the city sewer system ( and decommission the current septic system) that is
available at the SW corner of the property. 

An Annexation Development Initiation Meeting ( DIM) was held on June 24, 2025 ( remotely) and

attended by Steve Graham ( City of Springfield Plumbing Inspector), Andy Limbird ( City of Springfield
Senior Planner) and Dustin Johnson ( Venture 401 LLC) to discuss annexation process and connecting to

city sewer. It was determined that a plumbing permit would be needed to perform the connection to the
city sewer and because of the failed septic system report, an expedited process and connection could be
performed prior to the formal annexation process to be completed that would require the city council
that would not be in session until September 2025. 

Dustin Johnson completed the application and received a plumbing permit # 811- 25- 001314- PLM and

paid required fees. 

The property is already connected to City of Springfield water. As per Andy Limbird, the annexation
process would not require sidewalks, storm water upgrades or other requirements besides the sewer
connection. The work would simply be limited to the following: 

1. Disconnecting and decommissioning existing septic tank and drain field
2. Adding approximately 100' of sewer line extending from SW corner of property (where city

sewer connection already exists) 

3. Connecting to city sewer line

4. Connecting to the existing sewer line exiting the foundation at the rear of the house before the
septic tank. 

5. The sewer connection was completed on July 18, 2025. 

Note: Property is located within the 2 year Time of Travel Zone for the Willamette drinking water
wellhead. 

Attachment 2 
Page 6 of 17



n

a

nNCD C= 

y r C
El ill r- E p

co  

C= 
x CCil
0

p r

M _ m
on

p O

Nc
Q p

D

LlJ

3
rD

O
h

i

5

rD ( D Z
O

D rt
rD M

r

tdA51

La O 0rt

rD  

L

rz) 

i rt

O M
rt -0

1

O O
rt

O O
C- r U) 

D

r) 0) 
r 7

7
D ( D

X

D C) 
lfl rt

O

rt O
D

D
a( D

O

N (: a

ILn
rt ^ 

O' -fld
rt

N~ 
1 D7
D ( D

Le
V

D

rat 6

N N
Q r

O Krt
rt rt

3
D Dj
0 rt

O
rt

UEn

D( D
CL rt

0 rt
o

3 =
1

CD — 

X n
rt C
O C

DTT
U) 

I

N ', N

N Nol

rD
0- 

3
m

rt

O
rt

V) 

LO

rt

O
a

IL
X
Ol
rt

O
7

o m m zy m

O N3 Lnrentr* 3. (D rtv TI
m m v
I _

I

A C

GO O
Z

m

CIL. N G

o3( ucn
O  Q

0 :

3rM rr

m-( D

m C3

I x -o0 ra
OnO rt 0
N00 0LC) 

Q rt Z
n 0 O

N*= r- 1 ( D N
p ( D ( D X
QO- WV

DOt

Ort : 3 O
C

O
rt

rt

O ((DD
rt

D O
rt — 

r-t

O N. 
O

j O 3
O rt
r- t  

O
rD

On ET r_r
b O rt

O 7

O

m r
ON rr--r

1
IA. 01 ( n

Q  

1J

n' 
v 1

p- a) 
rt

VOp
N ti 6

n

N .-. p

rt

n fD 4

o
a

D
U) ( D J

zr
O

I

rb
w

Up
rb

Attachment 2 
Page 7 of 17



Fz- 

S

ao

O

N

O
O

N O

3fDD

cn
C) 
O

O

D
C ( n

C

QlD  
rt

O

C
CD

C
D

0
2

rz

nrD
00

cnco

r(D

O

o

D
n
0

r

N

W D
N

w
i
rD
U) 

Oq

4 V) 

Cy) nCD
N N

N C, J Q
W

0

ni
O E

O D

LE z• 

N . 
N fDd

z  

O DQ

Z
m

X
V) 

v

D
0) 

CD

n

C
Q
fD

rt

3
fD

aJ

7
Q

1

Q
Q

fD

NN
O

D
r
r

O

D
fD
I

fD

O
h

m
rt

rD
I

rt

fD

Ln

Lo

fD
Q

7

O

fD
X

rt

O
O

O
fD
rt

O
7

O

O
rY

Attachment 2 
Page 8 of 17



a

q
E

m

k

m m

o

2

m

C) 

O

n

q

n
f

q
2

rn
n

2

n

O

G

q
O

G

m

n

k
m

M
m

2

M
o

7

2

K
2

m- 0

O

7

2/ 

m@

2/ 

o
2

m
o

m

2

2

q
m
o

7@

2/ 

O, 

0/ 

O

f
O

o

2

q
7® 
O/ 

m

2
0

0

4
2

4
2

0
0,

0

qU
R R

Attachment 2 
Page 9 of 17



R

O rD O
fY

O

a3zT
rr

N < 3

n 3
D 6

O O

Qj M
Lo

D
cn

O O

c

Pr
fb o, 

3

cD ° t
D

Q
C : 3

rt

fD

rD

n   

fl1 O• 
rt

o
r

c
rD

rD
rn

cr

n _ 0 orD

b n

Z D

a rU  
rt rt

O

D

a rD
x

V) r* 

O p
7 O

2 O

r : 3

O
3

LO
O

D  
Q 7

e- t Q
fD

O O

Q
O
7

O'l

V1 A W N F+ 

C

N

Do3
n rD

A

3
4

rD

rn

c ( D

145 N D

a
Och

m QLa
v

i
3

3 v

a a

oiD ZW
o•• c: 3
rr3 a

cr

X

OW O
rt

O

O r ` 
C

m a

o m
to

rh

3
fD

O
O

7
O

O

O
O
rD

rt

D

IV) I
rn

m
nrt
O

1En

a 
3

y O
Ft 7

O N
7 DD
Q 

OJ
N 

CL

a 

C fDM
H rt

W, 

N
O
O
ko

Attachment 2 
Page 10 of 17



Consent is hereby given to the annexation by the City of Springfield, Oregon of
the following described real property: 

Map and Tax Lot: 18- 02- 06- 24- 02500 Address: 1035 Kintzle. Ave. 

Legal Description: 

In the corporate limits of said city, which is owned by the u rsign

DATED this 25 day of J.UNE 2025

Revised 12/ 05/ 2024 sim

Attachment 2 
Page 11 of 17



This form is intended as a guide to assist applicants in demonstrating that a
minimum level of key urban services can be provided to the area proposed for
annexation. Space is provided on this form for you to provide detailed information
on service provision. Please add additional pages if necessary to provide details of
servicing issues related to the area you are annexing. To assist you in providing
this information, some contacts are listed below. For large or difficult to serve

properties, you may wish to contact a private land use planning consultant to
prepare your application. 

Property Owner( s) Name: 
Venture 401 LLC/ Dustin L Johnson

Assessor' s Map and Tax Lot Numbers for Properties Proposed for Annexation
including the township, section, and range numbers) For example: Map 17-03- 19- 

31, Tax Lot 100

18-02-06-24-02500

The street or site addresses within the affected territory as shown in the Lane
County Regional Land Information Database system ( RR ) 

1035 KINTZLEY AVE. SPRINGFIELD, OR 97478

Wastewater - All new development must connect to the wastewater ( sanitary

sewer) system. Is wastewater service available to serve the area proposed for
annexation? ( For more information, contact the Engineering staff at the City of
Springfield Engineering at 541- 726- 3753.) 

The property( ies) in this annexation request: 1035 KINTZLEY AVE. 

0 will be served from an existing gravity wastewater line. 

Location and size of existing wastewater line: 

will be served by an extension of an existing gravity wastewater line. 

Where will a wastewater line be extended from? When will it be extended? 

By whom? 

Stormwater - All new development must provide for drainage t

Is the site currently served by an approved stormwater system? 

o

Revised 12/ 05/ 2024 slm

Attachment 2 
Page 12 of 17



If yes, location? 

If no, how will stormwater be handled after development? 

Streets - What existing streets provide access to this site? List existing streets that

provide access to this site.. 

Will dedication for additional street right- of-way be required upon further
development of this site? 

DYes ONo DUnknown

Will existing streets be extended or new streets constructed upon further
development of this site? 

DYes No DUnknown

Schools - Please indicate which school district serves the subject property. 

Eugene School District

ye; Springfield School District

Pleasant Hill School District

Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Services - Systems Development revenues

generated by new development will help to fund future acquisition and development
in this area and throughout the Willamalane Park and Recreation District. Please

list the parks and recreation facilities that already exist or are planned in the
general vicinity of the property( ies) included in this annexation: 

Key services, defined by the Willamalane Comprehensive Plan as parks and
recreation programs, will be available to residents in this area on an equal
basis with residents throughout the Willamalane Park and Recreation District. 

Public Safety

Police services - Police protection can be extended to this site upon annexation

Revised 12/ 05/ 2024 sim

Attachment 2 
Page 13 of 17



consistent with service provision throughout the city. 

Fire and emergency services (Please indicate which fire district serves subject
property.) 

McKenzie Fire & Rescue

u Glenwood Water District

Rainbow Water and Fire District

Willa`kenzie Fire & Rescue

Upon annexation, fire protection will be provided directly by the City of Springfield
Fire & EMS Department. 

Emergency medical transport ( i. e., ambulance) services are currently

provided on a regional basis by Eugene, Springfield, and Lane Rural Fire/ Rescue to
central Lane County, including unincorporated areas in Springfield. After

annexation, this service will continue to be provided by the current provider. All
ambulance service providers have mutual aid agreements and provide back- up
service into the other providers' areas. 

Planning and Development Services - Planning and building permit services are

provided to the area outside the city limits but within the urban growth boundary
by the City of Springfield. This service would continue after annexation. 

Water and Electric Services - Springfield Utility Board ( SUB) currently provides
water and electric service in the Springfield area and can provide service upon
annexation. For more information contact EPUD, Glenwood Water District, 
Rainbow Water and Fire District, or SUB. 

Waterand electric services ( Please indicate which utility provider serves the subject
property.) 

Emerald People' s Utility District ( EPUD) 

Glenwood Water District

Rainbow Water and Fire District

Springfield Utility Board

Electric Service - Which electric company will serve this site? 
Springfield Utility Board

Water Service - Please provide the size and location of the water main closest to
your property. N/ A. This properly is already connected to city water, 

Revised 12/ 05/ 2024 slm
23

Attachment 2 
Page 14 of 17



Solid Waste - Solid waste collection service is provided by private firms. Regional
disposal sites and the Short Mountain Landfill are operated by Lane County. 

Natural Gas - Northwest Natural Gas can extend service to new development in
this area. 

Communications - A variety of telecommunications providers offer
communications services throughout the Eugene/ Springfield Area. 

Revised 12/ 05/ 2024 slm
24

Attachment 2 
Page 15 of 17



Census Information Sheet - CONFIDENTIAL

Please complete the attached survey and return it with your annexation
application. It is not necessary to include the names of all individuals. Addresses
and number of people living at each address is essential and sex and age
information is helpful. If you have any questions, please contact Planning at 541- 
726- 3753. 

City of Springfield Address: 1035 Kintzle Ave. 

HOUSING TYPE TENURE

Single Unit Structure I Owner -Occupied

Multiple - Unit Structure Renter -Occupied

Trailer or Mobile Home Vacant

Seasonal

RESIDENTS

RESPONDENT LAST NAME FIRST NAME SEX AGE

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

Portland State University School of Urban and Public Attairs

Center for Population Research and Census ( 503) 725- 3922

Revised 12/ 05/ 2024 slm

Attachment 2 
Page 16 of 17



WAIVER OF ONE YEAR TIME LIMIT

FOR ANNEXATION PURSUANT TO ORS 222. 173

This waiver of the time limit is for the following described property: 

18-02-06- 24- 02500

Map and Tax Lot Number
assigned) 

1035 Kintzley Ave. 
Street Address of Property ( if address has been

ONE WAIVER OF TIME LIMIT FOR EACH PARCEL, PLEASE

We, the owner( s) of the property described above understand the annexation process
can take more than one year but desire to annex to have City services. Therefore, 
we agree to waive the one- year time limitation on this petition to annex established
by Oregon Revised Statutes 222. 173, and further agree that this contract shall be
effective Ej indefinitely or ] until

LCOG: L: \ BC\ 2008 BOUNCHANGE TRANSITION\ APPLICATION

FORMS\ SPRINGFIELD\ 10- 03- 08 UPDATED FORMS\ PRE-SUBMITTAL ANNEXATION
APPLICATION 10- 07-08. DOC

Last Saved: October 30, 2024

Revised 12/ 05/ 2024 slm

Attachment 2 
Page 17 of 17



CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON
ORDINANCE NO.

(SPECIAL)

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY ADDRESSED AS 1035 KINTZLEY AVENUE AND
IDENTIFIED AS ASSESSOR’S MAP 18-02-06-24, TAX LOT 2500 AND CONCURRENTLY ANNEXING
AN APPROXIMATELY 60-FOOT LONG BY 25.35-FOOT WIDE SEGMENT OF KINTZLEY AVENUE TO

THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD AND WILLAMALANE PARK & RECREATION DISTRICT;
WITHDRAWING SAID TERRITORY FROM THE WILLAKENZIE RURAL FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT; ADOPTING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the City Council is authorized by Springfield Development Code (SDC) Article 5.7.100 and
Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 222 to accept, process, and act upon annexations to the City;

WHEREAS, a request to annex certain territory was submitted on July 24, 2025, said territory being a
developed residential parcel on the east side of Kintzley Avenue just to the south of the intersection with
Jasper Road (Assessor’s Map Township 18 South, Range 02 West, Section 06, Map 24, Tax Lot 2500)
which is generally depicted and more particularly described in Exhibit A to this Ordinance;

WHEREAS, in accordance with SDC 5.7.125(A)(1) and ORS 222.111, the property owner of said territory
initiated the annexation action by submittal of the required application forms and petition for annexation;

WHEREAS, the territory proposed for annexation is zoned R-1 residential and it has experienced a septic
system failure such that connection to City sanitary sewer is necessary to maintain continuity of
wastewater service to the existing house on the property;

WHEREAS, City sanitary sewer is readily available at the property frontage on Kintzley Avenue and
connection to said urban service is contingent upon annexation to Springfield;

WHEREAS, owner-initiated annexation of R-1 residential territory to the City of Springfield due to a septic
failure can be accomplished by adopting an Ordinance without a public hearing in accordance with SDC
5.7.115(A)(1)(b);

WHEREAS, the territory proposed for annexation is within the Springfield Comprehensive Plan Urban
Growth Boundary and is contiguous to the City limits. (SDC 5.7.140(A));

WHEREAS, the annexation is consistent with the Springfield Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization
Element requiring annexation to the City of Springfield as the highest priority for receiving urban services;

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the provision of City services to the subject area is
necessary to maintain habitability of the property due to a septic system failure;

WHEREAS, all required urban services are immediately available or can be reasonably extended to
serve the site and the applicant will be responsible for the connection or extension of public facilities and
services to the property upon future urban development;

WHEREAS, in accordance with SDC 5.7.150(A), upon annexation the Urbanizable Fringe Overlay District
(UF-10) will cease to apply to the property and the underlying R-1 Residential zoning will be retained;

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that an approximately 60-foot long by 25.35-foot wide
segment of Kintzley Avenue right-of-way that borders the subject territory is to be concurrently annexed to
the City of Springfield;

Attachment 3 
Page 1 of 2



WHEREAS, a Staff Report (Exhibit B) was presented to the City Council with the Director’s
recommendation to concurrently annex the subject territory to the Willamalane Park and Recreation
District, as this special district is a service provider for the City (SDC 5.7.140(B)), and to withdraw the
subject territory from the Willakenzie Rural Fire Protection District as the Springfield Utility Board and the
Eugene-Springfield Fire Department will provide water and emergency response services directly to the
area after it is annexed to the City;

WHEREAS, this action is consistent with the intergovernmental agreement between Lane County and
Springfield regarding boundary changes dated May 21, 2008; and

WHEREAS, on October 7, 2025, the Springfield Common Council convened and is now ready to take
action on this application based on the recommendation and findings in support of approving the
annexation request as set forth in the aforementioned Staff Report to the Council, incorporated herein by
reference, in the matter of adopting this Ordinance,

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD ORDAINS AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Common Council of the City of Springfield does hereby approve annexation of
the following described territory to the City of Springfield and Willamalane Park and Recreation District,
said territory being generally depicted and more particularly described in Exhibit A to this Ordinance.

Section 2. Finding that it is in the best interest of the City of Springfield based on the foregoing
recitals and the findings incorporated herein, the Common Council of the City of Springfield does hereby
approve withdrawal of the territory described in Exhibit A to this Ordinance from the Willakenzie Rural Fire
Protection District.

Section 3. The City Manager or the Development & Public Works Director or their designee
shall send copies of this Ordinance to affected State and local agencies as required by SDC 5.7.155.

Section 4. Severability Clause.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion
of this Ordinance is, for any reason, held invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction,
such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not
affect the validity of the remaining portion hereof.

Section 5. Effective Date of Ordinance.  This Ordinance shall become effective on the day
following the general election, November 5, 2025, or upon the date of its filing with the Secretary of State
as provided by ORS 222.180, whichever is later.

ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Springfield, this           day of    , 2025,
by a vote of _____ for and _____ against.

APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Springfield this          day of                     , 2025.

ATTEST:
Mayor

City Recorder

Attachment 3 
Page 2 of 2



ANNEXATION LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 

Beginning at a point on the center line of Kintzley Avenue, said point being South 80° 

22' East 25.35 feet, more or less, from a point which is 834 feet North of the Southwest 

corner of Lot 10, Block 18, DOUGLAS GARDENS, as platted and recorded in Book 4, 

Page 73, Lane County Oregon Plat Records; thence along the following six (6) 

numbered courses: 

1) South 80° 22' East a distance of 114.65 feet, more or less;  

 

2) thence North, parallel to the center line of Kintzley Avenue, a distance of 100 

feet, more or less;  

 

3) thence North 80° 22' West a distance of 114.65 feet, more or less, to a point 

on the eastern right of way of Kintzley Avenue, said point being on the Current 

City Limits; 

  

4) thence along said right of way and said City Limits, South a distance of 40 feet, 

more or less, to a point which is an angle point on said City Limits;  

 

5) thence continuing along said City Limits leaving said eastern right of way of 

Kintzley Avenue, North 80° 22' West a distance of 25.35 feet, more or less, to 

said center line of Kintzley Avenue; 

 

6) thence leaving said City Limits, South a distance of 60 feet, more or less, to a 

point which is North 80° 22' West 25.35 feet, more or less, from the Point of 

Beginning; 

 

7) thence South 80° 22' East 25.35 feet, more or less, to the Point of Beginning.  

 

Exhibit A 
1 of 2

limb0967
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A

limb0967
Typewritten Text

limb0967
Typewritten Text

limb0967
Typewritten Text



!( !(

!(
!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

R

R

R

R

R

*

*

*

*

*

*

* *

*

*

*

*
*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

+

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(((
(((

(((
(((

(((
(((

(((
(((

(((
(((

(((
(((

(((
(((

((((
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ((
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
((((

(((
(((

(((
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( ( (
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

R

R

0.11 AC

0.14 AC

0.19 AC

0.16 AC

0 AC

0.12 AC

0.11 AC

0 AC

0.15 AC

5.24 AC

0.2 AC

0.18 AC

0 AC

0.26 AC

0.13 AC

0.16 AC

0.2 AC

0.24 AC

0.32 AC

0.19 AC

0 AC

0.32 AC

0.22 AC

0.1 AC

0.16 AC

0.19 AC
0.22 AC

0.17 AC

0.14 AC

0.19 AC

0.14 AC

0 AC

0.12 AC

0 AC

0 AC

0.14 AC

0.2 AC

0.18 AC

0.23 AC

0.17 AC

0.1 AC

0.14 AC

0.11 AC

0.15 AC

0.13 AC

0.12 AC

0.22 AC

0.11 AC

0.1 AC

0.26 AC

0.14 AC

0.12 AC

0.2 AC

0 AC

0.19 AC

0 AC

0.13 AC

0 AC

0.1 AC

0.23 AC

0.16 AC

0.17 AC

0.23 AC

0.14 AC

0.2 AC

0.14 AC

0.11 AC

0.26 AC
0.13 AC

0 AC

0 AC

0.19 AC

0.11 AC

0.1 AC

0.15 AC

0.32 AC

0 AC

0.13 AC

0.2 AC

0.12 AC

0.13 AC

0.19 AC

0.84 AC

0.18 AC

0.2 AC

0.11 AC

0.21 AC

0.17 AC

0.17 AC

0.11 AC

0.14 AC

0.15 AC

0.43 AC

8800

2200

7600

2700

5100

1600

3501

6900

6700

8300

1900

7800

3800

8100

4900 6200

100

2900

6800

1500

3200

8700

9800

300

7700

5300

6100

8200

7200

700

2000

3300

5700

1100

8900

600

8500

2400

7300

6000

7000

2800

5200

4700

9100

1300

2500

1800

4000

9900

6600

7900

5900

9200

900

1400

6300

2201

400

9400

9700

2600

7500
7400

5400

7100

3400

3000

5500

1201

8400

9000

500

4800

6500

2300

1700

5000

3700

8000
3100

5800

9600

1200

2100

5600

200

8600

9500

800

9300

1000

6400

S 80°25'26" E  133.45'
N 4

4°
39

'05
" E

1101

7.89'

LC=6.38'
S3°37'W

20
.1

'

20
.1

'

85
'

85
'

84
.8

5'
50

.6
6'

85
'

85
'

85
'

35
.9

2'

N
0°

03
'E

-1
44

.7
8'

20
'

20
'

82
.9

3'
85

'
85

'
85

'

10
'

113.68'

133.86'

88
'

85
'

85
'

N80°24'W
9.5'

APPROXIMATE

APPROXIMATE

5'

61
'

N40°11
'W

LC=25.81'

R=20'

97.06'
97.02'

85
'

85
'

85
'

15'

15
'

1

2

3

4

5

3

4

5

8

7

6

10 7

8

9

10

30
'

35
'

25.36'

65
'

12
3'

S 80°25'26" E  276.47'

S 80°25'26" E  433.23'

35
.0

0'

S 80°25'26" E  187.69'

N
0°

03
'E

20' 25'

25' 25'

R
=

96
3.

54
'

S
3°

37
'W

R
=

96
3.

54
'

25'25'

N80°24'W

N
0°

03
'E

S
O

U
T

H
 =

 S
0°

03
'W

S
O

U
T

H
 -

 1
00

'

25.36'

40
'

30
'

N 80°27'40" W  2937.88'

41
+

34
.5

7 
P

O
T41

+
02

.5
1 

P
O

T

43+78.98 POT

K
IN

T
Z

LE
Y

  A
V

E
N

U
E

S
. 3

4T
H

.  
P

LA
C

E

GARDEN AVENUE

(CO. RD. 49)

PINYON  STREET

N
0°

3'
E

 -
 1

70
'

61
'

85
'

73
.2

8'

90
.4

4'
85

'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

10
0'

114.65'
N80°24'W-140'

114.65'

S80°24'E - 114.65'

85
'

S80°24'E - 397'

114.65'

N80°24'W - 114.65'

70
'

95
.4

4'

N
0°

03
'E

-2
07

.1
6'

19
0'

10
0'

102.87'
97.87'

103.43'

114.65'

103.43'

102'

N89°57'W

102'

95
'

85
'

85
.1

6'
80

.2
8'

85
.1

6'
80

.2
8'

85
'

85
'

N89°57'W

101.44'

101.44'

101.44'

101.44'

101.44'

103.43'

N89°57'W

102'

N89°57'W

N80°24'W

9.91'

N
1°

50
'E

LC
=

61
.5

3'

LC
=

58
.4

1'
N

1°
50

'E

LC
=

58
.4

1'
N

1°
50

'E

N
1°

50
'E

LC
=

61
.5

3'

LC=20'
S3°37'W LC=13.62'

S3°37'W
104.2'

106.42'

100.62'

N79°25'W27.72'

70
'

70
'

10
0'

10
0'

85
'

85
'

97.06'

S89°57'E

97.06'

97.06'
97.02'

85
'

97.02'

97.02'

97.02'

S89°57'E

85
'

85
'

85
'

85
'

85
'

85
'

S89°57'E N89°57'W

S89°57'E - 131.99' S89°57'E - 112.09'

S
0°

03
'W

12
6.

04
'

N80°22'W-140'

S80°22'E - 140'

85
'

114.64'

11
5.

15
'

11
8'

S 80°25'26" E

S 80°25'26" E

246.47'

163.47'

80.47'

83.00'

83.00'

68.47'

83.00'

83.00'

80.47'

77.24'

S 80°25'26" E

S80°22'E - 317.11'

S80°22'E = S80°24'W - 645.11'

177'

N
O

R
T

H
 -

 2
82

'

S
O

U
T

H
 -

 2
82

'

S80°24'E -153.5'

N80°22'W -153.5'

N
O

R
T

H
 -

 1
50

'S
O

U
T

H
 -

 1
50

'

S80°22'E -153.5'

S80°22'E - 192.65'

S
O

U
T

H
 -

 2
51

.0
5'N

O
R

T
H

 -
 2

51
.0

5'

S
O

U
T

H
 -

 3
79

.6
'

N80°22'W - 192.65'

N80°24'W-114.65'

N
0°

03
'E

-1
03

.7
2'

S80°22'E-112.28'
N

O
R

T
H

-1
00

'

N80°22'W-112.28'

114.64'
N80°22'W

N
O

R
T

H
 -

 8
8'

S
O

U
T

H
 -

 8
8'

114.64'
N80°22'W

88
'

85
'

114.64'
N80°22'W

85
'

S80°22'E-114.64'

88
'

S80°22'E-97.75'

71
.1

1'

N
O

R
T

H

N
O

R
T

H
 -

 6
40

.4
5'

6
9

PCL. "A"

173

166

3

3

3

2

1

3 10

910

9

40
'

35
'

35
'

30'

30'

30'
30'

40
'

40
'

2
1

ISAAC BRIGGS
D.L.C. 83

S.S.E. COR.

1

2

2

3

90
.7

5'

N
 2

4°
49

'0
6"

 E

N
 0

9°
34

'3
4"

 E
90

.0
0'

36
+

69
.2

8 
P

T

15
915

8

50.00'

50.00'

50.00'

90
.0

0'

90
.0

0'

90
.0

0'

11
2.

16
'

61
.0

0'

61
.0

0'
12

2.
00

'

16
3

16
216

116
0

JASPER  ROAD
50.00'

50.00'

50.00'

50.00'

50.00'

50.00'
89.24'

49
.0

0'

S
 0

9°
34

'3
4"

 W
  1

52
.0

0'
A

V
E

.

K
IN

T
Z

LE
Y48

.0
0' S
 0

9°
34

'3
4"

 W

78
.0

0'78
.0

0'

66
.0

0'

N
 0

9°
34

'3
4"

 E

78
.0

0'

163.47'
80.47'

S
 0

9°
34

'3
4"

 W

84
.5

0' 43
8.

82
'

91
.0

0'
S

 0
9°

34
'3

4"
 W

  1
82

.0
0'

91
.0

0'

S
 0

9°
34

'3
4"

 W

84
.5

0'

INITIAL

POINT

6.50'
6.50'
6.50'
6.50'

49
.0

0'

16.97'

LC=37.11' 14.22'

16
5

16
4

LC=2.59'

LC
=5

1.
36

'

92
.0

0'

LC
=2

2.
82

'

1114

13

12

11

170

169
168

172

171

167

1/16TH CORNER

1/16TH CORNER

1 3

910

1

3

2

12
1.

45
'

N
0°

06
'0

6"
E

S89°53'54"E

237'

15
6.

90
'

S
0°

06
'0

6"
W

298.25'

N
0°

40
'1

4"
E

65
1.

44
'

61
.6

4'

394.54'

75.02'

54.60'

S
20°11'32"E

12
4.

72
'

N
0°

06
'0

6"
E

80
'

418.75'

27
2'

27
5.

36
'

S.43854

5.46'N30°09'48"W

269.96'

217.98'

3500

GA
RD

EN

VIL
LA

GA
RD

EN
S

HA
YD

EN

AD
D.

3R
D.

N
25°50'22"W

278.22'

133.95'

EAST

N
O

R
T

H
 -

 3
53

.9
6'

3900

3701

3600

2

1

5

7

8

11

13

14

12

10

9

18

19

21

22

24

27 2628

3130

333435

1

74.52'

60
'

S89°53'54"E

96.80'

30
.5

4'

S49
°5

2'0
3"

W

52
.6

2'

96.80'
S89°53'54"E

60
'60

'

60
'

N
0°

06
'0

6"
E

50
'

44
.3

2'

3
S2°30'46"E

15.69'

96.09'

S74°37'46'W
77.49'

R
=

17
2'

39.01'
9.51'

82
.0

6'

98.26'

S
15°12'03"E

60.17'
R

=228'

S23°32'27"E

13.79'

4

60.21'
S

14°13'11"E

59
.9

9'

96.69'

R
=

 228'

633
.2

6'
60

'

7.95'
26.71'

47
.6

3'

43
2'

123.03'

S89°53'54"E

26.78'
S3°15'54"E

60
'60

'

S89°53'54"E

123.03'

29

36

50.40' 50' 50' 67'

N
0°

40
'1

4'
E 95

.0
1'

51.34' 50' 50' 96.90'

8.53'

R=20'

28.28'N44°53'54"W

S
0°

06
'0

6"
W

95
'95

'95
'

S
0°

06
'0

6"
W

67.20'N8°22'23"W

R=228'

105.81'

21
.8

9' 50' 50' 42.43'

50' 48.14'50'48.69'

S38°00'25"E

92.91'
R=462.33'

95
'

95
'

S
0°

06
'0

6"
W

S
0°

06
'0

6"
W

95
'

N21°03'40"W
33.50'

N18°16'09"W

41.95'

R
=

228'

R
=

172'

30
.9

5'32

N39
°2

5'0
8"

E

R=20
'

79.19' 50'

50'32.93'

99.99' 95
'

N
0°

06
'0

6"
E

95
'

48'

68'

75
'

28.28'

N44°53'54"W
R

=20'

150.93'N89°53'54"W

66.71'

122.34'

43
.5

3'

N1°58'06"W
16.47'

25

105.95'

65.15'

N11°34'36"W

59.82'

101.78'

S89°53'54"E
91.65'

46.37'

44.02'

TRACT A 2

GA
RD

EN
S

N22°11'47"W
24.51'

57.76'

23

R=20'

123.34'

N89°53'54"W

65.62'

20'95.95'

S
0°

06
'0

6"
W

82
'

82
'

S
0°

06
'0

6"
W

20
11' 43.10'

N80°22'W
159.20'

50.70'
60.33'

53.50' 50' 39.50'

89
.1

4'

97
.5

3'

S
0°

06
'0

6"
W

87
.5

2'

87.43'

69.21' 75.21'

S0°20'31"E
3.53'

89.28'

15 S88°22'05"W
84.49'

65
.2

0'

S80°22'E -661.99'

68.71'
S

9°27'07"E

S89°53'54"E
95.85'

55
.9

8'

S20°01'50"E 117.25'
31.46'

R
=

228'

S21°41'53"E
28.28'

70
.1

9'
S

0°
06

'0
6"

W

N82°35'27"W95.99'

N80°24'W - 153.5'4.79'

70
.2

2'

100'

100'
S89°53'54"E

70
.2

2'
70

'

70
'

66
.1

0'

100'S89°53'54"E

82
.8

9'

59
.5

0'

15.32'

S7°20'26"E

44.56'

S
0°

06
'0

6"
W

R
=

172'

28.28'17

77
.2

6'

N45°06'06"E

R=20'

R
=20'

N44°53'54"W

28.28'

16

S44°°53'54"W

43
.9

5'

28.28'

N15°06'35"W

60.73'

R
=172'

R
=

228'

S.45419

MOUNTAINVALE
DRIVE

S
O

U
T

H
   

33
R

D
S

T
R

E
E

T

S
O

U
T

H
   

33
R

D
   

S
T

R
E

E
T

WILDFLOWER   DRIVE

DO
UG

LA
S

MO
UN

TA
IN
VA
LE

R=20
'

I.P.

28.39' 52.03'
154.94'

S80°22'E

28' 28'

20
'

20
'

20
'

28'

N27°56'48"W
22.66'

N30°47'44"W

MOUNTAIN  CREEK  LANE
23.31'

33.32'

28.93'

10.66'

37.01'

R=2
0'

N45
°0

6'0
6"

E

28
.2

8'
N

45
°0

6'
06

"E
R=2

0'

28
.2

8'

19

10
'

43
.9

5'

24'

019-24

019-00

SEE MAP
18020600

SEE MAP
18020613

SEE MAP
18020612

SEE MAP
18020642

SEE MAP
18020621

FOR ASSESSMENT AND
TAXATION ONLY Lane County

LCATDGC - 2024-06-14 11:37

18020624
SPRINGFIELD

SPRINGFIELD
18020624

S.E. 1/4 N.W. 1/4 SEC. 6 T.18S. R.2W. W.M.

REVISIONS
2009-08-03 - LCAT115 - CONVERT MAP TO GIS
2016-04-18 - LCAT174 - CODE CHANGE TLS 3500,3600,3701,3900,4000
2017-01-25 - LCAT174 - LLA BETWEEN TL 3600 & TL 4000
2017-01-25 - LCAT174 - LLA BETWEEN TL 3900 & TL 4000
2017-01-25 - LCAT714 - LLA BEWTWEEN TL 3500 & TL 3600
2017-03-02 - LCAT174 - CANC TL 3500 INTO TL 4000
2021-07-07 - LCAT174 - CANC 3600, 3701, 3900 INTO MOUNTAINVALE
2022-07-12 - LCATTEK - PTN OF TL 8500 OUT TO ROAD
2024-03-01 - LCAT174 - PTN OF TL 3800 OUT TO ROAD
2024-06-13 - LCAT186 - CODE CHANGE TL 3800

1" = 100'

CANCELLED
1101
4100
4200
4300
4400
4500
4600
3500
3701
3600
3900

Exhibit A 
2 of 2

cmoorhead
Text Box
NOTE:
NUMBERED COURSES COINCIDE WITH COURSE NUMBERS SHOWN ON THE ANNEXATION LEGAL DESCRIPTION.

cmoorhead
Line

cmoorhead
Line

cmoorhead
Line

cmoorhead
Line

cmoorhead
Line

cmoorhead
Line

cmoorhead
Line

cmoorhead
Text Box
1

cmoorhead
Ellipse

cmoorhead
Callout
POINT OF BEGINNING

cmoorhead
Callout
834 FEET MORE OR LESS

cmoorhead
Callout

cmoorhead
Text Box
2

cmoorhead
Text Box
3

cmoorhead
Text Box
4

cmoorhead
Ellipse

cmoorhead
Ellipse

cmoorhead
Ellipse

cmoorhead
Ellipse

cmoorhead
Ellipse

cmoorhead
Text Box
5

cmoorhead
Text Box
6

cmoorhead
Text Box
7

cmoorhead
Ellipse

cmoorhead
Callout
SW COR LOT 10, BLK 18 DOUGLAS GARDENS

cmoorhead
Line



TYPE 4 – ANNEXATION
STAFF REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION

File Name:  1035 Kintzley Avenue Annexation

Case Number:  811-25-000144-TYP4

Proposal Location:  Developed residential
parcel on the east side of Kintzley Avenue just
to the south of the intersection with Jasper Road
(Map 18-02-06-24, TL 2500)

Current Zoning & Comprehensive
Plan Designation:  R-1 Residential

Applicable Comprehensive Plan:
Springfield Comprehensive Plan
       
Application Submittal Date:
July 24, 2025

City Council Meeting Date:
October 6, 2025

Associated Applications: 811-25-000104-PRE  (Development  Initiation  Meeting);  811-25-000136-PRE
(Completeness Check Meeting)

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD’S DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

POSITION REVIEW OF NAME PHONE
Project Manager Planning Andy Limbird 541-726-3784
Transportation Planning Engineer Transportation Michael Liebler 541-736-1034
Public Works Civil Engineer Streets and Utilities Clayton McEachern 541-736-1036
Deputy Fire Marshal Fire and Life Safety Gilbert Gordon 541-726-2293
Building Official Building Chris Carpenter 541-744-4153

Review Process (SDC 5.7.115):  The subject annexation  territory  is zoned and designated R-1 and contains an
existing  dwelling with  a  failed  septic  system.    The  annexation  territory  does  not  include  land  affected  by  the
Hillside Development Overlay District or the Floodplain Overlay District.  Therefore, the request is being reviewed
under Type 3 procedures without a public hearing in accordance with SDC 5.7.115(A)(1)(b).

In accordance with SDC 5.7.115(A)(2), the Director has provided a recommendation to the City Council under SDC
5.7.140 below.

Development Initiation Meeting (SDC 5.7.120):  A Development Initiation Meeting (DIM) is required of all public
agency and private landowner-initiated annexation applications, unless waived by the Director.

Finding:  In response to the applicant’s submittal, the City held a Development Initiation Meeting on June 24, 2025.
Subsequently, a completeness check meeting for the annexation request was held on July 22, 2025 (File 811-25-
000136-PRE).

Conclusion:  The requirement in SDC 5.7.120 is met.

Jasper Road

Ki
nt

zl
ey

 A
ve

nu
e

S 
33

rd
 S

tr
ee

t

S 
34

th
 P

la
ce

Territory
Proposed for
Annexation

City Limits

Ci
ty

 L
im

its

Exhibit B 
1 of 7



Annexation Initiation and Application Submittal (SDC 5.7.125):  In  accordance  with  SDC  5.7.125(A)(1) and
ORS 222.125, an annexation application may be initiated by Owner Consent which includes submittal of a petition
for annexation signed by all of the owners and not less than 50% of the eligible electors, if any, within the subject
territory.

Finding:  The  property  owner  (Venture 401 LLC) who  owns  all  of  the  land  and  real  property,  and  full  assessed  value
of  real property comprising the territory, has filed an application and petition requesting annexation to the City of
Springfield (Attachment 2).

Finding:   The  subject property  contains  a  residential  dwelling  that  is  currently vacant  and  therefore no eligible
electors reside in the territory.

Conclusion:  The application requirements in SDC 5.7.125 have been met.

Site Information:  The subject annexation area consists of a rectangular-shaped residential parcel on the east side
of Kintzley Avenue, just to the south of the intersection with Jasper Road in south Springfield.  The subject property
is bordered on three sides by other residential properties and it has about 100 feet of frontage on Kintzley Avenue
along the western boundary.  The subject property contains an existing residential dwelling that is currently vacant.
Annexation of the property was requested to remedy a failed septic system on the property.  With construction of the
nearby Mountainvale subdivision in 2020, a new public sanitary sewer main and service laterals were installed from
Jasper Road southward along Kintzley Avenue to Mountainvale Drive.  Because a service lateral exists along the
subject property frontage, connection to City sanitary sewer service is feasible and necessary as required by Oregon
law.  Connection to public sanitary sewer requires payment of assessment fees and local permits and annexation to
the City of Springfield.  The property owner has paid the required fees and initiated the request for annexation to the
City.

About 40 feet of the Kintzley Avenue frontage (as measured from the northern boundary of the property) has been
annexed to the City of Springfield and the remainder is outside the City limits.  Concurrently with annexation of the
subject property, staff  is  recommending annexing an approximately 60-foot  long by 25.35-foot wide segment of
Kintzley Avenue that abuts the site.  Annexation of the abutting segment of Kintzley Avenue (as measured to the
centerline of the existing public right-of-way) can be accomplished without a public hearing; the fee title of this right
of way is part of the applicant’s property at 1035 Kintzley Drive.

Current zoning  for  the  property  is R-1 Residential with an Urbanizable Fringe Overlay District (UF-10) applied.
After annexation, the UF-10 overlay will be removed and the subject property will remain within the R-1 District.

Existing  public  services  are  provided  to  the  annexation  area  as  follows:  police  (Lane  County  Sheriff),  schools
(Springfield School District), roads (Lane County and City of Springfield), and Fire (Eugene-Springfield Fire under
contract with the Willakenzie Rural Fire Protection District).  Springfield Utility Board (SUB) provides electrical
and water  service  to  incorporated  areas  of  south  Springfield.    SUB Water  operates  a  6-inch water main within
Kintzley Avenue that runs in a north-south orientation just outside the western boundary of the annexation area.

The property requires annexation for a wastewater service connection to be extended from the existing sewer lateral
in  the  southwest  corner  of  the  property.    The  applicant  has  obtained  necessary  permits  to  connect  the  existing
dwelling  to public sanitary sewer  located  in Kintzley Avenue.   Upon annexation,  the City of Springfield will be
responsible for all urban services, including sanitary sewer, water and electricity (through SUB), transportation and
police/fire response to the subject area.

Notice Requirements (SDC 5.7.130):  Consistent with SDC 5.7.130 and 5.1.425, notice was provided as follows:

Mailed Notice.  Notice of the annexation application was mailed on September 12, 2025 to owners and occupants
of properties located within 300 feet of the perimeter of the proposed annexation territory.  The list of recipients of
the mailed notice is included with the Affidavit of Mailing for this annexation application and is retained as part of
the public record for Planning Case 811-25-000168-TYP4.

Exhibit B 
2 of 7



No other notice was provided because the annexation Ordinance is being presented to the City Council for adoption
at  the  regular  meeting  on  October  6,  2025.    The  annexation  request  was  initiated  in  accordance  with  SDC
5.7.115(A)(1)(b) because of a failed septic system on the property and therefore no public hearing is required.

Public Testimony Received.  Staff responded to one telephone inquiry regarding the annexation mailed notice.  Upon
explanation of the annexation process and the physical extent of the annexation territory (i.e. limited to the applicant’s
property and a small portion of fronting right-of-way for Kintzley Avenue and not extending to adjacent properties or
the greater neighborhood) the caller seemed satisfied with staff’s response.

Criteria (SDC 5.7.140):  The application may be approved only if the City Council finds that the proposal conforms
to the following criteria:

A.  The affected territory proposed to be annexed is within the City’s urban growth boundary; and is
1.   Contiguous to the city limits; or
2.   Separated from the City only by a public right of way or a stream, lake or other body of water.

Finding:  The subject annexation territory is located within the acknowledged urban growth boundary (UGB) of the
City of Springfield.  The property abuts the current City limits line along a 40-foot long portion of the northwestern
boundary so it has contiguity in accordance with the requirements of SDC 5.7.140(A)(1).  Therefore, this annexation
application  meets the statutory definition of contiguity as found in ORS 222.111(1).

Conclusion:  The proposal meets and complies with Criterion (A)(1) of SDC 5.7.140.

B.  The proposed annexation is consistent with applicable policies in the Springfield Comprehensive Plan,
Metro Plan, and in any applicable refinement plans or Plan Districts;

Finding:  In December 2016, Springfield adopted the Springfield Comprehensive Plan - Urbanization Element as a
component of Springfield’s comprehensive plan in compliance with Statewide Planning Goal 14, Urbanization.  The
Urbanization Element explicitly retains the Metro Plan’s long-standing urbanization policy criteria for approving
annexations.  The Urbanization Element has been acknowledged by LCDC.

Finding:    In  July  2024,  the  Springfield Comprehensive Plan  was  adopted  as  the  City’s  Comprehensive  Plan,
effectively replacing and superseding many of the provisions of the Metro Plan.  The Springfield Comprehensive
Plan – Land Use Element and parcel-specific Comprehensive Plan Map has made the Springfield Comprehensive
Plan the  principal  policy  document  that  creates  the  broad  framework  for  land  use  planning within  the  City  of
Springfield.  Therefore, only the elements of the former Metro Plan that have not been superseded by the Springfield
Comprehensive Plan and that would apply specifically to the subject site should be considered herein.  In this case,
the Urbanization Element of the Springfield Comprehensive Plan generally replaces and supersedes the policies of
the Metro Plan.  The Residential Land and Housing Element of the Springfield Comprehensive Plan expands upon
and clarifies but does not replace the Residential Land Use element of the Metro Plan.

Finding:   The territory requested for annexation is within an area that is zoned R-1 Residential which is consistent
with the comprehensive plan designation.  The adopted Springfield Comprehensive Plan applies to areas within
the Springfield UGB, particularly the Urbanization Element adopted by Ordinance 6361.  The Urbanizable Fringe
(UF-10) overlay will be effectively removed upon annexation.

Finding:    The  continued  annexation  of  properties  to  the  City  of  Springfield  is  consistent  with  Policy  29  of  the
Springfield Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element which specifies annexation as the preferred mechanism for
provision of urban services to properties within the UGB, which will  result  in  the elimination of  special districts
within the urbanizable area.

Finding:  More detailed discussion of Public Facilities and Services in the Metro Plan (Section III-G) and the Eugene-
Springfield Public Facilities and Services Plan (PFSP) – a refinement plan of the Metro Plan – contemplates eventual
elimination of special service districts within each city’s UGB as annexation occurs incrementally.  Policy G.9 of the
Eugene-Springfield PFSP states that Eugene and Springfield and their respective utility branches, Eugene Water &

Exhibit B 
3 of 7



Electric Board (EWEB) and Springfield Utility Board (SUB), shall ultimately be the water service providers within
their respective urban growth boundary.  The requested annexation is consistent with this adopted policy.
Finding:   The  territory  requested  for  annexation  is currently within the service area of the Willakenzie Rural Fire
Protection District.   The  rural  Fire District  has  a  contractual  service  arrangement with Eugene-Springfield Fire
Department for provision of fire response to unincorporated areas of south Springfield.  Upon Council adoption of
the annexation  Ordinance,  the  annexation  area  will  be  withdrawn  from  the Willakenzie Rural Fire Protection District
consistent with ORS 222.520 and 222.524 and the City of Springfield will provide fire and life safety services to the
annexation area via the consolidated Eugene-Springfield Fire department.

Approval Standard:  In accordance with Policy 33 of the Springfield Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element,
SUB is the exclusive water service provider within the Springfield city limits.

Finding:  There is no rural water district in this area of south Springfield.  Therefore, upon annexation, the City by
and through the Springfield Utility Board will provide water service to the annexation area.

Approval Standard:  In accordance with Policy 34 of the Springfield Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element,
when unincorporated territory within the UGB is provided with any new urban service, that service shall be provided
by  one  of  the  following  methods  in  this  priority  order:    a)  Annexation  to  City;  or  b)  Contractual  annexation
agreements with City.

Approval Standard:  In accordance with Policy 35 of the Springfield Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element,
the City shall not extend water or wastewater service outside City limits to serve a residence or business without first
obtaining a valid annexation petition, a consent to annex agreement, or when a health hazard abatement annexation
is required.

Finding:  The requested annexation is to facilitate connection of the existing dwelling to City sanitary sewer due to
a  failed  septic  system  on  the  property.    There  is  no  proposal  to  extend  sewer  or water  to  a  non-annexed  area.
Additionally, the applicant has submitted a valid petition for annexation and paid applicable sewer assessment fees
to facilitate connection to City sewer service.  The proposal is consistent with Policies 34 and 35 of the Urbanization
Element.

Conclusion:  The proposal meets and complies with Criterion B of SDC 5.7.140.

C.  The proposed annexation will result in a boundary in which the minimum level of key urban facilities and
services as defined in the Springfield Comprehensive Plan can be provided in an orderly efficient and
timely manner; and

Approval Standard:  In accordance with Policy 29 of the Springfield Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element,
annexation shall continue to be a prerequisite for urban development and the delivery of City services in accordance
with the Springfield Comprehensive Plan and Springfield Development Code.

Approval Standard:  In accordance with Policy 31 of the Springfield Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element,
key urban facilities and services are defined as wastewater service; stormwater service; transportation; solid waste
management; water service; fire and emergency medical services; police protection; citywide park and recreation
programs; electric service; land use controls; communication facilities; and public schools on a districtwide basis.

Approval Standard:  In accordance with Policy 32 of the Springfield Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element,
urban  services  provided  by  the  City  upon  annexation  to  Springfield  include  storm  and  sanitary  sewer;  water;
transportation systems; police and fire protection; planning, building, code enforcement and library services; and
public infrastructure maintenance of City owned or operated facilities.

Finding:  Urban utilities including water, sanitary sewer and electricity are available within the Kintzley Avenue right-
of-way along the subject property frontage.  The urban service delivery systems are already available and in place or
can be logically extended from points on the periphery to serve the subject property.  The  following urban utilities,
facilities and services are either available or can be extended to this annexation area:

Exhibit B 
4 of 7



Water – The Springfield Utility Board operates the public water utility system within incorporated areas of south
Springfield.  As stated herein, SUB is the exclusive water service provider for properties within the City limits.  Upon
annexation, the subject property will be eligible to receive SUB Water service.

Electricity – SUB owns and operates underground and overhead electrical transmission lines that have been installed
along Jasper Road and Kintzley Avenue.  SUB Electric has the exclusive right to provide service to the subject property
because it is within the SUB service territory.  Because the subject property already receives SUB Electric service,
annexation is not required for provision of electrical service to the site.  Existing electrical system infrastructure within
the public rights-of-way and easements will continue to be maintained by the affected utility provider.

Police Services – Springfield Police Department  currently provides service  to areas of south Springfield  that are
already inside the City limits.  The annexation territory is currently within the jurisdiction of Lane County and served
by the Sheriff’s Department.  Upon annexation, this area will receive Springfield Police services on an equal basis
with other properties inside the City.

Fire and Emergency Services – Fire protection is currently provided to the annexation area by Eugene-Springfield
Fire Department under contract with  the Willakenzie Rural Fire Protection District.  Upon annexation, the property
will be withdrawn from the rural fire district and the Eugene-Springfield Fire Department will directly provide fire
and emergency services to the subject territory.

Emergency medical transport (ambulance) services are provided on a metro-wide basis by the Eugene-Springfield
Fire Department.   The  annexation  area  will  continue  to receive  this  service  consistent  with  the  adopted  ambulance
service area  (ASA) plan.   Mutual  aid  agreements have been adopted by the three regional ASA providers to provide
backup coverage for each other’s jurisdictions.

Parks and Recreation – Park and recreation services are provided within the City of Springfield by the Willamalane
Park & Recreation District.  The park district operates several indoor recreation facilities, such as the Willamalane
Park Swim Center, Lively Park Swim Center, Bob Keefer Center for Sports and Recreation, and Willamalane Adult
Activity Center.  The  park  district offers various  after-school  and other programs for children at schools and parks
throughout the community.  Also available are pathways and several categories of parks, including community parks,
sports parks, special use parks, and natural area parks.  Because the annexation territory is zoned R-1 Residential, it
is  expected  to  generate  a  population  that  will  be  served  by Willamalane  facilities,  including  nearby  parks  and
recreational amenities such as the Middle Fork Willamette River and Mill Race pathway systems.

Concurrent with annexation to the City of Springfield, the subject property will be annexed to the Willamalane Park
& Recreation District consistent with City policy, an intergovernmental agreement between the City of Springfield
and Lane County, and the adopted 2023 Willamalane Comprehensive Plan.

Library Services – Upon annexation to  the City of Springfield, the subject area will be served by the Springfield
Public Library.

Schools  – The Springfield School District serves this area of south Springfield.  Because the property is zoned for
residential use, it is expected that the annexation territory could generate a population requiring public school services.

Sanitary Sewer  –  The  annexation  territory is proximate to an existing 8-inch public sanitary sewer line in Kintzley
Avenue.  A service lateral is located inside the southwest corner of the property.  Due to a failed septic system on
the property,  the owner  is  requesting annexation  to  facilitate  connection of  the  existing house  to City  sewer  to
maintain  habitability.    The  existing  sanitary  sewer  line  in  Kintzley  Avenue  has  been  designed  and  sized  to
accommodate  full  buildout  of  the  adjacent  residential  neighborhood.    However,  only  a  portion  of  the  total
development area on both sides of Kintzley Avenue has been annexed and connected to the City sewer system.
Additionally, the sewer main in Kintzley Avenue connects directly to the high-volume Jasper Trunk Sewer in Jasper
Road. For these reasons, the existing sewer lines should have sufficient excess capacity to accommodate normal
sewage flows from the proposed annexation territory.

Exhibit B 
5 of 7



Stormwater  –  The  subject  annexation  territory  is  not  currently  served  by  a  fully  developed  public  stormwater
management system.  There is a public stormwater line in Kintzley Avenue but the street is not fully developed with
curb and gutter so much of  the  local  stormwater conveyance  is  through roadside ditches.   The applicant will be
required to maintain a stormwater management system for the existing house and driveway within the annexation
territory.  Currently, the annexation territory is on level ground and contains landscaped lawn areas that can infiltrate
stormwater runoff from the site.  City regulations require stormwater runoff to be managed on-site to the greatest
extent possible, including provision for treatment and infiltration.  Overflow to the public stormwater system, if it can
be accommodated at all, may be allowable as permitted under the City’s stormwater development regulations.

Streets  – The western  boundary  of  the  annexation  territory  is Kintzley Avenue which  is  classified  as  a Lane
County Local Access Road.  Along the subject property frontage, Kintzley Avenue is not fully developed to urban
standards and lacks curb, gutter, sidewalk, continuous street trees, street lighting and piped stormwater facilities.
There are no other existing or planned public streets within the annexation territory.  The subject property will
continue to derive legal and physical access from Kintzley Avenue.  In the event that the subject property is subject
to a  land division in  the future, public street frontage improvements such as curb, gutter and sidewalk could be
required.

Solid Waste Management – The City and Sanipac have an exclusive franchise arrangement for garbage service inside
the City limits.  Upon annexation, solid waste disposal service would be provided by Sanipac.

Communication Facilities – Various providers offer both wired and wireless communication services in the Eugene-
Springfield metropolitan area.  Existing providers and those entering the market have the capability to provide service
to this area.

Land Use Controls  –  The  annexation  area  is  within  Springfield’s  urban  growth  boundary.    Through  an
intergovernmental  agreement  between Lane County  and  the City of  Springfield,  the City  already has  planning and
building jurisdiction for unincorporated areas of Springfield.  The City will continue to administer land use controls
after annexation.

Finding:   The minimum level of key urban facilities and services, as outlined in  the Springfield Comprehensive Plan
– Urbanization Element are available to the site.

Conclusion:  The proposal meets and complies with Criterion C of SDC 5.7.140.

D.  Where applicable, fiscal impacts to the City have been mitigated through an Annexation Agreement, a
Development Agreement per SDC 5.1.1200, a waiver of remonstrance, or other mechanism approved by
the City Council.

Finding:  The area proposed for annexation is a developed residential property currently zoned for R-1 use.  The
property owner has paid sewer assessment fees and obtained necessary permits to connect the house to City sewer
service.  There are no other obligations of the property owner at this time so it is not anticipated that any fiscal impact
would be experienced by the City upon annexation of the subject territory because key urban services are already
installed and operating at this location.  For this reason, no Annexation Agreement is necessary to ensure mitigation
of fiscal impacts.

Conclusion:    The proposal meets and complies with Criterion D of SDC 5.7.140.

City Council Decision (SDC 5.7.145):   City  Council  approval  of  the  annexation  application  shall  be  by Ordinance.

Finding:  The subject annexation is initiated by Owner Consent and the property is subject to septic system
failure.  The property does not contain natural resource areas and is not within the Hillside Development
Overlay or Floodplain Overlay.  For these reasons, the City Council is requested to process the request as
a quasi-judicial land use action without holding a public hearing.   The City Council is scheduled to give
first reading of the Annexation Ordinance at the regular meeting on October 6, 2025.  Based on the staff analysis and
recommendations,  the  City  Council  may  take  action  to  approve,  modify,  or  deny  the Annexation Ordinance at a

Exhibit B 
6 of 7



subsequent meeting currently scheduled for October 20, 2025.

Zoning (SDC 5.7.150):  The  area  requested  for  annexation  is  zoned  and  designated R-1 Residential  district  in
accordance with the Springfield Zoning Map and the adopted Springfield Comprehensive Plan diagram.   Properties
that  are outside the City limits have the Urbanizable Fringe Overlay District (UF-10) applied to the zoning.  Upon
the effective date  of  the  annexation,  the  UF-10  overlay  will  be  automatically  removed and the property will retain
the R-1 zoning.

Effective Date and Notice of Approved Annexation (SDC 5.7.155):  The subject annexation request and adopting
Ordinance is being presented to the City Council for consideration at a quasi-judicial meeting on October 6, 2025.  Second
reading and potential adoption of the annexation Ordinance is scheduled for October 20, 2025.  Therefore, the annexation
and special district withdrawal will become effective on the day following the general election, November 5, 2025, or
upon acknowledgement of filing with the Secretary of State – whichever date is later.

Withdrawal from Special Service Districts (SDC 5.7.160):  Withdrawal  from  special  districts  may  occur
concurrently with the approved annexation Ordinance or after the effective date of the annexation of territory to the
City.  The Director shall recommend to the City Council for consideration of the withdrawal of the annexed territory
from special  districts  as  specified  in ORS 222.   In  determining whether  to withdraw  the  territory,  the City Council
shall determine whether the withdrawal is in the best interest of the City.  Notice of the withdrawal shall be provided
in the same manner as the annexation notice in SDC 5.7.130.

Finding:    The annexation area  is within  the delineated  service  territory of  the Willakenzie Rural Fire Protection
District.   The Eugene/Springfield Fire Department will directly provide fire and emergency services after annexation.
Consistent with SDC 5.7.160, notice was provided for the public meeting on October 6, 2025.  Withdrawal from the
Willakenzie Rural Fire Protection District concurrently with annexation of the territory to the City of Springfield
is in the best interest of the City.  The withdrawal from the rural water and fire districts is necessary to implement
Policies 31 and 32 of the Springfield Comprehensive Plan – Urbanization Element whereby annexation is prioritized
for the City of Springfield to provide urban services to its incorporated territory, and existing special service districts
within the City’s UGB are to be dissolved over time.

DIRECTOR’S RECOMMENDATION:  The proposal complies with the annexation criteria of approval listed
in SDC 5.7.140, and Council is within its authority to approve annexation of the subject territory to the City
of Springfield and Willamalane Park and Recreation District and withdrawal of the subject territory from the
Willakenzie Rural Fire Protection District.

Exhibit B 
7 of 7



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY Meeting Date:      10/06/2025
 Meeting Type:       Regular Meeting
 Staff Contact/Dept:  Mary Bridget Smith/City Attorney's Office

S P R I N G F I E L D
C I T Y C O U N C I L

Staff Phone No: 541-744-4061
Estimated Time:  10 Minutes
Council Goals:  Mandate

ITEM TITLE:
Approving City Council Operating Policies and Procedures

ACTION REQUESTED:
Adopt/Not adopt the following Resolution: Resolution Approving the City Council Operating Policies and
Procedures

ISSUE STATEMENT:
The Springfield Charter requires the Council to annually approve and maintain its Operating Policies and
Procedures.

DISCUSSION/FINANCIAL IMPACT:
This item came before the Council in a work session on September 2, 2025, to review and discuss its current City
Council Operating Policies and Procedures.

The Council discussed its current reimbursements for council business like travel and meal expenses and directed
staff to return at a later date with more information so it can evaluate whether to amend the City Council Operating
Policies and Procedures.

Chapter IV, Section 12 of the Springfield Charter requires that the City Council annually approve and maintain its
Operating Policies and Procedures. The Council Operating Policies and Procedures require a 2/3 vote of the
Councilors present for approval.
 

Attachments
1. Resolution Approving the City Council Operating Policies and Procedures
1a. Exhibit A: 2025 City Council Operating Policies and Procedures



PAGE 1 of 1 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON 
RESOLUTION NO. ___________  

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 

CITY COUNCIL OPERATING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  
 

WHEREAS, Chapter IV, Section 12 of the Springfield Charter provides that the Council shall approve 

and maintain its operating policies and procedures annually; 

WHEREAS, Section 10.1.2 of the Springfield City Council Operating Policies and Procedures provides 

that the Council may amend their operating policies and procedures at a Council meeting with a two- 

thirds vote of the Councilors present at the meeting provided there is prior notice of the proposed 

changes; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed its operating procedures and policies on September 2, 2025, and 

determined that no changes were necessary; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD: 
 

Section 1:   The Springfield City Council Operating Policies and Procedures previously 
approved by Resolution No. 2024-40 will remain in effect and are attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 
Section 2:   This Resolution will take effect upon adoption by the Council. 

 
ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Springfield this ________ day of October, 

2025, by a vote of ______ for and ______ against. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
City Recorder 
 

Attachment 1
Page 1 of 1

mbsmith
Typewriter
9/26/2025





 
 
 

SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
OPERATING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

 
UPDATED: October 2025

Exhibit A
1 of 27 



 

i       
 

Table of Contents 

SECTION 1 AUTHORITY ..................................................................................................................................... 1 

SECTION 2 OFFICERS OF THE COMMON COUNCIL ................................................................................. 1 

2.1 Election of President .......................................................................................................................... 1 

2.2 Other Seats ............................................................................................................................................. 1 

2.3 Council Vacancy Process ................................................................................................................... 1 

SECTION 3 REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE COMMON COUNCIL .......................................................... 1 

3.1 Location ................................................................................................................................................... 1 

3.2 Time .......................................................................................................................................................... 2 

3.3 Mayor and Councilor Attendance .................................................................................................. 2 

3.3.1 Notification .................................................................................................................................... 2 

3.3.2 Excused Absences ....................................................................................................................... 2 

3.3.3 Remote Participation ................................................................................................................. 2 

3.4 Public Meetings .................................................................................................................................... 2 

3.4.1 Open to the Public....................................................................................................................... 2 

3.4.2 Accommodation for Persons with Disabilities ................................................................ 2 

3.4.3 Deaf or Hard of Hearing Accommodation ......................................................................... 3 

3.5 Council Agenda ..................................................................................................................................... 3 

3.5.1 Agenda Items ................................................................................................................................ 3 

3.5.2 Other Items .................................................................................................................................... 3 

3.5.3 Time Limit...................................................................................................................................... 3 

3.6 Correspondence, Petitions, Etc. ..................................................................................................... 4 

3.6.1 Matters on the Agenda .............................................................................................................. 4 

3.6.2 Matters Not on the Agenda ..................................................................................................... 4 

3.6.3 Discretionary Matters ............................................................................................................... 4 

3.6.4 Withholding an Item .................................................................................................................. 4 

3.7 Order of Business ................................................................................................................................ 4 

3.8 Recesses and Adjournments ........................................................................................................... 5 

3.9 Presiding Officer .................................................................................................................................. 5 

3.9.1 Call Meetings ................................................................................................................................. 5 

3.9.2 Mayor Absence ............................................................................................................................. 5 

3.9.3 Mayor and President Absence ............................................................................................... 5 

Exhibit A
2 of 27 



 

ii       
 

3.9.4 Limitations .................................................................................................................................... 5 

3.10 Appeal Hearings ................................................................................................................................... 6 

3.10.1 Procedure .................................................................................................................................. 6 

3.10.2 Notice .......................................................................................................................................... 6 

3.11 Enactment of Ordinance ................................................................................................................... 6 

3.11.1 Procedure .................................................................................................................................. 6 

3.11.2 Process ........................................................................................................................................ 6 

SECTION 4  CONDUCT AT COUNCIL MEETINGS ....................................................................................... 6 

4.1 Meeting Conduct .................................................................................................................................. 6 

4.2 Procedures ............................................................................................................................................. 6 

4.3 Parliamentary Procedure ................................................................................................................. 6 

4.4 Motions .................................................................................................................................................... 7 

4.5 Motions on Bids and Claims ............................................................................................................ 7 

4.6 Informed Public .................................................................................................................................... 7 

SECTION 5  COUNCIL WORK SESSIONS ....................................................................................................... 7 

5.1 Governing Rules ................................................................................................................................... 7 

5.1.1 Location .......................................................................................................................................... 7 

5.1.2 Agenda ............................................................................................................................................ 7 

5.1.3 Work Sessions .............................................................................................................................. 7 

5.1.4 No Work Sessions on Fifth Monday ..................................................................................... 7 

5.1.5 Decisions at Work Sessions .................................................................................................... 8 

SECTION 6  COUNCIL EXECUTIVE SESSIONS ............................................................................................. 8 

6.1 Conduct .................................................................................................................................................... 8 

6.2 Final Decisions/Actions .................................................................................................................... 8 

6.3 Attendance ............................................................................................................................................. 8 

6.4  News Media Attendance Policy ...................................................................................................... 8 

6.4.1 Exclusions to Attendance ......................................................................................................... 8 

6.4.2 Recognized News Media Organizations ............................................................................. 8 

6.4.3 Attendance at Executive Sessions ........................................................................................ 9 

6.4.4 Request Form ............................................................................................................................... 9 

6.4.5 Providing Credentials in Advance ........................................................................................ 9 

6.4.6 Recording Devices Prohibited................................................................................................ 9 

6.4.7 Application to Boards and Commissions ........................................................................ 10 

  

Exhibit A
3 of 27 



 

iii       
 

SECTION 7  CONDUCT AT COUNCIL MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS ...................................... 10 

7.1 Responsibility for Order ................................................................................................................ 10 

7.2 Order and Decorum ......................................................................................................................... 10 

7.2.1 Responsibility for Order ........................................................................................................ 10 

7.2.2 Warning ....................................................................................................................................... 10 

7.2.3 Clearing Council Chambers .................................................................................................. 10 

7.3 Flags, Signs, Posters ......................................................................................................................... 11 

7.4 Picture Taking and Filming ........................................................................................................... 11 

7.5 Limitations on Public Debate ....................................................................................................... 11 

7.5.1 Time Limitation ........................................................................................................................ 11 

7.5.2 Questions from Audience...................................................................................................... 11 

7.5.3 Directed Discussion ................................................................................................................ 11 

7.5.4 Request to Speak ...................................................................................................................... 11 

7.5.5 Business from the Audience ................................................................................................ 11 

7.5.6 Acknowledgement ................................................................................................................... 11 

7.5.7 Order of Testimony ................................................................................................................. 12 

7.6 Seating Capacity and Safety Requirements ............................................................................ 12 

7.6.1 Seating Capacity ....................................................................................................................... 12 

7.6.2 No Obstructions ........................................................................................................................ 12 

7.7 News Media ......................................................................................................................................... 12 

7.7.1 Not Disruptive ........................................................................................................................... 12 

7.7.2 Recording Equipment Usage ............................................................................................... 12 

7.7.3 Video Tape Equipment Usage ............................................................................................. 12 

7.7.4 Still Camera Usage ................................................................................................................... 12 

SECTION 8  MISCELLANEOUS CITY COUNCIL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ............................ 13 

8.1 Legal Opinions ................................................................................................................................... 13 

8.2 Staff Time ............................................................................................................................................. 13 

8.3 Travel Expenses ................................................................................................................................ 13 

8.3.1 Reimbursement Request....................................................................................................... 13 

8.3.2 Reimbursement Process ....................................................................................................... 14 

8.3.3 Accompanying Public Official .............................................................................................. 14 

8.3.4 Expense Approval .................................................................................................................... 14 

8.3.5 Parking Pass ............................................................................................................................... 14 

8.3.6 Office Supplies ........................................................................................................................... 14 

Exhibit A
4 of 27 



 

iv       
 

8.3.7 Cellular Telephone and Internet ........................................................................................ 14 

8.4 Mayor and Council Members Speaking to Media or at Events ........................................ 15 

8.4.1 Interview or Press Conference ........................................................................................... 15 

8.4.2 Speaking Engagement ............................................................................................................ 15 

8.5 Public Official Ethics, Public Records, Public Meetings and Unlawful Discrimination 
Laws ...................................................................................................................................................... 15 

8.5.1 Legal Compliance ..................................................................................................................... 15 

8.5.2 Statement of Economic Interest ......................................................................................... 15 

8.6 Letter of Support or Opposition .................................................................................................. 16 

8.6.1 Council Input ............................................................................................................................. 16 

8.6.2 Agenda Review ......................................................................................................................... 16 

8.6.3 Council Meeting ........................................................................................................................ 16 

8.6.4 Council Discussion/Response ............................................................................................. 16 

8.6.5 No Position on Quasi-Judicial Land Use Decisions...................................................... 17 

8.7 Condolences ........................................................................................................................................ 17 

SECTION 9  COUNCIL BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, COMMITTEES AND TASK FORCES............... 17 

9.1 City Boards, Commissions and Committees ........................................................................... 17 

9.1.1 Citizen Participation ............................................................................................................... 17 

9.1.2 Authority ..................................................................................................................................... 17 

9.2 BCC Categories ................................................................................................................................... 17 

9.2.1 Council Subcommittee ........................................................................................................... 17 

9.2.2 Council BCC ................................................................................................................................ 17 

9.2.3 Mayoral Committee ................................................................................................................. 17 

9.2.4 Intergovernmental BCC ......................................................................................................... 17 

9.2.5 Other Ad Hoc Committee ...................................................................................................... 18 

9.3 BCC Structure ..................................................................................................................................... 18 

9.3.1 Statement of Purpose ............................................................................................................. 18 

9.3.2 BCC Size ....................................................................................................................................... 18 

9.3.3 Council Liaison .......................................................................................................................... 18 

9.3.4 BCC Liaison ................................................................................................................................. 18 

9.3.5 Staff Liaison ................................................................................................................................ 18 

9.3.6 Member List ............................................................................................................................... 18 

9.3.7 Term of Appointment ............................................................................................................. 18 

9.3.8 No Alternate Voting Members ............................................................................................ 18 

Exhibit A
5 of 27 



 

v       
 

9.3.9 Dissolving BCCs ........................................................................................................................ 19 

9.4  Board, Commission and Committee Qualifications, Appointment and Removal .... 19 

9.4.1 Qualifications ............................................................................................................................. 19 

9.4.2 Vacancies ..................................................................................................................................... 19 

9.4.3 Written Application ................................................................................................................ 19 

9.4.4 Interviews ................................................................................................................................... 19 

9.4.5 Appointment Process ............................................................................................................. 19 

9.4.6 Appointment Considerations .............................................................................................. 19 

9.4.7 Member Removal ..................................................................................................................... 19 

9.5 BCC Procedures ................................................................................................................................. 20 

9.5.1 Supersede Previous Policies ................................................................................................ 20 

9.5.2 BCC Bylaws ................................................................................................................................. 20 

9.5.3 Public Meetings Law ............................................................................................................... 20 

9.5.4 Notice of Meetings ................................................................................................................... 20 

9.5.5 Agenda and Minutes ............................................................................................................... 20 

9.5.6 Quorum ........................................................................................................................................ 20 

9.5.7 Public Official Ethics Laws .................................................................................................... 20 

9.5.8 Speaking on Behalf of the BCC or City.............................................................................. 20 

9.5.9 New Members Briefing .......................................................................................................... 20 

9.5.10 Joint Meetings ....................................................................................................................... 20 

9.5.11 Budget Requests .................................................................................................................. 21 

9.5.12 Council Meeting Attendance ........................................................................................... 21 

SECTION 10  AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONS TO OPERATING POLICIES AND 
PROCEDURES ...................................................................................................................................................... 21 

10.1 Temporarily Suspended ................................................................................................................. 21 

10.1.1 Suspended by Vote .............................................................................................................. 21 

10.1.2 Amendments ......................................................................................................................... 21 

Exhibit A
6 of 27 



 

1       
 

SECTION 1 
AUTHORITY 

These operating policies and procedures are established and adopted under the authority 
granted in the Springfield Charter, Chapter IV, Section 12. 

SECTION 2 
OFFICERS OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

2.1 Election of President 

At the first regular meeting of the Council in January of each odd-numbered year, the 
Council shall elect one of its members as President of the Common Council.  The duties of 
President shall be those specified in the City Charter and any others expressly directed 
herein. 

2.2 Other Seats 

The City Manager, City Recorder, and City Attorney are hereby entitled to seats with the 
Common Council. 

2.3 Council Vacancy Process 

The Council will declare that a vacancy has occurred at a regular meeting. 
 
Before filling a vacancy in an elective office as defined in the Springfield Charter and 
notwithstanding a situation where the Council appoints a councilor-elect to fill a vacancy in 
the seat to which they were elected before their term starts, the Council shall adopt a 
process that may include procedures such as determining qualifications, advertising and 
outreach regarding the vacancy, a standard application form, the interview process and 
public participation.  The Council cannot adopt the process until the public has had an 
opportunity to provide comment about the process at a public hearing.  The adopted 
process will not commence until after the vacating Councilor has vacated their position and 
ceased their role. 

SECTION 3 
REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 

3.1 Location 

The regular meetings of the Common Council shall be held in the Springfield City Hall, 
Council Chambers, 225 Fifth Street. Changes of location must be in accordance with City 
Code Section 2.050. 

Exhibit A
7 of 27 



 

2       
 

3.2 Time 

The regular meetings shall begin at 7:00 p.m. on the first and third Mondays of each month, 
except when that day falls on a legal holiday in which event the Council shall meet on the 
next following regular business day at the same time and location. If advised by the City 
Manager or when approved by the Mayor or three members of the Council, special 
meetings may be scheduled. Regular meetings may be canceled sometime during the 
months of March, June, July and August in order to provide a time for spring break or 
summer recess, and during the months of December and January to provide a time for a 
winter recess. 

3.3 Mayor and Councilor Attendance 

3.3.1 Notification.  Councilors are expected to attend all Council work sessions and 
regular meetings. The City Charter provides that the position of Mayor or a Council 
member becomes vacant upon an incumbent’s unexcused absence from four 
consecutive regular Council meetings (Springfield Charter Section 19(10)). 

 
 3.3.2 Excused Absences.  Excused absences from Council meetings include: 

 
3.3.2.1  Death in the family 
3.3.2.2  Illness 
3.3.2.3  Family emergency 
3.3.2.4 Scheduled vacations; however, Councilors are encouraged, 

when possible, to schedule vacations during scheduled Council 
recesses. 

3.3.2.5  On city business 
3.3.2.6  Employment conflict 
3.3.2.7 Other absences as excused by the Mayor or three members of 

the Council when the Mayor is not available. 
 

3.3.3 Remote Participation.  Councilors may, at their discretion, attend meetings, 
regular sessions, and work sessions in-person or virtually. 

3.4 Public Meetings 

3.4.1 Open to the Public.  All meetings of the Council or the Boards, Committees, 
and Commissions of the City shall be open to the public and in conformance with 
Chapter 192, Oregon revised Statutes, Public Meetings. 

 
3.4.2 Accommodation for Persons with Disabilities.  The meeting location shall be 
accessible to persons with disabilities.  Upon request of a person who is deaf or 
heard of hearing, the City will make a good faith effort to provide an interpreter at a 
regularly scheduled meeting.  The request shall be made at least 48 hours in 
advance and include the name of the requester and sign language preference. 
 

Exhibit A
8 of 27 



 

3       
 

3.4.3 Deaf or Hard of Hearing Accommodation.  For meetings in the Council 
Meeting Room, a “Personal PA Receiver” for the hearing impaired is available, as 
well as the Induction Loop for the benefit of hearing aid users. 

3.5 Council Agenda 

3.5.1 Agenda Items.  Matters to be considered by the Council at its regular 
meetings shall be placed on an agenda to be prepared by the City Manager from the 
following materials: 
 

3.5.1.1 All items considered by the Council from work sessions which 
require official action of the Council. 
 
3.5.1.2 All items directed by the Mayor or a member of the Council to be 
listed on the agenda. Items recommended for discussion by the Mayor 
require approval of the Council President. Items recommended by the 
Council President require approval of the Mayor. If agreement is not reached, 
Council consensus is required in order to add the item to the agenda.  
 
Items recommended for discussion by a Council member require approval of 
the Mayor and Council President. If agreement is not reached, a majority of 
the Council is required in order to add the item to the agenda. 
 

 3.5.1.3 All items deemed appropriate to the City Manager. 
 
 3.5.1.4 All items which are required by law to be presented to the Council. 

 
3.5.2 Other Items.  The Council may also consider any other item, proposed by the 
Mayor, a member of the Council or the City Manager, not included upon the written 
agenda. 
 

3.5.2.1 Requests for Proclamation.  Organizations or citizens requesting 
proclamations that proclaim a specified date or dates to recognize the efforts 
of various community groups and individuals on certain projects, shall be 
filed with the City Recorder. Upon receipt, the City Recorder will notify the 
Mayor of the request. If the Mayor approves the request, the City Recorder 
will prepare the proclamation for the Mayor’s signature. 
 
3.5.2.2 Reading of Proclamations.  It will be at the discretion of the Mayor if 
a proclamation will be read at a City Council meeting or presented to the 
organization or group. It is preferred that a representative of the requesting 
organization be present to receive the proclamation. 
 

3.5.3 Time Limit.  Items appearing on the Council agenda shall be assigned a time 
limit and the Mayor shall hold discussion to within the time limit, unless the 

Exhibit A
9 of 27 



 

4       
 

consensus of the Council is to extend the time limit until an issue or item is 
discussed and resolved. 

3.6 Correspondence, Petitions, Etc. 

Unsolicited written communications such as correspondence and petitions may be 
submitted to the City Manager’s Office at any time. 
 

3.6.1 Matters on the Agenda.  Unsolicited communications to the mayor and/or 
Council concerning matters on an agenda received by 12:00 noon on the Wednesday 
preceding the Council meeting for which they are intended shall be forwarded to the 
Council in the agenda packet.  Any communications submitted without the author’s 
name may be put on an agenda but will not normally be accepted by the Council. 
 
3.6.2 Matters Not on the Agenda.  Unsolicited communications to the mayor 
and/or Council concerning matters that are not on an agenda shall be forwarded to 
the mayor and/or Council but shall not be included in an agenda packet. 
 
3.6.3 Discretionary Matters.  The City Manager may, in their discretion, bring any 
matter raised by an unsolicited communication to the attention of the Council as an 
agenda item, provided that such communication is accompanied by an Agenda Item 
Summary. 
 
3.6.4 Withholding an Item.  The City Manager may withhold any such item from an 
agenda so that they can study the issue, question or request. 

3.7 Order of Business 

The order of business of the Council meetings, unless the Mayor with the consent of a 
majority of the Council shall otherwise direct, shall be as follows: 

 
I  – Call to Order 
II – Roll Call 
III  – Pledge of Allegiance 
IV  – Springfield Upbeat 
 a. Mayor’s Recognition 
 b. Other 
V  – Consent Calendar 
 a. Claims 
 b. Minutes 
 c. Resolutions 
 d. Ordinance (Second readings) 
 e. Other Routine Matters 
VI   – Items Removed From the Consent Calendar 
VII  – Public Hearing 
 a. Consideration of ordinances or resolutions related to public hearings. 

Exhibit A
10 of 27 



 

5       
 

VIII  – Business From the Audience (limited to 20 minutes total) 
IX   – Council Response 
X   – Correspondence and Petitioners 
XI   – Ordinances (First readings and emergencies) 
XII   – Bids 
XIII  – Business From the Council 
 a. Committee Appointments 
 b. Committee Reports 
 c. Other Business 
XIV  – Business From the City Manager 
XV   – Business From the City Attorney 

3.8 Recesses and Adjournments 

The Mayor may recess regular meetings of the City Council for approximately 10 minutes 
as needed. The meeting will normally adjourn by 10:00 p.m. except upon vote of a majority 
of the Council members present to extend the meeting to a time certain or until an issue or 
item is discussed and resolved. 

 
3.9 Presiding Officer 
 

3.9.1 Call Meetings.  The Mayor shall have the power to call meetings of the Council 
and shall preside over the deliberations of the Council which the Mayor attends and 
vote only in case of a tie. 
 
3.9.2 Mayor Absence.  The President of the Council shall preside over the meetings 
of the Council and perform the duties of Mayor when the Mayor is absent from a 
Council meeting or the Mayor is unable to function as Mayor. The President of the 
Council shall not lose a vote while presiding but shall not gain an additional vote by 
reason of presiding. 
 
3.9.3 Mayor and President Absence. In the absence of the Mayor and the President, 
if a quorum of the Council is present, the senior member of the Council shall preside 
over the meeting as President Pro-Tem. If there is no one senior member of the 
Council, Council shall choose, by vote, a President Pro-Tem to preside at that 
meeting. 
 
3.9.4 Limitations. The Council President or the Council President Pro-Tem, while 
serving as presiding officer, may move, second, and debate from the chair, subject 
only to the limitations of debate as are imposed on all members and shall not be 
deprived of any of the rights and privileges of a Councilor by reason of acting as 
presiding officer. 

Exhibit A
11 of 27 



 

6       
 

3.10 Appeal Hearings 

3.10.1 Procedure.  Appeals may be filed before the City Council on the action of any 
appointed body of the Council or staff as provided in the appropriate Code section 
governing such actions. In the absence of any procedures, an appeal must be filed 
within 10 days of the action. 
 
3.10.2 Notice.  All appeal hearings before the city Council shall be scheduled as soon 
as possible after the Council is notified of the appeal, allowing sufficient time for 
providing the required public notices. 

3.11 Enactment of Ordinance 

3.11.1 Procedure.  The procedure and requirements for the enactment of 
ordinances shall be as provided in the Charter and in Section 2.105 of the 
Springfield Code. The City Manager or their designee will read ordinances by title 
only unless otherwise requested by Council. 
 
3.11.2 Process. As provided in Section 2.105, the reading of an ordinance is 
considered to have taken place by it being placed on the Council agenda. Ordinances 
without the emergency clause will appear on the Council agenda at two consecutive 
regular meetings unless otherwise directed by the City Manager. Ordinances 
containing an emergency clause are considered to have received two readings by 
being placed on the Council agenda at a single meeting. The Council may, by motion, 
remove the emergency clause in any ordinance. In all cases, each councilor’s vote 
shall be recorded for every ordinance. 

SECTION 4  
CONDUCT AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 

4.1 Meeting Conduct 

The conduct of all meetings of the Council or of any committee appointed by it shall be 
governed by Roberts’ Rules of Order, Revised, unless otherwise provided. 

4.2 Procedures 

The Council will be clear and simple in its procedures and the consideration of matters 
coming before it. It should avoid invoking the finer points of parliamentary rules which 
may serve only to obscure the issues and to cause audience or citizen misunderstanding of 
or misapprehension about actions taken at the meeting. 

4.3 Parliamentary Procedure 

The City Attorney is designated as parliamentarian for the Council. Questions of 
parliamentary rules may be referred, through the presiding officer, to the City Attorney for 
interpretation. However, the final ruling rests with the presiding officer. 

Exhibit A
12 of 27 



 

7       
 

4.4 Motions 

Except as provided for in paragraph 5 below, the President of the Council should ordinarily 
present all main motions on business to come before the Council.  The second may come 
from any member.  All members may, however, present motions when appropriate. 

4.5 Motions on Bids and Claims 

Motions on bids and claims shall ordinarily appear on the consent calendar.  However, the 
Chair of the Finance and Judiciary Committee of the Council may review bids and claims 
prior to adoption of these matters. 

4.6 Informed Public 

It is the policy of the Common Council of the City of Springfield to ensure an informed 
public, aware of the deliberations and decisions of this body and its sub-bodies, and of the 
information upon which decisions were made.  It is further the policy of the City of 
Springfield that those decisions be arrived at openly.  With the exception of items approved 
on the consent calendar, the Mayor and Council members shall be willing to explain the 
rationale for each vote during the Council meeting. 

SECTION 5  
COUNCIL WORK SESSIONS 

5.1 Governing Rules 

The City Council may have work sessions at which they shall have discussion on topics of 
importance to them.  The work sessions shall normally be held on the second and fourth 
Monday of each month beginning at 5:30 p.m. and may also occur on the first and third 
Monday at 6:00 p.m. 
 

5.1.1 Location.  The Council shall meet at the same location as the regular Council 
meeting, unless otherwise provided by notice. 
 
5.1.2 Agenda.  The agenda for the work session shall be prepared by the City 
Manager from items: 

a. All items directed by the Mayor or any member of the Council to be 
listed on the agenda. 

b. All items deemed appropriate by the City Manager. 
 
5.1.3 Work Sessions.  Work sessions of the City Council will normally adjourn by 
10:00 p.m. except upon consent of a majority of the Council members present to 
extend the meeting to a time certain or until an issue or item is discussed or 
resolved. 
 
5.1.4 No Work Sessions on Fifth Monday.  No regular work sessions shall be 
scheduled on the fifth Monday of any month or on the fourth Monday during 

Exhibit A
13 of 27 



 

8       
 

December.  If advised by the City Manager and Council Leadership, special work 
sessions may be schedule.  Work sessions may also be canceled sometime during the 
months of March, June, July and August in order to provide a time for spring break 
or summer recess, and during the months of December and January to provide a 
time for a winter recess. 
 
5.1.5 Decisions at Work Sessions.  Decisions made and actions taken at the work 
session are informal and must be ratified at a subsequent regular meeting. 

SECTION 6  
COUNCIL EXECUTIVE SESSIONS 

6.1 Conduct 

All Executive Sessions of the Common Council shall be called and conducted in accordance 
with Chapter 192, Oregon Revised Statutes. 

6.2 Final Decisions/Actions 

No Executive Session may be held for the purpose of taking any final action or making any 
final decision.  Final actions and final decisions must be done in open, public meetings of 
the Council. 

6.3 Attendance 

Executive session attendance shall be determined by the Mayor (as the presiding officer) or 
the Council.  The City Manager may select staff members to be present who have a 
demonstrable need for attendance. 

6.4  News Media Attendance Policy 

6.4.1 Exclusions to Attendance.  Representatives of recognized news media may 
attend executive sessions, other than those sessions during which the Council 
conducts deliberations with persons designated to carry on labor negotiations, or 
where the matter involves litigation, and the news media is a party to the litigation. 

 
6.4.2 Recognized News Media Organizations.  The following entities are recognized 
as news media organizations eligible to attend executive sessions: 

a.   Daily newspapers, non-daily, and small-market newspapers/publications, 
as well as those publications that are released as digital and multiplatform products; 
or 

b.  A newspaper or publication that the City uses for publication of public 
notices and that meets the requirements of ORS 193.020; or  

c.  An entity that is organized and operated to regularly and continuously 
publish, broadcast, transmit via television, radio or the internet or otherwise 

Exhibit A
14 of 27 



 

9       
 

disseminate news to the public, and that regularly reports on activities of public 
concern. 

 
6.4.3 Attendance at Executive Sessions.  Representatives of news media 
organizations recognized pursuant to Section 6.4.2 shall be allowed to attend 
executive sessions, except as described section 6.4.1 pursuant to the following 
process: 

a. The representative must provide substantial evidence persuading the City 
that he or she is a news reporter for the recognized news media organization.  In 
making its determination whether to recognize the person as a representative of the 
news media organization, the City may require: 

(i) A press badge or identification issued by the recognized news 
media organization, plus proof of identity (such as a driver’s license); or 

(ii) A recently published news article in the recognized news media 
organization publication or broadcast, with the person’s byline, or a 
masthead showing the person’s name as a member of the news gathering 
staff of the news media organization, plus proof of identity; or 

(iii) A letter on letterhead from an editor of the recognized news 
media organization in which the editor states that the reporter is covering 
the meeting for the news media organization, plus proof of identity; or 

(iv) Any other credentials or evidence sufficient to demonstrate that 
the individual is a representative of the news media. 

 
6.4.4 Request Form.  The City requires that requests to be recognized as a 
representative of a news media organization be made in writing on a form provided 
by the City.  The form shall require disclosure of the person’s name, and the entity 
for which he or she is a representative and shall require submission of evidence 
described in section 6.4.3(a).  The form shall also include a certification that the 
person is a representative of a recognized news media organization, that the 
information given is true, and that the person agrees to comply with ORS 
192.660(4).  The form will be made available on the City’s webpage and upon 
request by any individual. 

 
6.4.5 Providing Credentials in Advance.  The City Council is prohibited from 
making final decisions on any matter in executive session.  Therefore, 
representatives are requested to provide the above evidence to persuade the City 
that they are a representative of the recognized news media organization in advance 
of the scheduled executive session.  In the event that a person claiming to be a 
representative of the news media fails to provide advance evidence of their 
credentials, the representative should either be allowed to attend the executive 
session, or the executive session shall be postponed until a later time. 

 
6.4.6 Recording Devices Prohibited.  Cameras, tape recorders and other recording 
devices shall not be used in executive sessions, except for the official executive 
session recordings made by City staff. 

 

Exhibit A
15 of 27 



 

10       
 

6.4.7 Application to Boards and Commissions.  These policies and procedures shall 
apply to the City Council and all of its boards and commissions. 

SECTION 7  
CONDUCT AT COUNCIL MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS 

7.1 Responsibility for Order 

The presiding officer of the Council shall be responsible for ensuring that order and 
decorum are maintained during all meetings of the Council. and the City Manager or 
designee shall be responsible for providing security at all meetings of the Council and is 
responsible for enforcing the rules of conduct as directed by the presiding officer. 

7.2 Order and Decorum 

7.2.1 Responsibility for Order.  Any of the following shall be sufficient cause for the 
presiding officer to remove any person from a Council Meeting or City Hall, for the 
duration of the meeting: 
 

7.2.1.1 The use of unreasonably loud, disruptive or profane language. 
 
7.2.1.2 The making of loud or disruptive noise. 
 
7.2.1.3 The engaging in violent or distracting action. 
 
7.2.1.4 The willful damage of furnishings or of the interior of the Council 
Chamber or City Hall. 
 
7.2.1.5 The refusal to obey any of the rules of conduct provided within this 
Section, including the limitations on occupancy and seating capacity. 
 
7.2.1.6 The refusal to obey an order of the presiding officer or an order 
issued by any Council member which has been approved by a majority of the 
Council members present. 
 
7.2.1.7 Any conduct which obstructs the work or the conducting of business 
of the Council. 
 

7.2.2 Warning.  Before any person is removed from the meeting for conduct 
described in subparagraph 7.2.1, that person shall be given a warning by the 
presiding officer to cease that conduct. 
 
7.2.3 Clearing Council Chambers.  If a meeting is disrupted by members of the 
audience, the presiding officer or a majority of the Council members present may 
order that the Council Chambers or City Hall be cleared. 

Exhibit A
16 of 27 



 

11       
 

7.3 Flags, Signs, Posters 

No flags, posters, placards, signs or animals, unless authorized by the presiding officer, may 
be carried or placed in the Council Chamber, or any meeting hall in which a public hearing 
is being held.  This restriction shall not apply to armbands, emblems, badges or other 
articles worn on personal clothing or individuals, provided that such devices are of such a 
size and nature as not to interfere with the vision or hearing of other persons at the 
meeting, and providing that such devices do not extend from the body in a manner likely to 
cause injury to another. 

7.4 Picture Taking and Filming 

The taking of photographs in the Council Chamber or City Hall shall be allowed except 
when done in violation of Nos. 7.3 and 7.4 of this section. 

7.5 Limitations on Public Debate 

7.5.1 Time Limitation.  Time for testimony by members of the audience at public 
hearings or any Council meeting at which the public is invited or allowed to address 
the Council may be limited for each speaker and for each subject by the presiding 
officer or by majority vote of the Council.  In the interest of time, persons addressing 
the Council shall limit their remarks to three minutes or less.  A person may request 
additional time to address the Council if the request is made to the City Manager’s 
Office by 12 noon of the Wednesday preceding the Council meeting for which it is 
intended and approved by the Mayor. 
 
7.5.2 Questions from Audience.  All questions and discussions by members of the 
audience shall be directed to the presiding officer. 
 
7.5.3 Directed Discussion.  Directed discussion between members of the audience 
and Council members or city employees shall be permitted only at the discretion of 
the presiding officer. 
 
7.5.4 Request to Speak.  Persons attending a Council meeting in person shall give a 
completed “Request To Speak” card to the City Recorder.  Persons attending a 
Council meeting virtually shall notify the City Recorder that they wish to speak by 
‘raising their hand’ on the meeting platform application. 
 
7.5.5 Business from the Audience.  All public testimony at regular sessions and 
work sessions, except at public hearings, shall be under the agenda item, “Business 
from the Audience” unless specifically permitted by the presiding officer. 
 
7.5.6 Acknowledgement.  All persons addressing the Council shall do so after being 
acknowledged by the Presiding Officer.  They shall clearly state their name and ward 
or location in the UGB, except for land use hearings where providing an address is 
necessary to receive notice of a decision for appeal rights.  When speaking at public 
hearings, persons shall confine their comments to the issue under consideration. 

Exhibit A
17 of 27 



 

12       
 

 
7.5.7 Order of Testimony.  For land use matters, the order of testimony shall be as 
prescribed by law.  For all other matters, the presiding officer will recognize those 
attending the meeting in-person first and then those attending virtually who have 
notified the City Recorder that they wish to speak.  The presiding officer may also 
recognize others in the audience. 

7.6 Seating Capacity and Safety Requirements 

7.6.1 Seating Capacity.  The safe occupancy and seating capacity of the Council 
Chambers as determined by the Fire Marshal shall be posted within the Council 
Chamber.  The limitations on occupancy and seating capacity so determined and 
posted shall be complied with at all times. 
 
7.6.2 No Obstructions.  Aisles shall be kept clear at all times and persons shall not 
obstruct the doorways. 

7.7 News Media 

7.7.1 Not Disruptive.  The provisions of this Section shall not be construed to 
prevent news media representatives from performing their duties so long as the 
manner of performance is not unreasonably disruptive of the meeting. 
 
7.7.2 Recording Equipment Usage.  Representatives of news media organizations 
utilizing electronic recording equipment shall use the recording jacks made 
available in the Council Chamber for that purpose.  Those persons shall not 
approach the Council table for the purpose of recording without permission of the 
presiding officer. 
 
7.7.3 Video Tape Equipment Usage.  Persons using television or video tape 
equipment shall set up such equipment and remove the equipment in such a manner 
as to cause no disruption or distraction in the meeting.  The placement of video 
equipment shall be allowed anywhere in the Council Chamber with the exception of 
the Council platform. 
 
7.7.4 Still Camera Usage.  Persons using still cameras may take photographs from 
anywhere in the Council Chamber.  Only one photographer may be on the Council 
platform at a time; additionally, while photographing from the Council platform, 
photographers will be discouraged from using automatic film advancing devices or 
flash units. 

Exhibit A
18 of 27 



 

13       
 

SECTION 8  
MISCELLANEOUS CITY COUNCIL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

8.1 Legal Opinions 

Members of the City Council requesting a legal opinion from the City Attorney may do so 
directly provided the Mayor is aware of the inquiry or to the City Attorney at any official 
meeting of the Council. 

8.2 Staff Time 

The Mayor and City Council member shall refrain from using staff time and incurring 
unnecessary cost to the City. 

8.3 Travel Expenses 

Authorization is needed from the Mayor prior to a Council member taking a trip and 
incurring expenses on City-related business. 
 
To receive authorization for attendance at a training or conference (with the exception of 
the League of Oregon Cities Conference) the Council member will contact the City 
Manager’s office with their request with dates, location, cost and purpose of the training.  
The City Manager or their designee, will present the request to the Mayor for review and 
approval. 
 

8.3.1 Reimbursement Request.  The Mayor and Council members are encouraged 
to request reimbursement for actual expenses incurred in their duties as elected 
officials.  Two methods of reimbursement are available for expenses incurred 
related to city business.  See Section 8.3.2. 
 
The following expenditure categories qualify for reimbursement: 
 a. Out of town travel expenses including mileage, meals and lodging (not 

included in automatic reimbursement process). 
 b. Long distance telephone costs (if not issued a city cell phone or cell 

phone reimbursement). 
 c. Additional cellular phone costs related to calls made regarding City of 

Springfield business (if not receiving a city cell phone or cell phone 
reimbursement). 

 d. Postage 
 e. Local mileage and meal expense. 

 
*None of the above items may be paid for by the City in connection with elections or 
campaigning for a specific office. 
 
  

Exhibit A
19 of 27 



 

14       
 

8.3.2 Reimbursement Process. 
a. The Mayor and Council may submit receipts or documentation for 
reimbursement related to city business.  Receipts and documentation must 
be submitted within 60 days of when the city business expense occurred. 
b. Monthly Automatic Payments.  The Mayor and Council may receive 
automatic payments for cell phone and internet services. 

 
8.3.3 Accompanying Public Official.  As of 2015, state ethics law allows public 
agencies to pay for the cost of admission to, or food or beverage for relatives of a 
public official accompanying the public official at a reception, meal or meeting held 
by an organization when the public official is there in their official capacity.  For 
elected officials for the City of Springfield, the following provisions will be allowed: 

a. The City will pay for the spouse or relative of an elected official to 
attend an event with the elected official two times per fiscal year/per elected 
official for an amount not to exceed $100 per event. 

 
8.3.4 Expense Approval.  The Mayor will review and approve expense claims 
submitted by Council members.  The Council President should review and approve 
expenditures submitted by the Mayor. 
 
8.3.5 Parking Pass.  The City will issue the Mayor and City Council each a parking 
pass to allow them to park in City owned permitted parking lots while acting in their 
official capacities as Mayor or members of the Council. 
 
8.3.6 Office Supplies.  The City should purchase office supplies for the Mayor and 
City Council.  Such purchases should, when practical, occur through the normal city 
purchasing procedures. 
 
8.3.7 Cellular Telephone and Internet.  The Mayor and Council may receive 
reimbursement for cellular and/or internet services, for city business, or the City 
may provide a cellular phone with service, for city use only.  The Mayor and Council 
also have the option of receiving neither. 
 

8.3.7.1 Internet Services:  The Mayor and Council may receive 
reimbursement for internet services.  Reimbursement will be at the rate of 
$40.00 per month.  This amount may be re-evaluated at any time staff or 
council leadership deems review is necessary (e.g., rate increases). 
 
Policy Guidelines are applicable as noted in (1) City of Springfield 
Administrative Regulation No. 04-01.01, Acceptable Use of City Network 
Services and Computing Devices; and (2) State Archives Division guidelines 
regarding email and retention.  Your email system may be subject to review 
by someone in the event of a public records request to determine what can 
be disclosed. 

 

Exhibit A
20 of 27 



 

15       
 

8.3.7.2 Cellular Telephone:  The Mayor and Council can be provided with a 
city cell phone, for city use only.  The phone is purchased by the City and the 
monthly plan fees are processed directly through the City, by the service 
provider. 
 
A secondary option for the Mayor and Council is to use their own cell phone 
rather than a city issued telephone.  A reimbursement amount of $45 per 
month is available for use of personal cell phones.  The amount may be re-
evaluated at any time staff or the council leadership deems review is 
necessary (e.g., rate increase). 
 
8.3.7.3 Mileage Reimbursement:  Mileage reimbursement will be based on 
the IRS approved rate. 
 
The Mayor/Council will be provided with a monthly travel report template 
which they may use to document their mileage, or they may create their own 
document listing mileage to and from meetings or events they attend in their 
capacity as an elected official.  Once the mileage report is submitted by the 
Mayor/Council member and approved (see subsection 3.4 for approval 
process) the payment will be processed and provided either through direct 
deposit or sent directly to the Mayor/Council member’s home. 

8.4 Mayor and Council Members Speaking to Media or at Events 

8.4.1 Interview or Press Conference.  The Mayor and City Council members shall, if 
at all possible, notify the City Manager’s Office and the Mayor if they are asked to do 
an interview or initiate a press conference relating to city business or policy prior to 
its occurrence.  The Mayor or Council member shall clarify what, if any, official 
capacity they are representing when speaking to the media. 
 

8.4.2 Speaking Engagement.  City Council members shall notify the Council 
President if they plan to attend and speak at a community event in their role as a 
Council member.  At the outset of the event, the Council member shall clarify that 
their comments are their own and do not represent that of the full Council. 

8.5 Public Official Ethics, Public Records, Public Meetings and Unlawful 
Discrimination Laws 

8.5.1 Legal Compliance.  All members of the Common Council shall review and 
observe the requirements of state laws regarding public official ethics, public 
records, public meetings and unlawful discrimination against others because of race, 
color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national, origin marital 
status, age, disability or other protected class status as defined under Oregon law. 
 
8.5.2 Statement of Economic Interest.  Additionally, certain public officials are 
required to file “Statements of Economic Interest” with the Oregon Government 

Exhibit A
21 of 27 



 

16       
 

Ethics Commission by April 15 annually (ORS Chapter 244).  In Springfield, this 
currently applies to the following: 

 
Mayor and City Council 
Planning Commission 
Springfield Utility Board 
Municipal Judges 
City Manager 

8.6 Letter of Support or Opposition 

The Mayor and Council often receive requests for a letter of support or opposition on a 
particular issue.  These requests should be addressed as follows: 

 
8.6.1 Council Input.  If the Mayor or a Councilor is being asked to provide the letter 
as the Mayor, an individual Councilor or simply as a citizen, they may choose to 
forward the request to the other Councilors for their input before submitting their 
response or providing the letter; however, it is not required. 
 

8.6.2 Agenda Review.  If the request is asking for a position by the entire Council, 
and there is sufficient time, the letter is to be provided to the City Manager’s Office 
for review at the next available Agenda Review meeting for review by Council 
leadership who will provide a proposed response. 
 
8.6.3 Council Meeting.  The proposed response letter is to be brought to the next 
Council meeting by the City Manager with any objections or comments for 
discussion.  Council will make a motion to approve/approve with changes/not 
approve the response letter. 

a. If the letter is unanimously approved by the Council as written or as 
amended, it is signed by the Mayor on behalf of the Council. 
b. If the letter is approved by the majority of the Council as written or 
amended, but not unanimously, the letter will list the number of “yes” and 
“no” votes and any abstentions, listing the respective Councilors’ names by 
each of the votes. 
c. If Council chooses not to submit a response letter, a Councilor 
(preferably the one receiving the original request) will contact the requestor 
to let them know the Council does not wish to take a position on the matter.  
This would not preclude a Councilor from taking a position as an individual 
Councilor or citizen. 
 

8.6.4 Council Discussion/Response.  If there is not sufficient time for the process 
above, the letter will be brought directly to the Council for discussion and action on 
a response. 
 

Exhibit A
22 of 27 



 

17       
 

8.6.5 No Position on Quasi-Judicial Land Use Decisions.  The Council shall not take 
any position on quasi-judicial land use matters which will be considered by the 
Planning Commission or City Council. 

8.7 Condolences 

Council may choose to authorize the purchase of flowers in circumstances where a 
community member or a member of the community member’s family has died. 

a. The cost of the flowers will have a not to exceed amount of $100, or as may 
be limited by the Oregon Government Ethics law and will be sent on behalf of the 
Mayor and Council. 
b. In lieu of flowers, a donation could be made on behalf of the Mayor and 
Council, with a not to exceed amount of $100, or as may be limited by the Oregon 
Government Ethics law, to a non-profit organization with a 501(c)(3) designation. 

SECTION 9  
COUNCIL BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, COMMITTEES AND TASK FORCES 

9.1 City Boards, Commissions and Committees 

9.1.1 Citizen Participation. Springfield’s boards, commissions, committees and task 
forces (BCCs) provide an invaluable service to the City and effective citizen 
participation is an invaluable tool for local government. 

 
9.1.2 Authority. BCCs originate from different sources such as a state statute, the 
Springfield Charter or ordinance.  Others are established by direction of the Council 
or the Mayor.  It is Council discretion as to whether any BCC should be set forth in 
the Code by ordinance. 

9.2 BCC Categories 

9.2.1 Council Subcommittee. Council subcommittees are appointed by the Mayor.  
They consist of three members of the Council and may include other citizen 
representation. Examples of Council subcommittees include the Judiciary & Finance 
and Legislative Committees. 

 
9.2.2 Council BCC. Any BCC that is appointed by the Council. Examples of Council 
BCCs include the Springfield Police Advisory Committee, Springfield Arts 
Commission, the Budget Committee and the Planning Commission. 

 
9.2.3 Mayoral Committee. A committee appointed by the Mayor to carry out a 
particular project or task. The Mayor may dissolve the committee or request the 
Council to accept it as a permanent committee. 

 
9.2.4 Intergovernmental BCC. A committee formed as a joint effort of more than 
one government agency often created through an intergovernmental agreement.  

Exhibit A
23 of 27 



 

18       
 

Examples of intergovernmental committees include the Human Services 
Commission, Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission and the Lane 
Regional Air Protection Agency. 

 
9.2.5 Other Ad Hoc Committee. The Council may nominate and appoint certain ad 
hoc committees to carry out a particular project or task. 

9.3 BCC Structure  

9.3.1 Statement of Purpose. Every BCC will have a specific statement of purpose, 
which will be re-examined periodically by the Mayor and Council to determine its 
effectiveness.   
 

9.3.2 BCC Size. Unless otherwise provided by state law or the Springfield Charter, 
the Mayor will determine the size of the Mayor’s Committees and the Council will 
determine the size of the City’s other BCCs. 

 
9.3.3 Council Liaison. The Mayor will appoint a Councilor Liaison to specific BCCs 
at the first regular meeting in January following a November general election. The 
Councilor Liaison is responsible for coordinating with the respective BCC liaison to 
establish a regular communication channel between the Council and the respective 
BCC. 
 
9.3.4 BCC Liaison. Most BCCs will appoint a BCC Liaison to coordinate with the 
Council and Staff Liaisons. The BCC Liaison can be the BCC chair or someone else 
selected by the BCC. 
 
9.3.5 Staff Liaison. Most BCCs will also have an assigned staff person whose role is 
to provide administrative support for the BCC and to coordinate with the Council 
and BCC Liaisons. Staff Liaison members are not employees of a BCC and are directly 
responsible to their department director and the City Manager. 

 
9.3.6 Member List. A complete list of members of the City’s various BCCs will be 
available in the City Manager’s Office and will be updated and posted on the City’s 
website.  
 
9.3.7 Term of Appointment. Unless otherwise provided by law or BCC Bylaws, 
terms are four-year, overlapping terms of office with no individual allowed to be 
appointed to more than two consecutive full terms. If someone is appointed to fill a 
partial term, that term will not be considered a full term as it applies to this section 
and they will be eligible to serve two additional full terms.  Individuals may re-apply 
after being off a BCC for one year. 
 
9.3.8 No Alternate Voting Members. There shall be no designation or appointment 
of alternate voting members. 
 

Exhibit A
24 of 27 



 

19       
 

9.3.9 Dissolving BCCs. Unless otherwise provided by law, the appointing authority 
may dissolve a BCC that, in their opinion, has completed its working function. 

9.4  Board, Commission and Committee Qualifications, Appointment and Removal  

9.4.1 Qualifications. Unless otherwise noted in the Bylaws for specific expertise or 
residency requirements, all BCC members persons appointed shall be residents or 
property owners within Springfield.  With the exception of students, all BCC 
members must also be registered voters. 
 
9.4.2 Vacancies. BCC vacancies will be filled as needed.  Notice of vacancies will be 
publicized as widely as practical throughout the community through means such as 
media releases, website and social media postings, and local advertising. 
 
9.4.3 Written Application. All BCC applicants must submit a written application on 
the City’s provided form to the City Manager’s Office prior to consideration by the 
Council. 
 

9.4.4 Interviews. The Mayor and Council will hold interviews of all Council BCC 
applicants for positions on all BCCs unless they are reapplying for a second 
consecutive term.  In that case, the Mayor may determine that an interview is 
unnecessary and forward the applicants directly to the Council for approval. 
 

9.4.5 Appointment Process. The Council will be provided with the applications and 
interview questions before the interview which will generally be conducted during 
work sessions.  Following the interviews, the Council will deliberate and attempt to 
arrive at a consensus for all BCC member appointments.  The Council will appoint 
the new BCC members at a subsequent regular meeting by majority vote. 

 
9.4.6 Appointment Considerations. When appointing applicants, the Council will 
take into account whether the applicant is being reappointed for a subsequent term, 
is currently serving on another governing body or currently appointed to another 
BCC. When possible, the Council will appoint applicants to serve only on one BCC 
and not appoint members of other governing bodies of another public body to serve 
on the Planning Commission or Budget Committee.  
 
9.4.7 Member Removal. All BCC members appointees serve at the pleasure of the 
appointing authority. A position may be vacated by the Council when the appointee 
has two or more consecutive unexcused absences from BCC meetings in any twelve 
consecutive month period. The BCC Chair may also recommend to the Council that a 
BCC member be removed that person is found not to meet the BCC’s Bylaws, Code of 
Conduct or Guidelines. 

Exhibit A
25 of 27 



 

20       
 

9.5 BCC Procedures 

9.5.1 Supersede Previous Policies. These policies shall supersede contrary 
provisions of any previous resolutions or adopting bylaws of the various BCCs and 
shall be controlling policies for any subsequently adopted BCC until such time as 
expressly repealed, modified, or overruled.  except for Intergovernmental BCCs who 
are subject to the terms of the applicable intergovernmental agreements and/or 
bylaws, where there is any conflict with these Council Operating Policies and 
Procedures.   

 
9.5.2 BCC Bylaws. BCCs may adopt bylaws or may be subject to more specific 
guidelines in state law, municipal code, ordinance, or resolution. All BCC bylaws and 
related amendments will be approved by the Council. 
 
9.5.3 Public Meetings Law. All BCCs described in these policies are subject to 
public meetings laws of the State of Oregon. 

 
9.5.4 Notice of Meetings. Unless otherwise provided by law, the number of 
meetings related to business needs of a BCC may be set by the individual body.  
Notices of all meetings, including date, time, place, and principal subjects to be 
discussed will be published in accordance with the public meetings laws of the State 
of Oregon. 
 
9.5.5 Agenda and Minutes. The Chair and/or Staff Liaison will be responsible for 
the agenda of all BCC meetings. Minutes will be kept in accordance with the public 
meetings laws of the State of Oregon and provided to the Mayor and Council. 

 
9.5.6 Quorum. Unless otherwise provided by law, a quorum for conducting 
business is a simple majority of the membership of the BCC. 

 
9.5.7 Public Official Ethics Laws. All BCC members must comply with Public Official 
Ethics laws.   
 

9.5.8 Speaking on Behalf of the BCC or City. Unless specifically directed by the 
Council to state the City’s official position on federal, state or county legislative 
matters, BCC members shall not lobby other elected bodies or their subcommittees. 
An individual member is free to voice a position on an issue as long as they make 
clear they are speaking on their own behalf. Violation of this provision may be cause 
for removal from a BCC.  
 
9.5.9 New Members Briefing. Newly appointed members will receive a briefing 
regarding their duties and responsibilities as members of the body and a review of 
Oregon Public Official Ethics and Public Meetings laws. 
 
9.5.10 Joint Meetings. The Board Member Liaison for the Arts Commission, Historic 
Commission, Library Board, and Springfield Police Advisory Committee shall be 

Exhibit A
26 of 27 



 

21       
 

responsible for scheduling a joint meeting of the respective board and the Council 
every two years.  
 
9.5.11 Budget Requests. BCCs must communicate any budget requests to the 
Council through the City Manager consistent with the yearly budget preparation.   

 
9.5.12 Council Meeting Attendance. BCC liaisons are encouraged to attend Council 
meetings to keep informed about Council actions.  Board Member Liaisons are 
responsible for attending Council meetings when input from the respective BCC is 
requested.   

SECTION 10  
AMENDMENTS AND ADDITIONS TO OPERATING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

10.1 Temporarily Suspended 

10.1.1 Suspended by Vote.  Unless otherwise superseded by law, any part of these 
operating procedures and policies may be temporarily suspended by a two-thirds 
vote of those members of the Council present and voting. 

 
10.1.2 Amendments.  These operating policies and procedures may be permanently 
amended at any meeting at which prior notice of the proposed change was provided 
to each member of the Council.  A two-thirds vote of those members of the Council 
present, and voting is needed to affect an amendment or an addition to these 
operating policies and procedures. 

 
Adopted by the Common Council on ______________________________. 
 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
       Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
City Recorder 

Exhibit A
27 of 27 


	Agenda
	AI 380 Eugene Springfield Fire Updates
	AI 377 Housing + Design Initiative Code and Plan Update Project
	       ATT_1. Council Briefing Memo
	       ATT_2. Presentation Slides
	AI 306 April 7, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Minutes
	       ATT_April 7, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Minutes
	AI 307 April 7, 2025 Draft City Council Regular Session Minutes
	       ATT_April 7, 2025 Draft City Council Regular Session Minutes
	AI 308 April 14, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Minutes
	       ATT_April 14, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Minutes
	AI 309 April 21, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Minutes
	       ATT_April 21, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Minutes
	AI 310 April 21, 2025 Draft Joint Elected Officials Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_April 21, 2025 Draft Joint Elected Officials Meeting Minutes
	AI 311 April 21, 2025 Draft City Council Regular Session Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_April 21, 2025 Draft City Council Regular Session Meeting Minutes
	AI 312 April 28, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_April 28, 2025 Draft City Council Work Session Meeting Minutes
	AI 355 Morganic Roots Eco Firm, LLC
	       ATT_1. Stamped Contract 
	AI 372 Liquor License Richard E. Wildish Community Theater
	       ATT_1. OLCC Liquor License Application
	AI 374 Liquor License Track Town Pizza
	       ATT_OLCC Liquor License Application
	AI 373 Liquor License Sophia's
	       ATT_OLCC Liquor License Application
	AI 345 August 2025 Disbursements for Approval
	       ATT_1. RS FIN Disbursements August 2025
	       ATT_2. Cert of Approval August 2025
	AI 375 Armored Response Vehicle Purchase
	       ATT_1. CBM Armored Rescue Vehicle
	       ATT_2. Cooperative Procurement Purchase Order
	AI 357 City Supplemental Budget #1
	       ATT_1. Council Briefing Memorandum
	       ATT_2. FY26 Supplemental Budget 1 Resolution and Exhibit A
	AI 362 Springfield Municipal Code Update - Public Contracts
	       ATT_1. Public Contract Code Ordinance and Exhibit A
	AI 336 Aspen Street/Menlo Loop Annexation
	       ATT_1. Location Maps Aspen-Menlo
	       ATT_2. Aspen-Menlo Ordinance
	       ATT_2A. Site Map and Legal Description
	       ATT_2B. Staff Report
	       ATT_3. Opposition Letter
	       ATT_4. Presentation
	AI 371 Laura Street Annexation
	       ATT_1. Location Maps Laura Street
	       ATT_2. Laura Street Ordinance
	       ATT_2A. Site Map and Legal Description
	       ATT_2B. Staff Report
	       ATT_3. Presentation
	AI 370 Annexation of Territory at 1035 Kintzley Avenue
	       ATT_1. Site Maps
	       ATT_2. Annexation Application
	       ATT_3. Annexation Ordinance
	       ATT_3a. Annexation Map and Legal Description
	       ATT_3b. Staff Report and Recommendations
	AI 331 Approving City Council Operating Policies and Procedures
	       ATT_1. Resolution Approving the City Council Operating Policies and Procedures
	       ATT_1a. Exhibit A_ 2025 City Council Operating Policies and Procedures

